
 
 

Borough of Tamworth 

 

 
4 December 2017 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the Council of this Borough to be 
held on TUESDAY, 12TH DECEMBER, 2017 at 6.00 pm in the TOWN HALL, MARKET 
STREET, TAMWORTH, for the transaction of the following business:- 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

NON CONFIDENTIAL 
 
 
1 Apologies for Absence  

2 To receive the Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 1 - 18) 

3 To receive the Minutes of the Extraordinary Council held on 12th 
September 2017 (Pages 19 - 20) 

4 Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (pecuniary and non-pecuniary) 
in any matters which are to be considered at this meeting. 
 
When Members are declaring a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in respect of 
which they have dispensation, they should specify the nature of such interest.  
Members should leave the room if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary 
interest in respect of which they do not have a dispensation.   
 

5 To receive any announcements from the Mayor, Leader, Members of the 
Cabinet or the Chief Operating Officer  

6 Question Time:  

N0N-CONFIDENTIAL



 (i) To answer questions from members of the public pursuant to 
Procedure Rule No. 10. 

 

(ii) To answer questions from members of the Council pursuant to 
Procedure Rule No. 11 

 

7 Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 
Mid-year Review Report 2017/18 (Pages 21 - 38) 

 (Report of the Portfolio Holder for Assets and Finance) 
 

8 Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2018/19 onwards (Pages 39 - 76) 

 (Report of the Portfolio Holder for Assets and Finance) 
 

9 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000, Adoption of Policy and 
Procedure (2016/17) (Pages 77 - 128) 

 (Report of the Portfolio Holder for Assets and Finance) 
 

10 Constitution Review and Update (Pages 129 - 130) 

 (Report of the Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer) 
 

 
 
Yours faithfully  
 

 
 
 
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER 
 
 
People who have a disability and who would like to attend the meeting should contact 
Democratic Services on 01827 709264 or e-mail committees@tamworth.gov.uk  
preferably 24 hours prior to the meeting.  We can then endeavour to ensure that any particular 
requirements you may have are catered for. 
 
 
Marmion House 
Lichfield Street 
Tamworth 



 

 

1  
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 

COUNCIL 
HELD ON 12th SEPTEMBER 2017 

 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillor J Chesworth (Chair), Councillors P Thurgood (Vice-

Chair), R Bilcliff, S Claymore, T Clements, D Cook, C Cooke, 
A Couchman, S Doyle, J Faulkner, R Ford, M Gant, M Greatorex, 
R Kingstone, A Lunn, T Madge, K Norchi, J Oates, M Oates, 
S Peaple, T Peaple, R Pritchard, R Rogers, P Standen, 
M Summers and M Thurgood 

 
The following officers were present: Anthony E Goodwin (Chief Executive), 
Andrew Barratt (Corporate Director Growth, Assets and Environment), Stefan 
Garner (Director of Finance), Anica Goodwin (Director - Transformation and 
Corporate Performance), Linda Ram (Public Relations Officer and Copywriter), 
Ryan Keyte (Senior Legal Officer) and Janice Clift (Democratic and Elections 
Officer) 
 
 
 

20 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J Goodall, S Goodall and A 
James 
 
 

21 TO RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 16 May 2017 were approved and signed as a 
correct record. 
 
(Moved by Councillor D Cook and seconded by Councillor S Peaple) 
 
 

22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 
There were no Declarations of Interest. 
 
 

23 TO RECEIVE ANY ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE MAYOR, LEADER, 
MEMBERS OF THE CABINET OR THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
 
 
The following announcements were made:- 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Council 12 September 2017 

 

 

2 
 

 
Councillor John Faulkner:- 
 
Peter was already a member of the Labour Party when he moved to Tamworth in 
1986 and took a full part and was first elected to Tamworth Borough Council on 
30th October 1997 and therefore he had just short of twenty years’ service when 
he resigned with affect from 31st August 2017 following a stroke. Sadly following a 
second stroke he died on Saturday. Paying tribute to Peter as I am sure we would 
all like to do, one thing comes across more than anything else and that is his 
diligence in dealing with patch issues. He would essentially carry through each 
particular issue as far as he was able to take it. He wouldn’t necessarily be 
fobbed off. A lot of residents throughout Bolehall and throughout the town were 
grateful for his assistance. 
 
When he was first elected in 1997 he secured 515 votes. I think it was something 
of a tribute to him that when he stood in 2015 and he secured 1440 votes. He 
served as Leader of the Council for four years between 2000 and 2004 and I think 
one of his greatest achievements was the introduction of street wardens; one of 
the greatest concerns for Tamworth was Community Safety and I think street 
wardens played a major role in making people feel more secure. For this work in 
Tamworth I think we should all thank Peter. 
 
But of cause in 2004 the Labour Group lost control and Peter became Leader of 
the Opposition and as Councillor Danny Cook as already made reference, he was 
quite diligent. He lost few opportunities to remind the Tories, for example of the 
sale of the Peaks business for £1.00 to a company called Sports Village UK 
Limited and which basically had no assets to speak of at all. Perhaps we miss 
Peter not being here to remind us of this. Secondly there was the matter of the 
Icelandic Banks period. In 2008, prior to these banks collapsing, Tamworth 
Borough Council had seven and a half million pounds invested with Glitner, 
Kaepthing, Singer  & Friedlander and Heritable Bank and provided a regular 
source of questions from Peter with what was happening. 
 
We didn’t always agree with Peter and seldom so the members opposite and also 
occasionally on this side. Most recently we had the question of the European 
Referendum and Peter argued for withdrawal from the European Union. Some 
healthy debates there! Whatever happened he was always a friend and 
colleague. He had that sort of dignity that he would be able to separate personal 
items from issues. 
 
Peter never held a grudge and very often there would be jokes at his expense 
and he always took them very well. So I’m going to conclude with two quotes. 
First of all something Peter said when he was speaking about Phil Dix “when he 
did speak common sense and his vast knowledge made people immediately want 
to listen and respect his contributions to that being discussed”. The second quote 
and this is a quote which I am going to conclude with and hopefully my old 
English teacher Mr MacNab will be very pleased that I remember. This is a quote 
from Hamlet “he was a man, take him for all and all. I shall not look upon his like 
again”. 
 
Councillor Chris Cooke:- 

Page 2



Council 12 September 2017 

 

 

3 
 

 
I have known Peter since I was elected. He was a nice person and I had a lot of 
respect for him. Please can you pass on my sympathies to his family. 
 
Councillor Tony Madge:- 
 
It was three and a half years ago when I first met Peter. When I was elected he 
made me feel welcome. We often chatted and when Peter spoke you listened. I 
had great respect for what he had to say. One of the things that I remember was 
when we held a Councillor Day at Rawlett School for the kids. I was quite a bit 
nervous going in there. I partnered up with Peter and the way he came across to 
the youngsters I realised there were no age or political boundaries. He was 
excellent. I learnt a lot from him and we used to have a little laugh about that. I 
know when it comes to the Council meeting at Christmas I usually sat next to 
Peter at the Town Hall. I will miss those moments. We used to have a chat. He 
was a great man. My sympathies go out to his family. I will remember him with 
great fondness. 
 
Councillor Tom Peaple:- 
 
In many ways it is intimidating to follow so many as some knew Peter for longer 
than what I ever did. However I would like to recall some particular memories I 
have of him. This was back in 2010. Was it legal for a twenty year old to stand for 
Council? It was legal! In some ways it was a very daunting thing to do but I 
remember the first meeting after I had decided to stand was in a Labour meeting. 
Peter said to me “so are you going to be Labour’s second youngest Councillor?” I 
think he meant after himself! I attended the Rawlett Debate which was held a few 
weeks before the election where we could sit with the sixth form at Rawlett. It was 
good to be involved as every other Labour Members or Councillors were there. 
He made me feel comfortable like Councillor Madge said he could cross age 
barriers. He encouraged this. I am still trying to get used to the fact that he has 
gone to be honest. It is really sad. 
 
Councillor Pat Standen:- 
 
I have known Peter since I was in my twenty’s. I didn’t know originally that he was 
a member of the Labour Party. I knew him originally from church. He was one of 
the regular faces you saw. Recently at St John’s but previously at Sacred Heart. 
Peter and his wife Violet would normally sit behind my family at mass and we 
would quite often talk before mass and at the end of mass mostly. He is going to 
be sorely missed. As a Councillor he was always there as someone you could 
always talk to or if you wanted a bit of advice he was one of those ears you could 
always depend on. My thoughts and prayers are really with Violet and the wider 
family. It has got to be a very hard time for them at the moment and my thoughts 
and prayers are with them. He is just going to be missed. 
 
Councillor Maureen Gant:- 
 
This is more on a Personal note than anything. There have been so many tributes 
made to him. Ken and I have been very good friends with Peter and Violet for a 
very long time. We class him as a friend and I think he will be sorely missed in the 

Page 3



Council 12 September 2017 

 

 

4 
 

Council Chamber and he will be sorely missed across the borough has he was a 
fantastic Councillor. Violet is finding it very hard at the moment but fortunately she 
has got all her family around her. Hopefully I am going to see her again later in 
the week. 
 
Councillor Michael Oates:- 
 
Peter was a gentleman. I have known him for possibly 20 years. I want to be a bit 
light hearted as Peter is in a better place now. Peter was political and because of 
this there was a lot of banter across the Chamber. Outside the room there was no 
politics between us. I have never heard him swear. He used to work at 
gentleman’s outfitters. I have often thought to myself I can see him saying “are 
you free Mr Grace?” 
 
Councillor Allan Lunn:- 
 
As we have said how we are in the Chamber it is often missed by the public that 
we do get on outside of here. My friendship with Peter developed at Tamworth 
Football Club where we would stand. I can honestly say I didn’t hear him swear 
as I was swearing so much myself. We would be quite passionate about the club. 
He became an ‘honorary lamb’ although he came from up north where they drank 
stronger beer. He will be sorely missed at the Castle End. It will not be the same 
when we go down. I haven’t had the opportunity to go down for the last couple of 
years but would see him every other week when I was down there. So it will be 
strange going back down there and he will be missed as a ‘lamb’ not just as a 
Councillor. Sympathies go to the family. 
 
Councillor Jeremy Oates:- 
 
Councillor Seekings just looking over across at where he would sit that is where I 
first sat when I first got onto this Council and that was back in May 2000. The 
reason I was elected to this Council was that the Council had made a decision to 
charge twenty four seven for car parking. It is times like this that I think about the 
individual and what Peter and his group have done for Tamworth Council. Peter 
reversed that decision at the following budget. Without Peter as the Leader I 
wonder whether we would have got rid of the twenty four seven car parking 
charges. That is what I remember in terms of an achievement. I asked my first 
question at Council in 2000 and I had chosen the wrong question as he ripped me 
to pieces. It was about the car park over here by the co-op. I said about the 
reduction in car parking what was the town going to do? His answer was “this 
equates to 0.6% of the parking spaces in Tamworth. I can’t remember my 
supplementary but I’m guessing it was quite weak. We have mentioned the 
personal side of Peter. When I was Leader if this Council you know that it can be 
a really lonely job. Especially when you have had your group meeting and you 
think you have got an idea where you are going and two days later you are in the 
office on your own desperately trying to get any member to answer their phone to 
speak and you have got a decision to make. Peter didn’t just do it as Leader of 
the Council but he did it as Leader of the Opposition for many years and as 
Leader of the Opposition probably through my naivety as Leader of the Council 
he did a cracking job. Councillor Faulkner has already raised about Iceland and 
money spent on consultants and also the money spent on the Tamworth Transfer 

Page 4



Council 12 September 2017 

 

 

5 
 

Bid. So there are the four things there. The Conservative group didn’t get 100% 
right. Do you know that Peter was the one Councillor that never let us get away 
with anything and he would remind us of it at every possible opportunity. He used 
to rile us that is why he would do it. It was also a little reminder to say ignore this. 
If you think you have won the argument you have actually only won the vote. So I 
am watching you and I am going to remind you of this, this and this. I think in 
terms of those skills there are very few to challenge Peter. He also got me in 
trouble as I signed a letter and had the National Party on my back. In terms of 
personal politics I remember coming out of the Count in 2003. Wondering out of 
the Count at the same time was Peter and he said “come back to mine and we 
will have a drink?” Jerry and I went to Peter’s house and we stayed there until 
about three in the morning. But we were made to feel welcome. We may have 
fallen out in the Chamber and we may have seen Peter go really red in the face. It 
was about people. I felt pretty welcome at Peter’s house that evening. When he 
attacked you sometimes it felt really personal and if he continued to attack it did 
feel personal. But it wasn’t personal it was just good politics. 
 
Councillor Ken Norchi:- 
 
It has been said many times and by everybody what a great character Peter was. 
What a great family he has got. I’m just going to talk about the humorous side of 
Peter because if I talk about anything else I may need a handkerchief. One night 
we were at a meeting two or three years back and we were both going to Bolehall 
Club after the meeting. Peter said “I will see you up there Ken”. I arrived at 
Bolehall Swifts Club and fifteen minutes later no Peter. Ken who was another 
friend of Peter’s said to me “was Peter at the meeting?” I said “yes”. “Did he leave 
at the same time as you?” Again I replied “yes”. So we phoned Peter up. “Where 
are you Peter?” “In Hopwas” he replied. “How have you got there?” He said 
“There was a diversion and I followed it?” Fifteen minutes later Peter arrived at 
the club to a round of applause and a big cheer. As John had already said he had 
a fantastic sense of humour and he had no sense of direction. That was Peter. If 
he was driving you would say to him “where are you going?” He would laugh and 
say “where am I supposed to be going?” The man must have had a sense of 
humour because he bought me into politics. He asked me some years ago and 
here I am now. There is lots of thanks to go to Peter. He was and still is in 
everybody’s mind a true gentleman and a true family man and a true friend. I will 
miss him. 
 
Councillor Simon Peaple:- 
 
First of all Councillor Cooke can I say we really appreciate your kind comments. 
You demonstrate a great deal of bravery when you get up and we really 
appreciate that. Councillor Faulkner did him proud and we have heard so many 
nice things from both sides of the Chamber. I just wanted to pick out one word a 
different word to the one John used and that is integrity. Councillor Seekings did 
something that not everyone can do. He was Leader of the Council at a very 
controversial time. Not everything that the last Labour government did was right 
though arguably better than what was to follow. But I am sure Peter would 
appreciate me adding that. He served his time as Leader of the Opposition but he 
had integrity to turn round and say “I’m not going to be Leader of the Council 
again in the near future”. Therefore he handed on the baton. It’s not easy to do 

Page 5



Council 12 September 2017 

 

 

6 
 

that as politics is full of people that cling onto status or some kind of position 
because they just can’t bear not to be taken on and Peter showed tremendous 
integrity by making that decision. I have over the last four years benefited from 
having someone in that corner if you like someone who understood but didn’t 
always agree and not to be alluded to. He had firm views and as I was a 
Londoner coming from a different direction to help to try and dilute this northern 
takeover but from a practical point of view I could always talk to him. One of the 
things that a past Leader can very easily do is to act as though they were still 
Leader and view what you should of done. He would suggest other things that 
could have been done. But you know when he was in the Chamber he knew 
which side he was on and he never let you forget it. I want to thank everyone from 
behalf of the party for their kind tributes and to recognise as I close my remarks to 
have integrity is a fantastic thing because that is what actually carries you 
through. To get the kind of tributes that Peter deserved. Pat and I saw him at 
church. We knew he was a man of faith. He has now made that final step. I’m 
sure he will be crowned in heaven. In the meantime thanks for that. On Peter’s 
behalf the sentiments that have been expressed will be passed on. 
 
Councillor Stephen Doyle:- 
 
I have been at this Council for six years and I spent my first year on Audit and 
Governance Committee. One thing that I actually remember is that both Peter and 
Ken made me feel welcome and they were members of the opposition. I gratefully 
valued that because I was very, very nervous. Peter showed me exactly what it 
was to be a Councillor and to work on the patch and be active in the Chamber. 
When we were in Audit and Governance he did the work very, very well and that 
was something that I loved to follow so I looked to carry on. To being open and 
welcome to members of the opposition because at the end of the day we are all 
here to do the best that we can. I will miss him. 
 
The Mayor, Councillor John Chesworth:- 
 
We were completely different politically but outside of the Chamber I always found 
him to be a complete gentleman and like Councillor Lunn I bumped into him at the 
Lamb a few times and we would chat over the football. I don’t think I heard Peter 
swear. I know I was out with Teresa at different events and if Peter and Violet 
were there they always made a point of chatting to us and outside of this 
Chamber and away from politics he was a gentleman. Maureen when you see 
Violet if you could pass on our best wishes please? 
 
MINUTES SILENCE 
 
Leader of the Council, Councillor D Cook:- 
 
This is the Chief Executive’s last meeting of full Council before his retirement. A 
retirement that over the last six months I have fought for trying not to listen. I tried 
to write into his contract that he had to give twenty years notice but HR were just 
not having it. To try and sum up in words the achievement of Tony Goodwin for 
this Council and this Town. I will give you a taste of what has been taking place in 
the background this week. Linda Ram and of course is with us in the audience 
our PR Manager asked me for some words about Tony’s time. I replied “Leader, 

Page 6



Council 12 September 2017 

 

 

7 
 

poet and seducer of women the world over. The reason I use those words is I 
couldn’t think of any words that would fit the bill. I am still genuinely struggling to 
find the words. Linda has promised me that she will use the last bit in the press. I 
think we all need to recall that when Tony took the job as Chief Executive at the 
Council we were just entering national austerity level that hadn’t been seen since 
the Second World War. This Council other than the golf course did everything it 
does today as it did then. It still balances its budgets to the same quality. It still 
has a treasury management structure we will see tonight. It is above other 
Council’s. While we may be one of the smallest Council’s we are well respected 
and well run Council and that is Tony’s doing. He has been an absolute superb 
Chief Executive for this Council and what he has delivered in some hard times is 
amazing. If you ever want to see the quality of his work I suggest you look at the 
back of the room with regards to the quality of staff he has fetched through the 
next generation for us. Tony’s achievement on this Council is nothing short of 
miraculous. When he leaves he certainly leaves this Council on a far better place 
and I will certainly miss him. 
 
Councillor Simon Peaple:- 
 
The departure of Tony Goodwin fills me with some sadness. Mitigated by the fact 
that we have quality people to take on the roles we propose tonight. I was here 
when Tony came in the Leisure Department. I remember but he probably won’t 
because he has moved onto such great and wonderful things not to mention 
sorting out Councillor Cook and keeping him vaguely on the straight and narrow. I 
remember him sorting out a query that I had at a garden on my patch and I 
remember I completely forgot in the days before e-mail the ability to log things 
and put an arrow beside them. I just completely forgot that I had said that I would 
look this up and belatedly went to see Tony to ask if he could help me out on the 
issue. He said “I can sort this out for you. I think we can find an answer to”. I think 
this is something he has done all the way through. He has given a very 
distinguished service for this Council. He has found solutions. As Councillor Cook 
has alluded to so I’m not being political but why shouldn’t I be? It’s a time which 
has been very, very difficult ever since the announcement of austerity and serial 
cuts we have had to face and very tough decisions and whilst we may not agree 
all services were exactly as they were. None the less if that mitigation hadn’t of 
been carried out with Tony and his management to guide and support then it 
wouldn’t of been possible. Tony and I agree on relatively few areas of life in some 
ways certainly doesn’t support the right football team and certainly very few of my 
family have served in the armed forces so we don’t share that background either. 
But I have come to have enormous respect for Tony and I’m not sure that Doctor 
Goodwin and I will always have agreed but I do know there have been times 
when we have clicked with each other. I think it was Tony who said well I suppose 
you are the one with an academic directorate?” His is in sociology but everyone 
recognises an academic qualification. The fact is we had a thoroughly good 
relationship in many ways and I’m very grateful I have had the ability to go and 
see him on a regular basis. Thank you Tony for the support and guidance you 
have given me since I was a young niave Councillor and that is just over the past 
two to three years. Thank you very much indeed. 
 
Councillor Jeremy Oates:- 
 

Page 7



Council 12 September 2017 

 

 

8 
 

I have been a member of the Council for seventeen years now. I want to take this 
opportunity to say thank you to Tony. There are a number of lessons he has 
taught me. We mentioned Peter earlier. Peter bought the Cabinets Scrutiny 
Committees to Tamworth and myself and my father made the first call-in to 
Scrutiny because the Cabinet decision was to move Wilnecote Parish Hall from 
Council operation so we called it in. I met with residents, went through different 
ideas and came up with a list of questions. I went to see Tony and said “these are 
the questions I’m going to be asking tonight so can we go through them and 
make sure they are okay so you’ve got an opportunity to answer them?” Tony 
went through the questions and turned up at the meeting and I started asking the 
questions. Tony started answering them with pretty much one word answers. 
Then the Labour members in the room asked a whole load of other questions 
which had never entered my head the motion was moved that the decision 
remains and off we all went. I was sitting there feeling quite numb thinking what 
happened there and Tony said to me “I answered the questions that you asked 
me but I didn’t answer any questions you didn’t ask me”. The work Tony has done 
as Chief Executive doing a lot of work behind the scenes with the members of 
CMT. We had a laugh while we were doing it. It is known that Tamworth is often 
the early implementer of National Schemes or County Wise Schemes and that 
was because Tony had vision. He could spot things coming on the horizon. I 
remember walking into his office one afternoon and I said “what are you up too?” 
He replied “I’m working on the CAA process” which didn’t happen for two years 
but he was early plotting and it’s that early plotting that Tony is fantastic at. I will 
give you another example in 2007 for whatever reason I think Linda and Peter 
Seekings may have known the reason better. The Director at the time had 
booked the Assembly Rooms for the count. I didn’t know how he knew it was 
going to be shut. It must have been his long sightedness as he booked 
elsewhere. It is probably my fault that he is sitting in that chair. I saved his life one 
day. We were on the eighth floor. Tony tripped on the top step and I saved the 
guy. Tony tells the story slightly differently but I tell you he is not light. I want to 
say thank you to Tony for all he has done for Tamworth Borough Council and for 
Staffordshire because he has certainly made some waves and to just remind 
members it’s not just what he has implemented as Chief Executive the 
achievement he has had as Chief Executive has been a tribute to the efforts and 
he has certainly supported me as Leader. Thank you Tony for all you have done. 
One last thing was at my Mayor’s dinner I had a phone call from Tony asking if 
Danny and myself could behave as he was bringing his wife and he was on the 
same table as us. 
 
Councillor Chris Cooke:- 
 
I recognised Tony’s achievements at the Council from when I first came here. I 
was as scared as anything when I first came into the Council to sign the papers 
after being elected. I wish him well for the future 
 
Councillor Allan Lunn:- 
 
As many of you are aware Tony is an ex-war veteran like some of us. In his time 
in the Army I mean the Royal Marines. When I got to know Tony I held ultimate 
respect for him with regards to duties that he undertook. So I already have that 
respect for the gentleman that was running us as a Council. Very often I had the 

Page 8



Council 12 September 2017 

 

 

9 
 

opportunity to say to him that “it’s not what the Councillors do for this town it’s 
what Tony and the team and every Council officer in the building does that runs 
the town”. I speak to people and there is immense pride shown for how the town 
is run. Tony had the lead at one of my first Council meetings. I actually accused 
someone of being an ‘oxygen thief’ and straight away he knew what I was saying. 
An oxygen thief is a military term for people who are talking when they shouldn’t 
be and talking about things that they don’t understand. If I was in military uniform 
tonight I would be saluting this man. Thank you. 
 
Councillor Tony Madge:- 
 
I remember well when I was first elected to the Council and we had a little 
Councillors chat. What impressed me straight away was his protection of his staff. 
We could fight him but we couldn’t touch his staff. They were his responsibility. 
That really impressed me. It wasn’t long before I was on the naughty step and I 
was invited in without coffee and we had a little chat oddly enough about the golf 
course. At the end of it I found we had common ground. We knew where we were 
both coming from and I know every time and I know that I did pester you with 
rather a lot of e-mails and phone calls that you always answered straight away 
and always very helpful. It’s true what others have said and in particular 
Councillor Lunn that your staff are a credit to you. The officers that I deal with 
regularly are super helpful. You do a great job and I offer you all the best. Now 
you are retiring don’t get involved in politics. I made that mistake. 
 
Councillor Pat Standen:- 
 
I have always found Tony to be approachable, intelligent and with a good insight 
and someone always worth listening to and with a sense of humour. Thank you 
for what you have done for the people of Tamworth and I include myself in that. 
 
Councillor John Faulkner:- 
 
Tony and myself were both born in the Wirral so I suppose we have something in 
common. Talking in terms of his service career there are a few anecdotes I have 
been told over the years of Tony. One was he was the worst shot in the British 
Army I know that’s not true because Councillor Lunn has just mentioned the 
Royal Marines were not part of the army. He may have been the worst shot in the 
Royal Marines. Tony has been Chief Executive during difficult times as the 
Leader of the Council has mentioned. The Election of the Conservative led 
government in 2010 led to unprecedented austerity. In the post war period 
austerity then was different. There was reduction in people’s consumption as 
resources were directed into building all the houses. Good housing in the country 
was building up, industry etc. Very different times that we are in now but I do not 
want to go on with that. Tony whenever I have had occasion to speak to him he 
has always been able to give me good and frank advice and I have always valued 
that. On every occasion there has always been that sense of humour. Jobs 
always got done with good humour and I think we should appreciate that. Second 
quote of Tony’s career was one of Tony’s colleagues that were in the services 
with him said to Tony “I would follow you anywhere out of sheer curiosity”. Tony 
has been a friend and please do stay in touch. 
 

Page 9



Council 12 September 2017 

 

 

10 
 

Councillor Robert Bilcliff:- 
 
I met Tony on a number of occasions and I found him to have integrity which we 
have spoken about and Tony has that in abundance. He’s also got something 
else. I’ve contacted him out of hours and I’ve been surprised that he has come 
back to me fairly quickly and given me replies. His office has always been open. 
We have had frank conversations. Nothing has been left wanting and we both 
know which side of the table we are both sitting. Always fair. Wish you all the best 
and hope all goes well. 
 
The Mayor, Councillor John Chesworth:- 
 
I admire someone who has served in the forces as Tony did and secondly 
someone who is a gentleman. I think on a personal level Tony was very good to 
me when I lost my dad last year. So I thank you for that. It’s been a pleasure 
sitting next to you for one and a bit full Council meeting and it’s been a pleasure 
and I do wish you all the best for the future. 
 
Councillor Simon Peaple:- 
 
During the period since our last full meeting Councillor Danny Cook secured his 
engagement with Michelle Thurgood and behalf of everyone else may I presume 
to offer them great happiness for the future and congratulations and best wishes 
to them for the future. 
 
The Mayor, Councillor John Chesworth:- 
 
Final announcement another departure for those of you who know Janice in front 
of me she is leaving Tamworth Borough Council. Thank you Janice for your help 
and support at the meetings over the last couple of years and thank you for 
helping me while I have been Mayor! 
 
Councillor Tom Peaple:- 
 
None that is departing but Councillor Alice Couchman will also be getting married 
soon. We wish her all the best. 
 
Chief Executive, Tony Goodwin:- 
 
Since taking up the role of Interim Chief Executive on 29th March 2011 the role of 
Electoral Registration Officer and Returning Officer for the Borough of Tamworth 
was assigned to Mr John Wheatley, Executive Director Corporate Services. 
Similarly I was personally nominated as ‘deputy’ in relation to both roles with both 
nominations ratified by Full Council. 
 
These appointments are required in order to comply with the terms of the 
Representation of the People Act 1983, Sections 8, 35 and 52. Following 
confirmation from the relevant officers, I can now confirm that arrangements have 
been made for Mr John Wheatley, the Executive Director Corporate Resources to 
continue in the roles of Returning Officer and Registration Officer for the Borough 
of Tamworth. Following my retirement and with effect from 16th October 2017 the 

Page 10



Council 12 September 2017 

 

 

11 
 

Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer Mrs Jane Hackett has been 
appointed as my successor as ‘deputy’ in relation to both roles and consequently, 
Council’s ratification of these appointments is sought. 
 
(Moved by Councillor D Cook and seconded by Councillor S Peaple) 
 
Just one quick formal announcement that I will be the Chief Executive until I walk 
out of the door! 
 
Also for those of you who have sent good wishes for my wife I can tell you that 
she is now chatting away in her hospital bed. 
 
 

24 QUESTION TIME:  
 
 

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC NO. 1 
 
Under Procedure Rule No 10, Ron Brown, of 4 Adonis Close, Tamworth will 
ask the Leader of the Council, Councillor D Cook, the following question:- 
 

"Is the Council Leader aware of the following discovery by Tamworth Resident 
and Elector, Ron Brown? A collection of Borough Council Employees has been 
posing as official representatives of Elected Councillors, posting statements 
(purportedly from the Council and Councillors) and soliciting public responses. Via 
that "man in the middle" attack on Public-Councillor intended dialogue, they have 
taken extensive steps to suppress and censor selected Public responses - none 
of which were abusive or contained other than factual statements. At the time of 
submitting this question, this group of impostors has - presumably in an attempt to 
cover their tracks - altered the Facebook-required truthful description of their 
identities, from one of pretence and actually BEING Tamworth Borough Council, 
to one of being merely the output of TBC's Communications Team. Furthermore, 
they are VISIBLY constructing for themselves the ability and authorisation to 
BLOCK any responder whom they deam (without Council Approval) as 
unacceptable to their purpose. 
. 
Supportive copies of "before and after" Facebook "about us" descriptions and a 
complete (at time of writing) copy of a thread where the impostors are visibly 
attempting to suppress the responses - which they originally requested - have 
been provided to the above Councillors. Please pay careful attention to the 
Councillor's submissions?” 
 
Councillor D Cook gave the following reply:- 
 
Other than is the Leader aware I’m not sure here is a question there! 
 
Mr Mayor with your permission as the resident is not present I will offer to write to 
the resident to answer the question. I believe it is also subject to a Freedom of 
Information request with the exact same content from the exact same resident so 
I suggest we let that process run its course and when it has I will write to the 
resident also enclosing a copy of the complaints procedure. However I have 

Page 11



Council 12 September 2017 

 

 

12 
 

absolute confidence that our communications team are doing a superb job and I 
will not have them questioned in such away. 
 

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL NO. 1 
 
Under Procedure Rule No 11, Councillor T Peaple will ask the Portfolio 
Holder for Housing, Councillor M Thurgood, the following question:- 
 

“At the annual joint scrutiny of budgets the members requested that the cabinet 
investigate the potential for moving high earning council tenants on to a market 
rate of rent. Has this investigation been carried out and if so what were the 
results?” 
 
Councillor M Thurgood gave the following reply:- 
 
Thank you Mr Mayor and thank you too to Councillor Peaple for his question. 
 
Councillor Peaple you will be aware that the potential move to charge high 
earning council tenants market rates for their rent was a provision allowed for 
under the Housing and Planning Act 2016. The scheme was designed to charge 
those households earning more than £31k (£40k in London) up to market rents. 
 
Our housing team prepared detailed assessments last October for what was 
intended an April 2017 implementation.  However, as members will be aware, 
following the housing sectors response to this proposal - the then housing 
Minister Gavin Barwell announced it was no longer mandatory for Councils and 
should be considered in the spirit of Localism and political discretion. In other 
words it was voluntary. 
 
As I stated at joint scrutiny (budgets), and was widely supported by members, I 
was keen to see if Tamworth Council could make this work. It may have been 
‘scrapped’ as a must, but was still on the proverbial table. Ultimately, I would love 
to be able to ensure those who can afford to pay do so and hopefully to free up 
some accommodation for people who do not have another choice. 
 

Unfortunately, having reviewed the evidence, it was clear that whilst the option 
was there, it was not feasible for this council to take it forward. This is due to the 
following reasons: 
 

 The costs to administer were assessed as likely to be higher than the 
income generated. As recipients of housing benefits and/or universal 
credit are exempt, as are low income families – income projections were 
assumption based only and could have been as low as c£57k.  With 
administrative costs assessed to be around £70-80k it appeared 
uneconomical to proceed 
 

 The requirements for tenants to declare their income remains 
voluntary – therefore arrears would have been likely to accrue as tenants 
are reluctant to share personal financial information. 

 

Page 12



Council 12 September 2017 

 

 

13 
 

 And finally, even if we could make it work, Councils do not keep the 
additional income locally it must be returned to the treasury. This means 
we could generate additional income and have to endure the full cost 
locally – this does not make sense for us. 
 

Therefore; until there is further regulation from the government around this 
scheme – the risks to this council unfortunately far outweigh the benefits. And we 
will not be taking it forward. 

 
I am of course happy to meet with Councillor Peaple or any other member to 
discuss the details further. Thank you. 
 
Finally just also to confirm that the team are currently reviewing affordability of 
rents as part of wider commercial considerations within the Housing Revenue 
Account.  A report on affordable rent levels is on the Councils forward plan for 2nd 
November 2017.  
 

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL NO. 2 
 
Under Procedure Rule No 11, Councillor T Madge will ask the Leader of the 
Council, Councillor D Cook, the following question:- 
 

“With regard to the planned green bin charges, as you are aware I am opposed to 
any charges to the public for collection of green waste. I understand why you are 
bringing in this charge but I did offer an alternative which would bring in revenue 
for the green waste which would remove the need to charge residents of 
Tamworth. I know you agreed with me that this was possible and I ask that this 
system can be considered for possible implementation in the future?” 
 
Councillor D Cook gave the following reply:- 
 
Thank you Mr Mayor, and can I thank Cllr Madge for his question. 
 
I believe there are 30 of us in this room, all Councillors who want the best for the 
residents of Tamworth we represent and would dearly love not to have to 
implement the charges for green waste. 
 
Unfortunately at this time we have two choices, either implement the charge of 
£36.00 per green bin or severely cut back the services we provide to our 
residents. 
 
I will not get into the state of the national finances or the ever increasing demands 
/ need of a changing age demographic in the UK that is putting all levels of public 
finances under increasing pressure. We all know the challenges we face today 
and over the next decade or so in the public sector. 
 
I have indeed spoken with Cllr Madge about his idea for a site that would be 
owned by Tamworth Borough Council where green waste could be composted 
thus potentially saving money or perhaps creating a profit for the Council to 
underpin the cost of services. I also confirm to all colleagues that it is certainly not 
the worst idea I have ever heard. 

Page 13



Council 12 September 2017 

 

 

14 
 

 
Myself, the Portfolio Holder and officers have had a brief look at the idea, but 
have not yet had a deep dive to see seriously how feasible it would be. But from 
early conversations no one is saying it’s impossible, just that any pay off, if there 
was a pay off or pay back is at best very long term. It does not create income, if 
there was to be income it would not be quick enough in the short term to 
potentially off-set the need to charge for Green Waste collection. 
 
By the time we have purchased land, set up all the licences required, purchased 
the required equipment, analysed any effect on our Waste partner in Lichfield 
District Council and what impact or continuation effect this would have on the joint 
waste service then the implementation and pay off would be years away. Yet we 
need the income within the next year or so or we have to cut services. As all will 
be aware, this Council is employing two new Homelessness Officers, continues to 
maintain its commitment to the voluntary sector, is investing in and protecting our 
heritage at great cost. All this with ever decreasing government financial support. 
 
The Commercial Investment Strategy (CIS) is gathering pace and I hope will 
create the required income streams to underpin our finances long term and I give 
Cllr Madge the promise that once the governance of the CIS is in place I will ask 
that his project gets a serious look in the future against the agreed criteria set out 
by the CIS. 
 

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL NO. 3 
 
Under Procedure Rule No 11, Councillor R Bilcliff will ask the Leader of the 
Council, Councillor D Cook, the following question:- 
 

“The Environmental Protection Act 1990 -- Section 45 (3) says this:-  
  
“No charge shall be made for the collection of household waste except in cases 
prescribed in regulations made by the Secretary of State; and in any of those 
cases -  
  
       (a)     the duty to arrange for the collection of the waste shall not arise until a 
person who controls the waste requests the authority to collect it; and 
  
       (b)     the authority may recover a reasonable charge for the collection of the 
waste from the person who made the request” 
 
If I use my green bin no more than once or twice a year. If, on those occasions, I 
properly request the authority to collect my green bin will they arrange to collect 
this bin and if so what would their reasonable charge be?” 
 
Councillor D Cook gave the following reply:- 
 
There is no legal obligation on any waste authority to provide a separate 
collection of garden waste irrespective of whether a householder requests 
occasional or regular collections. 
 

Page 14



Council 12 September 2017 

 

 

15 
 

However Tamworth and Lichfield both recognised that it was far better to offer its 
residents an opt-in subscription service rather than to provide no service at all. 
After careful consideration it was determined that the most cost effective way to 
provide the service and keep the cost down for residents was to deliver it on an 
annual basis with a single subscription charge.  
 
This means that residents can then use the service at their own convenience 
without having to pre book a collection. Even if an on demand service was 
provided the charge for such an arrangement would have to reflect that the same 
overheads for staff, trucks and depot still exist plus the added expense of 
collecting a payment each time a collection was requested. 
 
Paragraph 4 of Schedule 1 to the Controlled Waste Regulations 2012 specifies 
when collection and disposal charges can be made for household waste and the 
scheme which will be introduced in January 2018 is fully compliant with this 
legislation. 
 
I have with me a copy of this legislation and I am happy to E-mail Cllr Bilcliff a 
copy should he wish it. If he takes a good look at page 11 it clearly states under 
this legislation that you can indeed charge for the collection of garden waste. It 
actually quite simple, the first column entitled “Description of Household Waste” 
on the table says Garden Waste, the second column entitled “Collection Charge” 
simply says YES. Not difficult to pull the meaning from that, quite rare in my 
experience with government legalisation.  
 
As I stated earlier to Cllr Madge, no one wants to do this, everyone is aware it will 
be unpopular. What we lack is an alternative choice that does not hurt the 
vulnerable in our town. 
 
Councillor R Billcliff asked the following supplementary question:- 
 
“Can you just explain if I’ve got this right even though I only use my bin once or 
twice in a year you are prepared to charge me £36.00 for that? Can you explain 
as I said I need to see the regulations to what is a reasonable charge within the 
meaning of those regulations?” 
 
Councillor D Cook gave the following reply:- 
 
In my day job this qualifies me to answer this question. As many of you will be 
aware I am a distribution manager with many years’ experience running very 
large depots. When legislation says that it is to charge a reasonable amount it is 
so that a service does not lose money. We could send a truck to you once a year 
but we still have to pay for that truck on a yearly cycle and so we have to offer the 
driver and the crew a yearly salary which must be funded by a yearly cycle. 
Logistics has two running costs which you pay no matter what. Those standard 
costs i.e. the vehicle, the insurance etc are all the things that go into owning and 
running a vehicle is still costs the same over the course of the year. So we cannot 
offer one off collection and otherwise we cannot budget for a service to function. 
 

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL NO. 4 
 

Page 15



Council 12 September 2017 

 

 

16 
 

Under Procedure Rule No 11, Councillor R Bilcliff will ask the Leader of the 
Council, Councillor D Cook, the following question:- 
 
”Before we were supplied with green bins I would put some green waste I 
collected into my black bin. Does the local authority seek to stop this practice and, 
if so, under what specific regulation?” 
 
Councillor D Cook gave the following reply:- 
 
The Joint Waste Service has no plans to invoke Section 46 of the Environmental 
Protection Act 1990 and prohibit residents from disposing of their garden waste in 
the black bin. Instead those residents who do not subscribe to the scheme will be 
encouraged to dispose of any garden waste they may have by either home 
composting or taking it to a Civic Amenity Site as these options are more 
environmentally friendly. 
 
This Council is trying to create the required finance to underpin services to some 
of the most vulnerable in our society, which is drawn out from our corporate plans 
and vision. We are not looking to create an environment of draconian punishment. 
I truly hope the public in Tamworth and Lichfield buy in to what we are trying to 
achieve. 
 
I hope that this helps? 
 
Councillor R Billcliff asked the following supplementary question:- 
 
“How will the authority make it publicly clear this option remains available to the 
public when you go ahead with the green bin tax?” 
 
Councillor D Cook gave the following reply:- 
 
Most Council’s charge more than £36.00. This council is not in fifty percent of this 
in the country charging for green waste. What I would honestly say is do you 
recall when the recycling boxes were fetched in and we were told the public would 
go mad and that nobody would have it. Within a couple of months it was the 
norm. When waste went to a two weekly collections I was told the public would go 
mad but it became the norm. When boxes were changed for recycling bins this 
became the norm. There was no room in the garden but this became the norm 
and this will become the norm. It does rely on residents actually buying into this 
scheme. But on every single example that I have given you what the Council has 
chosen to do. We have talked to residents and helped them to understand what 
we are trying to do. Throwing green waste in your black bin ends up in landfill 
which is incredibly environmentally unfriendly. What we are trying to do is protect 
the environment. I would hope that thirty Councillors will encourage residents to 
buy into this scheme and not try to abuse it. 
 
 

25 ANNUAL REPORT ON THE TREASURY MANAGEMENT SERVICE AND 
ACTUAL PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2016/17  
 
 

Page 16



Council 12 September 2017 

 

 

17 
 

The Portfolio Holder for Assets and Finance informed Members that The Annual 
Treasury report is a requirement of the Council’s reporting procedures. 
It covers the Treasury activity for 2016/17 and the actual Prudential Indicators for 
2016/17. The report meets the requirements of both the CIPFA Code of Practice 
on Treasury Management and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in 
Local Authorities. The Council is required to comply with both Codes in 
accordance with Regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003. It also 
provides an opportunity to review the approved Treasury Management Strategy 
for the current year and enables Members to consider and approve any issues 
identified that require amendment. 

 

RESOLVED: That Members  

1 approved the actual 2016/17 Prudential Indicators within 
the report; and 

 

2 accepted the Treasury Management Stewardship 
Report for 2016/17 

 

 (Moved by Councillor R Pritchard and seconded by 
Councillor D Cook) 

 
 

26 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
 
RESOLVED: That members of the press and public be now excluded 

from the meeting on the grounds that the business 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) 
 

 (Moved by Councillor D Cook and seconded by 
Councillor R Pritchard) 

 
 

27 ROLES OF CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER AND HEAD OF PAID SERVICE  
 
 
The Leader of the Council seeking Members approval of the recommendations of 
the Appointments and Staffing Committee in relation to the posts of Interim Chief 
Operating Officer and Head of Paid Service in accordance with the Council 
Functions as detailed under Article 4 of the Constitution. 
 
RESOLVED: That the recommendations contained within the report 

be approved 
 

 (Moved by Councillor D Cook and seconded by 

Page 17



Council 12 September 2017 

 

 

18 
 

Councillor S Peaple) 
 
 

  

 The Mayor  
 

 

Page 18



 

 

1  
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 

EXTRAORDINARY COUNCIL 
HELD ON 12th SEPTEMBER 2017 

 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillors J Chesworth (Chair), P Thurgood (Vice-Chair), 

R Bilcliff, S Claymore, T Clements, D Cook, C Cooke, 
A Couchman, J Faulkner, R Ford, M Gant, M Greatorex, 
R Kingstone, A Lunn, T Madge, K Norchi, J Oates, M Oates, 
S Peaple, T Peaple, R Pritchard, R Rogers, P Standen, 
M Summers and M Thurgood 

 
The following officers were present: Anthony E Goodwin (Chief Executive), 
Andrew Barratt (Corporate Director Growth, Assets and Environment), Stefan 
Garner (Director of Finance), Anica Goodwin (Director - Transformation and 
Corporate Performance), Linda Ram (Public Relations Officer and Copywriter), 
Ryan Keyte (Senior Legal Officer) and Janice Clift (Democratic and Elections 
Officer) 
 
 

20 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors S Doyle, J Goodall, S 
Goodall and A James 
 
 

21 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 
Councillor C Cooke declared a Personal Interest in Item 22 of the agenda, his 
father Chris Cooke being a nominee for Alderman. Accordingly he left the 
Chamber during consideration of the following item 
 
 

22 ALDERMAN NOMINATION - CHRIS COOKE (SENIOR)  
 
 
RESOLVED: That pursuant to Section 249(5) of the Local 

Government Act 1972 the Council in recognition of his 
services admit the title of Alderman of the Borough to 
Chris Cooke (Senior) 
 

 (Moved by Councillor D Cook and seconded by 
Councillor S Peaple) 

 
 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 3



Council 12 September 2017 

 

 

2 
 

23 ALDERMAN NOMINATION - PETER SEEKINGS  
 
 
RESOLVED: That pursuant to Section 249(5) of the Local 

Government Act 1972 the Council in recognition of his 
services admit the title of Alderman of the Borough to 
Peter Seekings 
 

 (Moved by Councillor S Peaple and seconded by 
Councillor D Cook) 

 
 

  

 The Mayor  
 

 

Page 20



1 
 

COUNCIL 
 

THURSDAY 12TH DECEMBER 2017 
 

 

REPORT OF THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR ASSETS AND FINANCE 

 
 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY  MID-YEAR REVIEW REPORT 2017/18 

 
 

EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 

None 

 
PURPOSE 

 

To present to Members the Mid-year Review of the Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement and Annual Investment Strategy. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

That Council be requested to accept the Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement and Annual Investment Strategy Mid-year Review Report 2017/18. 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

This mid-year report has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice, 

and covers the following 

 

 An economic update for the first six months of 2017/18; 

 A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment 

Strategy; 

 The Council’s Capital Position (Prudential Indicators); 

 A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2017/18; 

 A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2017/18; 

 A review of any debt rescheduling undertaken during 2017/18; 

 A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 2017/18; 

 Revised CIPFA codes and Markets in Financial Instruments Directive II (MIFID II) 

 
The main issues for Members to note are: 
 
1. The Council has complied with the professional codes, statutes and guidance. 
 
2. There are no issues to report regarding non-compliance with the approved 

prudential indicators. 
 
3. The investment portfolio yield for the first six months of the year is 0.52% (0.59% for 

the same period in 2016/17) compared to the 3 Month LIBID benchmark rate of 
0.18% (0.38% for the same period in 2016/17).  

 
 
 Page 21

Agenda Item 7



2 
 

The aim of this report is to inform Members of the treasury and investment management 
issues to enable all Members to have ownership and understanding when making 
decisions on Treasury Management matters. In order to facilitate this, training on 
Treasury Management issues was most recently delivered for Members in October 
2015 and will be provided as and when required. 
 
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
All financial resource implications are detailed in the body of this report which links to 
the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy. 
 
LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND 
 
Risk is inherent in Treasury Management and as such a risk based approach has 
been adopted throughout the report with regard to Treasury Management processes. 

 

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 

 

None 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION   
 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice 
on Treasury Management (revised 2011) suggests that Members should be informed 
of Treasury Management activities at least twice a year, but preferably quarterly. This 
is the second monitoring report for 2017/18 presented to Members this year and 
therefore ensures the Council is embracing best practice. Cabinet also receives 
regular monitoring reports as part of the quarterly healthcheck on Treasury 
Management activities and risks. 
 
The Council operates a balanced budget, which broadly means cash raised during 
the year will meet its cash expenditure. Part of the Treasury Management operations 
ensure this cash flow is adequately planned, with surplus monies being invested in 
low risk counterparties, providing adequate liquidity initially before considering 
maximising investment return. 

The second main function of the Treasury Management service is the funding of the 
Council’s capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of 
the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure the Council can 
meet its capital spending operations. This management of longer term cash may 
involve arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses, 
and on occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk 
or cost objectives. 

Treasury Management is defined as: 
 
“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent 
with those risks.” 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



3 
 

Introduction 
 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice 
on Treasury Management (revised 2011) was adopted by this Council on 13th 
December 2012.  
 
The primary requirements of the Code are as follows:  

1. Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy Statement which 

sets out the policies and objectives of the Council’s Treasury Management 

activities. 

2. Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which set out the 

manner in which the Council will seek to achieve those policies and objectives. 

3. Receipt by the full Council of an annual Treasury Management Strategy 

Statement - including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue 

Provision Policy - for the year ahead, a Mid-year Review Report and an Annual 

Report (stewardship report) covering activities during the previous year. 

4. Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and monitoring 

Treasury Management policies and practices and for the execution and 

administration of Treasury Management decisions. 

5. Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of Treasury Management 

strategy and policies to a specific named body. For this Council the delegated 

body is the Audit and Governance Committee. 

This mid-year report has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of 

Practice, and covers the following: 

 An economic update for the first part of the 2017/18 financial year; 

 A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual 

Investment Strategy; 

 The Council’s Capital Position (Prudential Indicators); 

 A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2017/18; 

 A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2017/18; 

 A review of any debt rescheduling undertaken during 2017/18; 

 A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 2017/18. 

 
1. Economic Update 

1.1 UK 

After the UK economy surprised on the upside with strong growth in 2016, growth in 2017 

has been disappointingly weak; quarter 1 came in at only +0.3% (+1.7% y/y) and quarter 

2 was +0.3% (+1.5% y/y) which meant that growth in the first half of 2017 was the 

slowest for the first half of any year since 2012.  The main reason for this has been the 

sharp increase in inflation, caused by the devaluation of sterling after the referendum, 

feeding increases in the cost of imports into the economy.  This has caused, in turn, a 

reduction in consumer disposable income and spending power and so the services 

sector of the economy, accounting for around 75% of GDP, has seen weak growth as 

consumers cut back on their expenditure.  Page 23



4 
 

However, more recently there have been encouraging statistics from the manufacturing 

sector which is seeing strong growth, particularly as a result of increased demand for 

exports. It has helped that growth in the EU, our main trading partner, has improved 

significantly over the last year.  However, this sector only accounts for around 11% of 

GDP so expansion in this sector will have a much more muted effect on the average total 

GDP growth figure for the UK economy as a whole. 

 

The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) meeting of 14 September 2017 surprised 

markets and forecasters by suddenly switching to a much more aggressive tone in terms 

of its words around warning that Bank Rate will need to rise. The Bank of England 

Inflation Reports during 2017 have clearly flagged up that they expected CPI inflation to 

peak at just under 3% in 2017, before falling back to near to its target rate of 2% in two 

years’ time. Inflation actually came in at 2.9% in August, (this data was released on 12 

September), and so the Bank revised its forecast for the peak to over 3% at the 14 

September meeting MPC.  This marginal revision can hardly justify why the MPC 

became so aggressive with its wording; rather, the focus was on an emerging view that 

with unemployment falling to only 4.3%, the lowest level since 1975, and improvements in 

productivity being so weak, that the amount of spare capacity in the economy was 

significantly diminishing towards a point at which they now needed to take action.  In 

addition, the MPC took a more tolerant view of low wage inflation as this now looks like a 

common factor in nearly all western economies as a result of increasing globalisation.  

This effectively means that the UK labour faces competition from overseas labour e.g. in 

outsourcing work to third world countries, and this therefore depresses the negotiating 

power of UK labour. However, the Bank was also concerned that the withdrawal of the 

UK from the EU would effectively lead to a decrease in such globalisation pressures in 

the UK, and so would be inflationary over the next few years. 

 

The MPC increased Bank Rate to 0.5% in November. The big question is now whether 

this will be a one off increase or the start of a slow, but regular, increase in Bank Rate. As 

at the start of October, short sterling rates were indicating that financial markets do not 

expect a second increase until May 2018 with a third increase in November 2019.  

However, some forecasters are flagging up that they expect growth to improve 

significantly in 2017 and into 2018, as the fall in inflation will bring to an end the negative 

impact on consumer spending power while a strong export performance will compensate 

for weak services sector growth.  If this scenario were to materialise, then the MPC would 

have added reason to embark on a series of slow but gradual increases in Bank Rate 

during 2018. While there is so much uncertainty around the Brexit negotiations, consumer 

confidence, and business confidence to spend on investing, it is far too early to be 

confident about how the next two years will pan out. 

1.2 EU 

Economic growth in the EU, (the UK’s biggest trading partner), has been lacklustre 

for several years after the financial crisis despite the ECB eventually cutting its main 

rate to -0.4% and embarking on a massive programme of QE.  However, growth 

picked up in 2016 and now looks to have gathered ongoing substantial strength and 

momentum thanks to this stimulus.   
Page 24



5 
 

GDP growth was 0.5% in quarter 1 (2.0% y/y) and 0.6% in quarter (2.3% y/y).  

However, despite providing massive monetary stimulus, the European Central Bank 

is still struggling to get inflation up to its 2% target and in August inflation was 1.5%. It 

is therefore unlikely to start on an upswing in rates until possibly 2019. 

 

1.3 USA 

Growth in the American economy has been volatile in 2015 and 2016.  2017 is 

following that path again with quarter 1 coming in at only 1.2% but quarter 2 

rebounding to 3.1%, resulting in an overall annualised figure of 2.1% for the first half 

year. Unemployment in the US has also fallen to the lowest level for many years, 

reaching 4.4%, while wage inflation pressures, and inflationary pressures in general, 

have been building. The Fed has started on a gradual upswing in rates with three 

increases since December 2016; and there could be one more rate rise in 2017 

which would then lift the central rate to 1.25 – 1.50%. There could then be another 

four more increases in 2018. At its June meeting, the Fed strongly hinted that it would 

soon begin to unwind its $4.5 trillion balance sheet holdings of bonds and mortgage 

backed securities by reducing its reinvestment of maturing holdings. 

 

1.4 Japan and China 

Chinese economic growth has been weakening over successive years, despite 

repeated rounds of central bank stimulus; medium term risks are increasing. Major 

progress still needs to be made to eliminate excess industrial capacity and the stock 

of unsold property, and to address the level of non-performing loans in the banking 

and credit systems. 

Japan is struggling to stimulate consistent significant growth and to get inflation up to 

its target of 2%, despite huge monetary and fiscal stimulus. It is also making little 

progress on fundamental reform of the economy. 

1.5 Interest rate forecasts  

 
The Council’s treasury advisor, Link Asset Services (previously known as Capita 
Asset Services), has provided the following forecast: 

 

Dec-17 Mar-18 Jun-18 Sep-18 Dec-18 Mar-19 Jun-19 Sep-19 Dec-19 Mar-20 Jun-20 Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21

Bank Rate 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.75% 0.75% 0.75% 0.75% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25%

5yr PWLB Rate 1.50% 1.60% 1.60% 1.70% 1.80% 1.80% 1.90% 1.90% 2.00% 2.10% 2.10% 2.20% 2.30% 2.30%

10yr PWLB View 2.10% 2.20% 2.30% 2.40% 2.40% 2.50% 2.60% 2.60% 2.70% 2.70% 2.80% 2.90% 2.90% 3.00%

25yr PWLB View 2.80% 2.90% 3.00% 3.00% 3.10% 3.10% 3.20% 3.20% 3.30% 3.40% 3.50% 3.50% 3.60% 3.60%

50yr PWLB Rate 2.50% 2.60% 2.70% 2.80% 2.90% 2.90% 3.00% 3.00% 3.10% 3.20% 3.30% 3.30% 3.40% 3.40%  
 

As expected, the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) delivered a 0.25% increase in 
Bank Rate at its meeting on 2 November. This removed the emergency cut in August 
2016 after the EU referendum.  The MPC also gave forward guidance that they 
expected to increase Bank rate only twice more by 0.25% by 2020 to end at 1.00%.  
The Link Asset Services forecast as above includes increases in Bank Rate of 0.25% 
in November 2018, November 2019 and August 2020. 

Page 25



6 
 

Economic and interest rate forecasting remains difficult with so many external 

influences weighing on the UK. The above forecasts (and MPC decisions) will be 

liable to further amendment depending on how economic data and developments in 

financial markets transpire over the next year. Geopolitical developments, especially 

in the EU, could also have a major impact. Forecasts for average investment 

earnings beyond the three-year time horizon will be heavily dependent on economic 

and political developments.  

The overall balance of risks to economic recovery in the UK is probably to the 
downside, particularly with the current level of uncertainty over the final terms of 
Brexit.  

Downside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates currently 
include:  

 Bank of England monetary policy takes action too quickly over the next three 

years to raise Bank Rate and causes UK economic growth, and increases in 

inflation, to be weaker than we currently anticipate.  

 Geopolitical risks, especially North Korea, but also in Europe and the Middle 

East, which could lead to increasing safe haven flows.  

 A resurgence of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis, possibly Italy, due to its high 

level of government debt, low rate of economic growth and vulnerable banking 

system. 

 Weak capitalisation of some European banks. 

 The result of the October 2017 Austrian general election is likely to result in a 

strongly anti-immigrant coalition government.  In addition, the new Czech prime 

minister is expected to be Andrej Babis who is strongly against EU migrant 

quotas and refugee policies. Both developments could provide major impetus to 

other, particularly former Communist bloc countries, to coalesce to create a major 

block to progress on EU integration and centralisation of EU policy.  This, in turn, 

could spill over into impacting the Euro, EU financial policy and financial markets. 

 Rising protectionism under President Trump 

 A sharp Chinese downturn and its impact on emerging market countries 

The potential for upside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates, 
especially for longer term PWLB rates include: - 

 The Bank of England is too slow in its pace and strength of increases in Bank 

Rate and, therefore, allows inflation pressures to build up too strongly within the 

UK economy, which then necessitates a later rapid series of increases in Bank 

Rate faster than we currently expect.  

 UK inflation returning to sustained significantly higher levels causing an increase 

in the inflation premium inherent to gilt yields.  

 The Fed causing a sudden shock in financial markets through misjudging the 

pace and strength of increases in its Fed.  

 
Page 26



7 
 

Funds Rate and in the pace and strength of reversal of Quantitative Easing, 

which then leads to a fundamental reassessment by investors of the relative risks 

of holding bonds, as opposed to equities.  This could lead to a major flight from 

bonds to equities and a sharp increase in bond yields in the US, which could then 

spill over into impacting bond yields around the world. 

 
2. Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 

Update 

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2017/18 was approved by 

Council on 21st February 2017.  

 

There are no policy changes to the TMSS; the details in this report update the 

position in the light of the updated economic position and budgetary changes already 

approved. 

 

3. The Council’s Capital Position (Prudential Indicators) 

This part of the report is structured to update: 

 The Council’s capital expenditure plans; 

 How these plans are being financed; 

 The impact of the changes in the capital expenditure plans on the prudential 

indicators  and the underlying need to borrow; and 

 Compliance with the limits in place for borrowing activity. 

3.1  Prudential Indicator for Capital Expenditure 

This table below shows the revised estimates for capital expenditure and the changes 

since the capital programme was agreed at the Budget.   

Capital 
Expenditure 
by Service 

  

2017/18 
Original 

Programme 

Budget 
B’fwd 
from    

2016/17 

Virements 
to 

Programme 
in Year 

Total 
2017/18 
Budget 

Actual 
Spend @ 
Period 6  

Predicted 
Outturn 

2017/18 
Revised 

Estimate* 

 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

General Fund 2.421 2.731 0.245 5.397 0.760 3.236 4.511 

HRA 16.413 9.575 - 25.988 4.918 11.961 25.983 

Total 18.834 12.306 0.245 31.385 5.678 15.197 30.494 

        

* Includes potential expenditure slippage into 2018/19 

3.2 Changes to the Financing of the Capital Programme   

The following table draws together the main strategy elements of the capital 

expenditure plans (above), highlighting the original supported and unsupported 

elements of the capital programme, and the expected financing arrangements of this 

capital expenditure. Any borrowing element of the table increases the underlying 

indebtedness of the Council by way of the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), 

although this will be reduced in part by revenue charges for the repayment of debt 

Page 27



8 
 

(the Minimum Revenue Provision).  

This direct borrowing need may also be supplemented by maturing debt and other 

treasury requirements. 

 

Capital Expenditure 

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 

Capital 
Programme 

Predicted 
Outturn 

Budget * 

£m £m £m 

Unsupported 4.972 0.100 8.214 

Supported 13.862 15.097 23.171 

Total spend 18.834 15.197 31.385 

Financed by:       

 Grants - Disabled Facilities  0.224 0.404 0.404 

 Coalfields Grant  - 0.092 0.222 

 Section 106's  0.100 0.239 0.239 

 GF Receipts  0.222 0.407 0.462 

 GF Reserve  0.180 0.259 0.519 

 Sale of Council House Receipts  0.114 0.204 0.341 

 HRA Receipts  0.500 0.513 0.513 

 HLF Assembly Rooms Lottery  0.316 0.215 0.344 

 Grants - Assembly Rooms (SLGF)  1.264 0.809 1.334 

 Public Contributions (Assembly 
Rooms)  

- - 0.025 

 HLF/SCC/Donation - Castle 
Mercian Trail  

- 0.508 0.508 

 MRR  4.213 4.192 6.408 

 HRA 1-4-1 Replacements Receipts  0.650 0.879 0.879 

 HRA Reserve  5.009 2.564 7.161 

HRA Regeneration Fund 1.070 3.566 3.566 

HCA Grant - 0.246 0.246 

Total Financing 13.862 15.097 23.171 

Borrowing need 4.972 0.100 8.214 

* includes potential expenditure slippage into 2018/19 

 

3.3 Changes to the Prudential Indicators for the Capital Financing Requirement, External 

Debt and the Operational Boundary 

The following table shows the CFR, which is the underlying external need to incur 

borrowing for a capital purpose. It also shows the expected debt position over the 

period. This is termed the Operational Boundary. 

Prudential Indicator – Capital Financing Requirement 

We are on target to achieve the original forecast Capital Financing Requirement. 

 

 

 
Page 28



9 
 

 

Prudential Indicator – the Operational Boundary for External Debt 

 Operational Boundary 

2016/17 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 

Outturn  
Capital 

Programme 
Projected 
Outturn 

Budget* 

£m £m £m £m 

CFR – Non Housing 0.943 1.885 0.885 0.885 

CFR – Housing 68.041 75.255 68.041 76.255 

Total CFR 68.984 77.140 68.926 77.140 

Net movement in CFR (0.058) 4.914 (0.058) 8.156 

Operational Boundary         

Expected Borrowing 63.060 65.060 63.060 63.060 

Total debt  31 March 63.060 65.060 63.060 63.060 

 

3.4 Limits to Borrowing Activity 

The first key control over the treasury activity is a prudential indicator to ensure that 

over the medium term, net borrowing (borrowings less investments) will only be for a 

capital purpose. Gross external borrowing should not, except in the short term, 

exceed the total of CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional 

CFR for 2017/18 and next two financial years. This allows some flexibility for limited 

early borrowing for future years. The Council has approved a policy for borrowing in 

advance of need which will be adhered to if this proves prudent.   

 

Net Borrowing to CFR  

2016/17 
2017/18 
Original 

2017/18 
Projected 

2017/18 
Budget 

Outturn  Estimate Outturn   

£m £m £m £m 

Gross borrowing 63.060 65.060 63.060 63.060 

Less investments 51.211 58.143 57.408 49.194 

Net borrowing 11.849 6.917 5.653 13.867 

CFR (year end position) 68.984 77.140 68.926 77.140 

 

The Executive Director Corporate Services reports that no difficulties are envisaged 

for the current or future years in complying with this prudential indicator.   

A further prudential indicator controls the overall level of borrowing. This is the Authorised 

Limit which represents the limit beyond which borrowing is prohibited, and needs to be set 

and revised by Members.  It reflects the level of borrowing which, while not desired, could 

be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term.  It is the expected 

maximum borrowing need with some headroom for unexpected movements. This is the 

statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 2003.  

 

 
Page 29



10 
 

 

Authorised Limit for External 
Debt 

2017/18 
Original 
Indicator 

Current 
Position 

2017/18 
Revised 
Indicator 

Borrowing 84.292 84.292 84.292 

Total 84.292 84.292 84.292 

 

4. Investment Portfolio 2017/18 

In accordance with the Code, it is the Council’s priority to ensure security of capital and 

liquidity and to obtain an appropriate level of return which is consistent with the Council’s 

risk appetite. As set out in Section 1, it is a very difficult investment market in terms of 

earning the level of interest rates commonly seen in previous decades as rates are very 

low and in line with the current 0.50% Bank Rate. The continuing potential for a re-

emergence of a Eurozone sovereign debt crisis, and its impact on banks, prompts a low 

risk and short-term strategy.  Given this risk environment and the fact that increases in 

Bank Rate are likely to be gradual and unlikely to return to the levels seen in previous 

decades, investment returns are likely to remain low.  

The Council held £64.5m of investments as at 30th September 2017 (£50.119m at 

31st March 2017) and the investment portfolio yield for the first six months of the year 

is 0.52% against a benchmark of the 3 months LIBID of 0.18%. A full list of 

investments held as at 30th September 2017 is detailed in APPENDIX 1. 

 

The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2017/18 is £260k, and performance for 

the year is projected to be £26k below budget, due to continuing low interest rates. 

 
CIPFA Benchmarking Club 

 

The Council is a member of the CIPFA Treasury Management Benchmarking Club 

which is a means to assess our performance over the year against other members. 

Our average return for In House Investments for the period October 2016 to 

September 2017 was 0.5% compared to the group average of 0.6% (information from 

CIPFA Benchmarking Report Q2 2017/18). This is considered to be a reasonable 

result in light of the current financial climate, our lower levels of deposits/funds and 

shorter investment time-lines due to Banking sector uncertainty, when compared to 

other Authorities. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This can be analysed further into the following categories: 

 
Page 30



11 
 

  Average Balance Invested Average Annual Return Received 

  
Category 

£m % 

Tamworth 
Borough 
Council 

CIPFA 
Benchmarking 

Club 

Tamworth 
Borough 
Council 

CIPFA 
Benchmarking 

Club 

Fixed Investments 
(up to 30 days) 

- 0.2 - 0.3 

Fixed Investments 
(between 31 and 90 
days) 

- 1.2 - 0.3 

Fixed Investments 
(between 91 and 364 
days) 

29.3 58.4 0.5 0.7 

Fixed Investments 
(between 1 year and 3 
years) 

- 15.4 - 1.0 

Fixed Investments 
(over 3 years) 

- 12.3 - 2.2 

Callable and 
Structured Deposits 

- 11.3 - 1.7 

Notice Accounts 12.0 22.4 0.7 0.4 

Money Market 
Funds (Constant Net 
Asset Value) 

9.5 24.2 0.2 0.3 

Money Market 
Funds (Variable Net 
Asset Value) 

- 29.2 - 0.6 

DMADF - 0.5 - 0.1 

CDs, Gilts and 
Bonds 

6.0 24.7 0.5 1.9 

Average of all 
investments 
(Managed in 
House) 

56.8 148.0 0.5 0.6 

 

The data above and graphs below display that despite the Council being a small 

investor in the markets, performance is only marginally lower in those areas where 

both the Council and other member authorities invest. 

 

The main variances arise from longer term fixed investments (in excess of 1 year) 

and instruments that the council do not currently get involved with i.e. Callable and 

Structured Deposits which are longer term deposits which (in line with our use of the 

Link Asset Services methodology and our approved specified limits in our Treasury 

Management strategy) are currently prohibited for Tamworth Borough Council and 
Page 31



12 
 

affirms our ‘low appetite for risk’ in the continuing unsettled markets.  

 

 
 

Investment Counterparty Criteria 

 

The current investment counterparty criteria selection approved in the TMSS and as 

approved by Council on the 21st February 2017 will meet the requirement of the 

Treasury Management function.   

5. Borrowing 

The Council’s estimated revised capital financing requirement (CFR) for 2017/18 is 

£68.926m. The CFR denotes the Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital 

purposes. If the CFR is positive the Council may borrow from the PWLB or the market 

(external borrowing) or from internal balances on a temporary basis (internal 

borrowing). The balance of external and internal borrowing is generally driven by 

market conditions. Table 3.4 shows the Council will have estimated borrowings of 

Page 32



13 
 

£63.060m and has utilised £5.866m of cash flow funds in lieu of borrowing. This is a 

prudent and cost effective approach in the current economic climate but will require 

ongoing monitoring in the event that upside risk to gilt yields prevails. 

 

In the first half of the year the Council had no PWLB debt maturing. The capital 

programme requires additional unsupported borrowing of £8.2m.  

The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position. This means that the 
capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement), has not been fully 
funded with loan debt, as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances and cash 
flow has been used as a temporary measure. This strategy is prudent as investment 
returns are low and counterparty risk is relatively high. 

Use of internal funds is a more efficient use of resources as borrowing rates are 
significantly higher than investment returns. However, as and when resources are 
depleted or utilised, the opportunity to use internal balances will decrease and 
interest charges will increase. 

Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will be 
adopted with the 2017/18 treasury operations.  The Director of Finance will monitor  
interest rates in financial markets and adopt a pragmatic approach to changing 
circumstances: 

* if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long and short 
term rates (e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around recession or risks of 
deflation), then long term borrowings will be postponed, and potential 
rescheduling from fixed rate funding into short term borrowing will be considered. 

 
* if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in long and 

short term rates than that currently forecast, perhaps arising from a sudden 
increase in inflation risks, then the portfolio position will be re-appraised with the 
likely action that fixed rate funding will be drawn whilst interest rates are still lower 
than they will be in the next few years. 
 

Given the current economic forecasts for the coming years, it is unlikely that any 

additional borrowing will be undertaken during 2017/18. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The table and graph below show the movement in PWLB (Certainty Rates) for the 

Page 33



14 
 

first six months of the year to date: 

 

PWLB certainty rates 1 April 2017 to 30 September 2017 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6. Debt Rescheduling 

Debt rescheduling opportunities have been very limited in the current economic 

climate given the consequent structure of interest rates, and following the increase in 

the margin added to gilt yields which has impacted PWLB new borrowing rates since 

October 2010. No debt rescheduling has therefore been undertaken to date in the 

current financial year. 

 

7. Revised CIPFA Codes and MIFID II 

 

7.1 Revised CIPFA Codes 

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) is currently 
conducting an exercise to consult local authorities on revising the Treasury 
Management Code and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes, and the Prudential Code. 
CIPFA is aiming to issue the revised codes during November.   
 

Page 34



15 
 

A particular focus of this exercise is how to deal with local authority investments 
which are not treasury type investments e.g. by investing in purchasing property in 
order to generate income for the authority at a much higher level than can be 
attained by treasury investments.  One recommendation is that local authorities 
should produce a new report to members to give a high level summary of the overall 
capital strategy and to enable members to see how the cash resources of the 
authority have been apportioned between treasury and non treasury investments. 
Officers are monitoring developments and will report to members when the new 
codes have been agreed and issued and on the likely impact on this authority. 

 
7.2 MIFID II 
 
MIFID is the EU legislation that regulates firms who provide services to clients linked 
to financial instruments and it is now being revised to strengthen consumer protection 
and improve the functioning of markets in light of the 2008 financial crisis. 
 
The EU has now set a deadline of 3 January 2018 for the introduction of regulations 
under MIFID II.  These regulations will govern the relationship that financial 
institutions conducting lending and borrowing transactions will have with local 
authorities from that date.  This will have little effect on this authority apart from 
having to fill in forms sent by each institution dealing with this authority and for each 
type of investment instrument we use apart from for cash deposits with banks and 
building societies.  

 

REPORT AUTHOR 
 

Please contact Stefan Garner, Director of Finance, extension 242, or Jo Goodfellow, 

Management Accountant , extension 241. 

 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Background Papers  - Local Government Act 2003 

  
CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management in Public Services 2011 

  
Annual Report on the Treasury Management 
Service and Actual Prudential Indicators 2016/17 
–Council 12th September 2017 

  
Treasury Management Strategy & Prudential 
Indicators Report 2017/18 - Council 21st  
February 2017 

  
Budget & Medium Term Financial Strategy 
2017/18 - Council 21st February 2017 

  Financial Healthcheck Period 6, September 2017 

  
CIPFA Treasury Management Benchmarking 
Club Report Quarter 2, September 2017 

 
APPENDICES 

 
APPENDIX 1 Current Investment List 

APPENDIX 1 
Investments held as at 30th September 2017:  Page 35



16 
 

 
Borrower Deposit      

£m 
Rate           

% 
From To Notice 

 

Royal Bank of Scotland 2.00 0.65% 31-Jan-17 30-Jan-18 - 

Lloyds Bank 2.00 0.55% 03-Apr-17 03-Oct-17 - 

Lloyds Bank 2.00 0.55% 03-Apr-17 03-Oct-17 - 

Royal Bank of Scotland 2.00 0.63% 05-Apr-17 04-Apr-18 - 

Lloyds Bank 2.00 0.55% 10-Apr-17 10-Oct-17 - 

Royal Bank of Scotland 2.00 0.67% 11-Apr-17 10-Apr-18 - 

Sumitomo Mitsui 
Banking Corporation 

Europe Ltd 
2.00 0.36% 18-Apr-17 18-Oct-17 - 

Lloyds Bank 1.00 0.55% 28-Apr-17 30-Oct-17 - 

Nationwide 1.00 0.37% 09-May-17 09-Nov-17 - 

Nationwide 1.00 0.37% 31-May-17 30-Nov-17 - 

Lloyds Bank 1.00 0.55% 01-Jun-17 01-Dec-17 - 

Royal Bank Of Scotland 2.00 0.61% 05-Jun-17 25-May-18 - 

Bank of Scotland 2.00 0.36% 30-Jun-17 02-Jan-18 - 

Santander UK plc 8.00 0.70% 03-Jul-17 03-Jan-18 - 

Royal Bank Of Scotland 2.00 0.6125% 10-Jul-17 29-Jun-18 - 

Santander UK plc 2.00 0.70% 13-Jul-17 15-Jan-18 - 

Barclays Bank 2.00 0.34% 17-Jul-17 17-Jan-18 - 

Lloyds Bank 1.00 0.36% 09-Aug-17 09-Feb-18 - 

Bank of Scotland 2.00 0.36% 10-Aug-17 12-Feb-18 - 

Coventry BS 2.00 0.35% 05-Sep-17 05-Mar-18 - 

Coventry BS 4.00 0.35% 13-Sep-17 13-Mar-18 - 

Barclays Bank 3.00 0.31% 13-Sep-17 13-Mar-18 - 

Nationwide 2.00 0.30% 13-Sep-17 13-Mar-18 - 

Goldman Sachs 
International Bank 

2.00 0.665% 15-Dec-16 - 180 day 

Goldman Sachs 
International Bank 

1.00 0.79% 10-Feb-17 - 180 day 

Goldman Sachs 
International Bank 

1.00 0.755% 06-Mar-17 - 180 day 

Goldman Sachs 
International Bank 

4.00 0.79% 13-Mar-17 - 180 day 

Goldman Sachs 
International Bank 

2.00 0.775% 05-Apr-17 - 180 day 

MMF – PSDF 4.47 0.18* - - On call 

Total 64.47 0.52 (avg) - - - 

 
* Interest rate fluctuates daily dependant on the funds investment portfolio, rate quoted is approximate 7 day average. 

 
 

 Page 36



17 
 

 
 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL 
 

TUESDAY, 12 DECEMBER 2017 
 

 
 

REPORT OF THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR ASSETS AND FINANCE 

 
 

LOCAL COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME 2018/19 ONWARDS AND 
CONSULTATION RESULTS 

 

EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 

This proposal is not exempt information for the purposes of Part 1 of Schedule 12 (A) 
of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
 
 

PURPOSE 
 
To advise Members of the results and feedback from the recently undertaken consultation on 
the proposed Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme from 2018 onwards.  To review the 
consultation feedback when considering potential changes to be applied in the 2018/19 
onwards Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme; 
 
To advise members that the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme for working age 
customers for 2018/19 should include continued alignment to Applicable Amounts with those 
of Housing Benefit; 
 
That Council endorses the proposed change, moderately supported by the consultation 
results, that  Council Tax Reduction awards will disregard in full Bereavement Support 
Payments. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1    That Council consider the results of the public consultation on the current 

scheme, carried out 18 August to 10 November 2017, and endorse or otherwise 
the proposed recommended change detailed below: 

 
2        The base scheme goes forward with the following; 
 

a) That the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme for working age customers 
for 2018/19 will continue to be aligned to Applicable Amounts with those of 
Housing Benefit, and 

 
b) That Council Tax Reduction awards will disregard in full Bereavement Support 

Payments. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39

Agenda Item 8



 
 
 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This report details the key issues arising from the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme. 
 
The Welfare Reform Act abolished Council Tax Benefit from 1 April 2013.  It was replaced by 
a new Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme for working age customers.  A national scheme 
of regulations was introduced for pensioners, which mirrors the obsolete Council Tax Benefit 
Scheme. 
 
Grant funding was reduced and is distributed by the Department for Communities and Local 
Government rather than the Department for Work and Pensions.  Outturn on the 2016/17 
scheme is £3.98m of which the Authority’s share was £429k (10.8% of the impact on the 
Collection Fund).  At inception, the scheme design was modelled to ensure that the Authority 
complied with the Central Government requirement to achieve a 10% reduction in benefit 
cost but without increasing the burden of cost to the Council tax Payer.  However, grant 
funding predictions are expected to reduce further in future years and future years’ Revenue 
Support Grant (RSG) projections indicate an ongoing reduction in grant funding to the 
Authority from 2018/19 and will mean that RSG will cease to be paid by 2020 and that the 
Council will have to fund the scheme from its own resources and retained Business Rates 
income in the future.    
 
The impact of grant funding and expenditure is closely monitored on a regular basis to 
identify whether the scheme is achieving its objectives but also not increasing cost burdens 
to the Medium Term Financial Strategy. The current maximum level of award under the 
existing scheme is 75%.  Current financial modelling indicates that although grant levels are 
reducing the scheme maxima should not be changed for the 2018/19 scheme consultation as 
it would add further potential hardship to claimants.  This position is under regular review. 
Members should be aware of the impact of the Central Government Grant reductions when 
formulating the scheme for 2018/19 as any subsequent changes to the scheme governance 
arrangements, not consulted on would require a further consultation exercise. 
 
Continued alignment of the scheme with applicable amounts for the Housing Benefit scheme 
should be considered.  This is not a legislative requirement for those of working age, but a 
decision for this Council.  This will prevent confusion between schemes and reduce 
administrative burdens.  Furthermore, it would reflect any cost of living rises allowed by the 
Government. 
 

In compliance with the above, a web based consultation exercise was carried out between 
18 August to 10 November 2017. The results are attached at Appendix 1.  Local Community 
Groups were notified of the consultation and two press releases also encouraged responses. 
92 responses were received. The proposal to disregard in full Bereavement Support 
payments from Council Tax Reduction was moderately supported.  
 

OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
The current scheme for most working age customers bases an award on a maximum of 75% 
of their Council Tax liability.  Those who receive a Severe Disability Premium, or who have a 
disabled child and those who receive a War Widows/War Disability Pension or Armed Forces 
Compensation Scheme payment have their awards based on 100% of their liability. 
 
Pensioners also continue, under the Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed 
Requirements) (England) Regulations 2012, to have their awards based on 100% of their 
Council Tax liability. 
 

Page 40



Appendix 1 confirms that current policy principles and the proposed change to disregard 
Bereavement Support Payments in full are supported. 
 
 

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
Council Tax Benefit subsidy awarded for 2012/13 was £5.38m.  The current scheme was 
modelled on delivering an estimated benefit reduction in the region of £700k for 2013/14, 
necessitated by grant cuts of 10% and protection for Pensioners and other vulnerable 
groups.  The final amount awarded for 2013/14 was £4.427m, £4.156m for 2014/15,  £4.04m 
for 2015/16 and £3.98m for 2016/17. 
 
Latest figures confirm that £3.97m has so far been awarded in Local Council Tax Reduction 
(LCTR) for 2017/18, to both working age and pensioner customers.  The live caseload has 
reduced by approximately 15% since April 2013, which is attributable to customers finding 
employment, becoming financially self sufficient and contributes to the lesser amount now 
awarded.  Furthermore, welfare reforms have also reduced the amount awarded to some 
claimants who are no longer entitled to the Severe Disability Premium, thus their award is 
now based on a maximum of 75% rather than 100% of their Council Tax liability. 
 
It is impossible to predict what the increased Council Tax Reduction awards will be where the 
claimant receives a Bereavement Support Payment.  However it is envisaged that the costs 
will be nominal.  
 
 
 

LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND 
 
The Department for Communities and Local Government have confirmed that consultation 
on the scheme is not required annually if it is not amended.  However, the Council has 
decided it wise to consult even when changes are not proposed.  Notwithstanding this, as an 
amendment to the scheme is proposed for 2018/19, consultation was mandatory for the 
2018/19 scheme.   
 
Appendix 1 confirms the public consultation results, gauging views on each of the current 
policy elements of the scheme as well as views on proposed changes. 
 
Section 13 A(2) and Schedule 1A of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as well as 
Schedule 1A, paragraph 16 of the Local Government Finance Act 2012 legislate that the 
scheme must be agreed annually by full Council. 
 
Full Equality Impact Assessments were considered and taken into account when the scheme 
was initially finalised and agreed.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
Funding for the replacement of the previous Council Tax Benefit scheme was changed 
from AMEY (unrestricted reimbursement of Council Tax Benefit subsidy) to DEL 
(restricted, pre allocated grant figure).  The Council must be aware that there must 
continue to be a contingency if, for instance, a major local employer goes administration.  

Page 41



 

 
 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION   
 
The Welfare Reform Act 2012 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/5/pdfs/ukpga_20120005_en.pdf 
 

The Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) (England) (Regulations) 
2012 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2885/pdfs/uksi_20122885_en.pdf 
 
 
 

REPORT AUTHOR 
 
Jane Smith x355/J Wheatley x252 
 
 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2013/14 Report, presented to Council on 13th 

December 2012 http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=2548 
 
Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2014/15 Report, presented to Council on 17th 

December 2013 http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=3849 
 
Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2015/16 report, presented to Council on 16th 

December 2014 
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/documents/s10311/LOCAL%20COUNCIL%20TAX%20RE
DUCTION%20SCHEME%20FROM%20201516.pdf 
 
Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2016/17 report, presented to Council on 15th 
December 2015  
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/documents/s12836/Local%20Council%20Tax%20Reducti
on%20Scheme%202016%20onwards.pdf 
 
Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2017/18 report, presented to Council on 13th 
December 2016 

http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/documents/s15217/Local%20Council%20Tax%20
Reduction%20Scheme%20201718%20onwards.pdf 
 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme Consultation Summary report 2017 
Appendix 2 Council Tax Reduction Working Age Expenditure summary 
Appendix 3 Council Tax Reduction Caseload summary 
Appendix 4 Equality Impact Assessment  
 
 

Page 42

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/5/pdfs/ukpga_20120005_en.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2885/pdfs/uksi_20122885_en.pdf
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=2548
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=3849
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/documents/s10311/LOCAL%20COUNCIL%20TAX%20REDUCTION%20SCHEME%20FROM%20201516.pdf
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/documents/s10311/LOCAL%20COUNCIL%20TAX%20REDUCTION%20SCHEME%20FROM%20201516.pdf
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/documents/s12836/Local%20Council%20Tax%20Reduction%20Scheme%202016%20onwards.pdf
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/documents/s12836/Local%20Council%20Tax%20Reduction%20Scheme%202016%20onwards.pdf
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/documents/s15217/Local%20Council%20Tax%20Reduction%20Scheme%20201718%20onwards.pdf
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/documents/s15217/Local%20Council%20Tax%20Reduction%20Scheme%20201718%20onwards.pdf


�� 

����� 

 Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme  
 Consultation Summary Report 2017 
     

Produced by  On behalf of 

Page 43



�Ϯ 

 

�Ê�çÃ�Äã���ã�®½Ý 
dŚŝƐ�ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ďĞŚĂůĨ�ŽĨ�dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚ��ŽƌŽƵŐŚ�
�ŽƵŶĐŝů�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�dĞĂŵ͘ 

Title >ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ͕��ŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ͕�ϮϬϭϳ 
Date created EŽǀĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϳ 
Description dŚĞ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚ�ŝƐ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚ��ŽƌŽƵŐŚ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ 

ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ůŽĐĂů�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ƚĂǆ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƚĞĚ�
ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ŝŶ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ƐŝŶĐĞ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϯ͘� 

Produced by ,ĞĂƚŚĞƌ��ŽůůŝĞƌ͕�ZĞƐĞĂƌĐŚ��Ž-ŽƌĚŝŶĂƚŽƌ͕�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�dĞĂŵͬ^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ͕�'ŽǀĞƌŶĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�
�ŚĂŶŐĞ͕�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů 
dĞů͗�Ϭϭϳϴϱ�ϮϳϳϰϱϬ�������ŵĂŝů͗�ŚĞĂƚŚĞƌ͘ĐŽůůŝĞƌΛƐƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ͘ŐŽǀ͘ƵŬ 

Geographical coverage dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚ��ŽƌŽƵŐŚ 
Usage statement dŚŝƐ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐƚ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ�ŽĨ�dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚ��ŽƌŽƵŐŚ��ŽƵŶĐŝů͘�/Ĩ�ǇŽƵ�ǁŝƐŚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƉƌŽĚƵĐĞ�

ƚŚŝƐ�ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚ�ĞŝƚŚĞƌ�ŝŶ�ǁŚŽůĞ͕�Žƌ�ŝŶ�ƉĂƌƚ͕�ƉůĞĂƐĞ�ĂĐŬŶŽǁůĞĚŐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�
ĂƵƚŚŽƌ�;ƐͿ͘ 

Disclaimer ^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů͕�ǁŚŝůĞ�ďĞůŝĞǀŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉƵďůŝĐĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�
ĐŽƌƌĞĐƚ͕�ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�ŐƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ�ŝƚƐ�ĂĐĐƵƌĂĐǇ�ŶŽƌ�ĚŽĞƐ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ĂĐĐĞƉƚ�ĂŶǇ�
ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŶǇ�ĚŝƌĞĐƚ�Žƌ�ŝŶĚŝƌĞĐƚ�ůŽƐƐ�Žƌ�ĚĂŵĂŐĞ�Žƌ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĐŽŶƐĞƋƵĞŶĐĞƐ͕�ŚŽǁĞǀĞƌ�
ĂƌŝƐŝŶŐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƐƵĐŚ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ƐƵƉƉůŝĞĚ͘ 

Page 44



�ϯ 
 

CONTENTS 
dŝƚůĞ�                WĂŐĞ 
�ŽĐƵŵĞŶƚ��ĞƚĂŝůƐ�             Ϯ 
�ŽŶƚĞŶƚƐ�               ϯ 
ϭ͘��ǆĞĐƵƟǀĞ�^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�             ϰ  
Ϯ͘�/ŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƟŽŶ͕�DĞƚŚŽĚŽůŽŐǇ�ĂŶĚ�ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�WƌŽĮůĞ�       ϲ 
ϯ͘�ZĞƐƵůƚƐ͗�<ĞǇ�WƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞƐ�            ϴ  
ϰ͘�ZĞƐƵůƚƐ͗�WŽůŝĐŝĞƐ�             ϴ  

· WŽůŝĐǇ�ϭ͗�>ĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶĞƌƐ͕�ĚŝƐĂďůĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĂŐĞ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�  ϴ  
· WŽůŝĐǇ�Ϯ͗�>ĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ďĞŶĞĮƚ�ĨŽƌ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĂŐĞ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�       ϵ  
· WŽůŝĐǇ�ϯ͗��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ�ďĂŶĚ�       ϵ  
· WŽůŝĐǇ�ϰ͗��ŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�^ĞĐŽŶĚ��ĚƵůƚ�ZĞďĂƚĞ�        ϭϬ  
· WŽůŝĐǇ�ϱ͗��ŽŶƟŶƵŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĚŝƐƌĞŐĂƌĚ�ĐŚŝůĚĐĂƌĞ�ĐŽƐƚƐ�       ϭϬ  
· WŽůŝĐǇ�ϲ͗��ůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐĂǀŝŶŐƐ�ĂůůŽǁĞĚ�       ϭϭ  
· WŽůŝĐǇ�ϳ͗��ŽŶƟŶƵŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĞǆĐůƵĚĞ��ŚŝůĚ��ĞŶĞĮƚ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�      ϭϭ  
· WŽůŝĐǇ�ϴ͗��ŝƐƌĞŐĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ŵĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂƐ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ�      ϭϮ  
· WŽůŝĐǇ�ϵ͗��ŽŶƟŶƵŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ĐůĂŝŵŝŶŐ�Ă�^ĞǀĞƌĞ��ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�WƌĞŵŝƵŵ�   ϭϮ  
· WŽůŝĐǇ�ϭϬ͗�EŽŶ�ĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ͛Ɛ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ďŝůů�    ϭϯ 
· WŽůŝĐǇ�ϭϭ͗��ĂĐŬĚĂƟŶŐ�ĐůĂŝŵƐ�           ϭϯ 
· WŽůŝĐǇ�ϭϮ͗�dĞŵƉŽƌĂƌǇ�ĂďƐĞŶĐĞ�ĐůĂŝŵƐ�;ǁŚĞŶ�ĂďƌŽĂĚͿ�       ϭϰ 
· WƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ĨŽƌ�ĚŝƐƌĞŐĂƌĚŝŶŐ��ĞƌĞĂǀĞŵĞŶƚ�^ƵƉƉŽƌƚ�WĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�     ϭϰ 

ϱ͘�/ŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�            ϭϱ  
ϲ͘��ƉƉĞŶĚŝǆ�ϭ͗��ďŽƵƚ�zŽƵ͕�ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽĮůĞ�        17  
ϳ͘��ƉƉĞŶĚŝǆ�Ϯ͗��ĞŵŽŐƌĂƉŚŝĐ�ŵŽŶŝƚŽƌŝŶŐ�ƋƵĞƐƟŽŶƐ        ϭϴ 
 

Page 45



�ϰ 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

  

͚,/',͛�>�s�>�K&��E�KZ^�D�Ed��;й�ĂŐƌĞĞŝŶŐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ŝƐ�͚ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ͛Ϳ 

/Ŷ�ƚŽƚĂů͕�ϵϮ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ�ƐŚĂƌĞĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ǀŝĞǁƐ�ŝŶ�dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚ��ŽƌŽƵŐŚ��ŽƵŶĐŝů͛Ɛ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽŶ�ŝƚƐ�>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�
dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ͘�dŚĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ƐƵďŵŝƫŶŐ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ǀŝĞǁƐ�ĂƐ�Ă�͚ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚ͕͛�͚ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚ͛�Žƌ�
͚ĨƌŝĞŶĚͬƌĞůĂƟǀĞ�ŽĨ�Ă�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚ͛͘�tŚŝůƐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ĐĂŶŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ƐƚĂƟƐƟĐĂůůǇ�ƌŽďƵƐƚ͕�ƚŚĞǇ�ĚŽ�
ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ŵĞĂŶŝŶŐĨƵů�ŝŶƐŝŐŚƚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ͕�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞ͘ 
WƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞƐ͗�dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�Ă�͚ŚŝŐŚ͛�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ďŽƚŚ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ϴϲй�ĂŐƌĞĞŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŬĞǇ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞ�ϭ͗�
͚�ǀĞƌǇ�ŚŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĂŐĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ƉĂǇ�ƐŽŵĞƚŚŝŶŐ�ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ�ƚŚĞŝƌ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ďŝůů͛�ĂŶĚ�
ϴϰй�ĂŐƌĞĞŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŬĞǇ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞ�Ϯ͗�͚dŚĞ�>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ĞŶĐŽƵƌĂŐĞ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƚŽ�
ǁŽƌŬ͛͘� 
WŽůŝĐŝĞƐ͗�dŚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ĞŶĚŽƌƐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂƩƌŝďƵƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĞĂĐŚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ�ǁĂƐ�ǀĂƌŝĞĚ͘�WŽůŝĐǇ�ϭ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�
ƚŽƚĂů�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƟŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĂŐĞ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�ĐůĂƐƐĞĚ�ĂƐ�ƐĞǀĞƌĞůǇ�ĚŝƐĂďůĞĚ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ŵŽƐƚ�
ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ͘�>ĞĂƐƚ�ĞŶĚŽƌƐĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁĂƐ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ƚŽ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ϭϮ�ŽŶ�ƚĞŵƉŽƌĂƌǇ�ĂďƐĞŶĐĞ�ĐůĂŝŵƐ�;ǁŚĞŶ�ĂďƌŽĂĚͿ͘� 
dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�Ă�͚ŚŝŐŚ͛Ύ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ĞŶĚŽƌƐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ĨŽƵƌ�ŽƵƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƚǁĞůǀĞ�ƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ͗ 

WŽůŝĐǇ�ϭ͗�>ĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�
ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶĞƌƐ͕�
ĚŝƐĂďůĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�
ĂŐĞ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ͘� 
sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ϭ 

ϴϰй 

WŽůŝĐǇ�ϱ͗��ŽŶƟŶƵŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�
ĚŝƐƌĞŐĂƌĚ�ĐŚŝůĚĐĂƌĞ�
ĐŽƐƚƐ͘� 

sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ϱ� 

ϴϮй 

WŽůŝĐǇ�ϭϬ͗�EŽŶ�
ĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ͛Ɛ�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ�
ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ďŝůů͘ 
sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ϭϬ 

ϴϭй 

WŽůŝĐǇ�ϵ͗��ŽŶƟŶƵŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�
ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ĐůĂŝŵŝŶŐ�
Ă�^ĞǀĞƌĞ��ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�
WƌĞŵŝƵŵ͘ 
sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ϵ 

ϳϳй 

dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�Ă�͚ŵŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͛Ύ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĞǀĞŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƚǁĞůǀĞ�ƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ͕�ĂůƐŽ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ŽŶ�
ĚŝƐƌĞŐĂƌĚŝŶŐ��ĞƌĞĂǀĞŵĞŶƚ�^ƵƉƉŽƌƚ�WĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ͗ 

,ŝŐŚ͗�ϳϱй�-�ϭϬϬй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ ^ŽŵĞ͗�Ϯϱй�-�ϰϵй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ 
DŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͗�ϱϬй�-�ϳϰй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ >Žǁ͗�Ϭй�-�Ϯϰй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ 

* tŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�͚ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ͛�ŝƐ�ƋƵŽƚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͕�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ĚĞĮŶĞĚ�ĂƐ͗ 

͚DK��Z�d�͛�>�s�>�K&��E�KZ^�D�Ed��;й�ĂŐƌĞĞŝŶŐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�Žƌ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ŝƐ�͚ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ͛Ϳ 
WŽůŝĐǇ�ϳ͗��ŽŶƟŶƵŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�
ĞǆĐůƵĚĞ��ŚŝůĚ��ĞŶĞĮƚ�
ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ͘� 
sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ϳ� 

ϳϰй 

WŽůŝĐǇ�ϰ͗��ŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�
^ĞĐŽŶĚ��ĚƵůƚ�ZĞďĂƚĞ͘� 

sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ϰ� 

ϳϮй 

WƌŽƉŽƐĂů͗��ŝƐƌĞŐĂƌĚŝŶŐ�
�ĞƌĞĂǀĞŵĞŶƚ�^ƵƉƉŽƌƚ�
WĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ͘�
sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů 

ϲϲй 

WŽůŝĐǇ�Ϯ͗�>ĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�
ďĞŶĞĮƚ�ĨŽƌ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĂŐĞ�
ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ͘� 
sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�Ϯ� 

ϲϭй 

Page 46



�ϱ 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

�ŚĂŶŐĞ�ŝŶ�ǀŝĞǁƐ͗ 
dŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĂŐĞ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�Ϯ͕�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ďĞŶĞĮƚ�ĨŽƌ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĂŐĞ�
ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�ŚĂƐ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�͚ŚŝŐŚ͛�ƚŽ�ŵŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͛�ŽǀĞƌ�ƟŵĞ͘� 
 
/ŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ� 
�ŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ƚŽ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ��ĞŶĞĮƚ�ĐĂŶ�ĂīĞĐƚ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŬĞǇ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ŝŶ�ƐŽĐŝĞƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƐĞƋƵĞŶƚůǇ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�
ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�Ă�ŬĞǇ�ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƐĞĂƌĐŚ͘�KĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵƌǀĞǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ͕�ϱϲй�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�
ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŚĂĚ�Ă�͚ůŽǁ͛�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ƵƉŽŶ�ƚŚĞŵ͕�Ϯϳй�ƐĂŝĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŚĂĚ�ďĞĞŶ�͚ŵĞĚŝƵŵ͛�ĂŶĚ�ϭϳй�ƐĂŝĚ�ŝƚ�ŚĂĚ�
ďĞĞŶ�͚ŚŝŐŚ͛͘�dŚŽƐĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁŚŽ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�Ă��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ƌĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ĨĞĞů�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�
ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ƵƉŽŶ�ƚŚĞŵ�ǁĂƐ�͚ŚŝŐŚ͛�Žƌ�͛ǀĞƌǇ�ŚŝŐŚ͛�;ϮϮйͿ�ǁŚĞŶ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŶŽŶ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ��ĞŶĞĮƚ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�
;ϭϰйͿ͘� 
 
tŚŝůƐƚ�ĐĂƵƟŽŶ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂƉƉůŝĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƐƚĂƟƐƟĐĂů�ĂŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ͕�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ǁĂƐ�
ƌĞůĂƟǀĞůǇ�ůŽǁ�;ϵϮ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚͿ͕�ƌĞƐĞĂƌĐŚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�:ŽƐĞƉŚ�ZŽǁŶƚƌĞĞ�&ŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶϭ�ĚŽĞƐ�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƚ�
ƚŚĂƚ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĂīĞĐƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƚ�ŽƵƚůŝŶĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŝĚĞƌ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�
ƚŽ�ĨĂĐĞ͘� 

͚DK��Z�d�͛�>�s�>�K&��E�KZ^�D�Ed��;й�ĂŐƌĞĞŝŶŐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ŝƐ�͚ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ͛Ϳ 
Policy 3: Council Tax 
Reduction and WƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ�
�ĂŶĚ͘ 
sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ϯ� 

ϲϬй 

WŽůŝĐǇ�ϭϭ͗��ĂĐŬĚĂƟŶŐ�
ĐůĂŝŵƐ͘ 

sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ϭϭ 

ϱϴй 

WŽůŝĐǇ�ϲ͗��ůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ƚŚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐĂǀŝŶŐƐ�
ĂůůŽǁĞĚ͘� 
sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ϲ 

ϱϴй 

WŽůŝĐǇ�ϴ͗��ŝƐƌĞŐĂƌĚŝŶŐ�
ŵĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�
ĂƐ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ͘� 
sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ϴ 

ϱϳй 

͚^KD�͛��E�KZ^�D�Ed��;й�ĂŐƌĞĞŝŶŐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ŝƐ�͚ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ͛Ϳ WŽůŝĐǇ�ϭϮ͗�dĞŵƉŽƌĂƌǇ�
ĂďƐĞŶĐĞ�ĐůĂŝŵƐ�;ǁŚĞŶ�
ĂďƌŽĂĚͿ͘� 
sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ϭϮ 

ϰϳй 

dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�͚ƐŽŵĞ͛Ύ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ϭϮ͕�ŽŶ�ĂůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ƚĞŵƉŽƌĂƌǇ�ĂďƐĞŶĐĞ�
ĐůĂŝŵƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƵƉ�ƚŽ�ĨŽƵƌ�ǁĞĞŬƐ�ǁŚĞŶ�Ă�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚ�ŚĂƐ�ŐŽŶĞ�ĂďƌŽĂĚ͘�ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�
ĐŽŵŵĞŶƟŶŐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ĨĞůƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝĨ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ĂīŽƌĚ�ƚŽ�ŐŽ�
ĂďƌŽĂĚ͕�ƚŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞǇ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ĂīŽƌĚ�ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ƚĂǆ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�
ǁĂƐ�ƐŽŵĞ�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƟŽŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨĂŵŝůǇ�ǀŝƐŝƚƐ͕�ƚƌĂǀĞů�
ĂďƌŽĂĚ�ĨŽƌ�ŵĞĚŝĐĂů�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞƐ͘�^ŽŵĞ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ŝƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƉƌŽďĂďůǇ�ŵĂŬĞ�
ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚĞƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ĨĂƌ�ƚŽŽ�ĐŽŵƉůĞǆ�ĂŶĚ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐŝǀĞ͕�ŝĨ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�ŚĂĚ�
ƚŽ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ĂŶǇ�ŽǀĞƌƐĞĂƐ�ǀŝƐŝƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐŚŽƌƚ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƟŵĞ͘� 

,ŝŐŚ͗�ϳϱй�-�ϭϬϬй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ ^ŽŵĞ͗�Ϯϱй�-�ϰϵй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ 
DŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͗�ϱϬй�-�ϳϰй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ >Žǁ͗�Ϭй�-�Ϯϰй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ 

* tŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�͚ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ͛�ŝƐ�ƋƵŽƚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͕�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ĚĞĮŶĞĚ�ĂƐ͗ 

ϭ�dŚĞ�/ŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�>ŽĐĂůŝƐŝŶŐ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ��ĞŶĞĮƚ͕��:ŽƐĞƉŚ�ZŽǁŶƚƌĞĞ�&ŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶ͕�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϯ͘� 

Page 47



�ϲ 

 2.1 INTRODUCTION  
^ŝŶĐĞ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϯ͕�ůŽĐĂů�ĂƵƚŚŽƌŝƟĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚĞƌĞĚ�Ă�>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ŽĨ�
ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĂŐĞ͕�ŽŶ�ďĞŚĂůĨ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ͘���ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŶĂƟŽŶĂů�ƌƵůĞƐ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶĞƌƐ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�
ŝƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ůŽĐĂů�ĂƵƚŚŽƌŝƟĞƐ͘ 
dŚĞ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�ƐƟůů�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ůŽĐĂůŝƐĞĚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ͕�ďƵƚ�ƐŝŶĐĞ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϯ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�
ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ͘�/Ŷ�ϮϬϭϮ͕�ϮϬϭϰ͕�ϮϬϭϱ�ĂŶĚ�ϮϬϭϲ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ŐĂƵŐĞ�ǀŝĞǁƐ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽĐĂů�
ƐĐŚĞŵĞ͘ 
dŚŝƐ�ǇĞĂƌ�dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚ�ŝƐ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ�ŽŶĞ�ĂŵĞŶĚŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ͘�/ƚ�ŝƐ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĨƌŽŵ�
�Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϴ͕��ĞƌĞĂǀĞŵĞŶƚ�^ƵƉƉŽƌƚ�WĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞůǇ�ĚŝƐƌĞŐĂƌĚĞĚ�ĂƐ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ͘�dŚŝƐ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�
ƐĞĞŬŝŶŐ�ǀŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ŝƚƐĞůĨ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ŝŶ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ƐŝŶĐĞ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϯ͘�� � 
dŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐĞĚ�ďǇ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŽŶ�ďĞŚĂůĨ�ŽĨ�dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚ��ŽƌŽƵŐŚ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�
ĂŶĚ�ďƌŝŶŐƐ�ƚŽŐĞƚŚĞƌ�ĂŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŬĞǇ�ƚŚĞŵĞƐ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ͘ 

 

2.2 METHODOLOGY   
dŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů ůĂƵŶĐŚĞĚ�ŝƚƐ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽŶ�DŽŶĚĂǇ�ϮϭƐƚ��ƵŐƵƐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�
ƚǁĞůǀĞ�ǁĞĞŬ�ǁŝŶĚŽǁ�ŝŶ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚ�ďǇ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŽŶŝĐ�ƐƵƌǀĞǇ͘�dŚĞ�ĚĞĂĚůŝŶĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ǁĂƐ��
&ƌŝĚĂǇ�ϭϬƚŚ�EŽǀĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϳ͘� 
dŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ǁĂƐ�ǁŝĚĞůǇ�ƉƌŽŵŽƚĞĚ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ŵĞƚŚŽĚƐ͖ 
· WƌĞƐƐ�ƌĞůĞĂƐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽĐĂů�ŶĞǁƐƉĂƉĞƌ͕�dŚĞ�dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚ�,ĞƌĂůĚ 
· dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚ��ŽƌŽƵŐŚ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ǁĞďƐŝƚĞ�;ƉƌŽŵŝŶĞŶƚ�ĨĞĂƚƵƌĞ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŚŽŵĞƉĂŐĞͿ 
· dǁŝƩĞƌ 
· &ĂĐĞďŽŽŬ 
· dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚ��ŽƌŽƵŐŚ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ďůŽŐ 
· 'Žǀ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ 
· �-ŵĂŝůĞĚ�ƚŽ�d���ĐŝƟǌĞŶƐ�ƉĂŶĞů 
· �-ŵĂŝůĞĚ�ƚŽ�d���ƚĞŶĂŶƚƐ͕�;KƉĞŶ�,ŽƵƐĞ�Ğ-ǌŝŶĞ�ƌĞĐŝƉŝĞŶƚƐͿ 
· dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĞĚ 
· dŽƵĐŚ�&D 
· d�Z�&D 
· ����ZĂĚŝŽ�tD 

Page 48



�ϳ 

 

2.3 RESPONDENT PROFILE 
��ƚŽƚĂů�ŽĨ�ϵϮ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŽŶůŝŶĞ�ƐƵƌǀĞǇ͘�dŚŝƐ�ĞƋƵĂƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�Ϭ͘Ϯй�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĚƵůƚ�ƉŽƉƵůĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�
dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚϮ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞƐ�ƐŝŵŝůĂƌůǇ�ƚŽ�ůĂƐƚ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ�ƌĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ϴϰ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ͘�� 
tŚŝůƐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ĐĂŶŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ƐƚĂƟƐƟĐĂůůǇ�ƌŽďƵƐƚ͕�ƚŚĞǇ�ĚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ŵĞĂŶŝŶŐĨƵů�ŝŶƐŝŐŚƚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ͕�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞ͘ 
���ĨƵůů�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽĮůĞ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ĨŽƵŶĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ƉƉĞŶĚŝǆ͘�^ŽŵĞ�ŬĞǇ�ƉŽŝŶƚƐ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ͗ 
· dŚĞ�ŵĂũŽƌŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ϵϴй�;ϴϵ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ�ŝĚĞŶƟĮĞĚ�ƚŚĞŵƐĞůǀĞƐ�ĂƐ�Ă�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�

dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚ͘� 
· ZĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ƌĞůĂƟǀĞƐ�ŽĨ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�;ϳй�Žƌ�Ɛŝǆ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ͕�

ĨƌŝĞŶĚƐ�ŽĨ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�;ϰй�Žƌ�ĨŽƵƌ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ͕�ƉƌŝǀĂƚĞ�ůĂŶĚůŽƌĚƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ�;ϭй�Žƌ�ŽŶĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ĞĂĐŚͿ͘� 

· ϯϱй�;ϯϮ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ�ĐůĂŝŵĞĚ�ŽŶĞ�Žƌ�ŵŽƌĞ�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŚŝŐŚĞƐƚ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĐůĂŝŵƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�
ŵĂĚĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĞĂĐŚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ͖��ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�>ŝǀŝŶŐ��ůůŽǁĂŶĐĞͬWĞƌƐŽŶĂů�/ŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶĐĞ�WĂǇŵĞŶƚ�;ϭϳ�
ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐͿ͕��ŚŝůĚ��ĞŶĞĮƚ�;ϭϮ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐͿ�ĂŶĚ�,ŽƵƐŝŶŐ��ĞŶĞĮƚ�;ϭϭ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐͿ͘�� 

· WĂƌƟĐŝƉĂƟŶŐ�ŚŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ͖�ŚŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĨƵůů�ĂŶĚͬŽƌ�ƉĂƌƚ�ƟŵĞ�
ǁŽƌŬĞƌƐ�;ϯϮй�Žƌ�Ϯϵ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ͕�ƐŝŶŐůĞ�ƉĞƌƐŽŶ�ŚŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚƐ�Žƌ�ĐŽƵƉůĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�;ϮϮй�Žƌ�ϮϬ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ�ĂŶĚ�ŚŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ƐŽŵĞŽŶĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�;ϭϲй�Žƌ�ϭϰ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ͘� 

· dŚĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞĚ�ŽĨ�ůĂƌŐĞůǇ�ŽůĚĞƌ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ϲϯй�Žƌ�ϱϳ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĂŐĞĚ�ϱϱ�
Žƌ�ĂďŽǀĞ͘�� 

Ϯ�dŚĞ�ĂĚƵůƚ�ƉŽƉƵůĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁŚŽ�ĂƌĞ�ĂŐĞĚ�ϭϴ�ĂŶĚ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�DŝĚ�zĞĂƌ�WŽƉƵůĂƟŽŶ��ƐƟŵĂƚĞƐ͕�
ϮϬϭϲ�;DzW�͕�ϮϬϭϲͿ͘ Page 49



�ϴ 

 

3. RESULTS - KEY PRINCIPLES 
ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŝŶǀŝƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚĞ�ǁŚĞƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ�Žƌ�ĚŝƐĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ŬĞǇ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞƐ͗ 
<ĞǇ�WƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞ�ϭ͗��ǀĞƌǇ�ŚŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĂŐĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ƉĂǇ�ƐŽŵĞƚŚŝŶŐ�ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�
�ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ďŝůů͘ 
<ĞǇ�WƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞ�Ϯ͗�dŚĞ�>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ĞŶĐŽƵƌĂŐĞ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƚŽ�ǁŽƌŬ͘ 
�Ɛ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌĂƉŚ�ďĞůŽǁ�ŝůůƵƐƚƌĂƚĞƐ͕�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�Ă�͚ŚŝŐŚ͛�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĞĂĐŚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƚǁŽ�ŬĞǇ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞƐ�
ǁŝƚŚ�ϴϲй�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ĂŐƌĞĞŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�<ĞǇ�WƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞ�ϭ�ĂŶĚ�ϴϰй�ĂŐƌĞĞŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�<ĞǇ�WƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞ�Ϯ͘�/Ŷ�ďŽƚŚ�
ĐĂƐĞƐ͕�ŽǀĞƌ�ŚĂůĨ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ƐƟƉƵůĂƚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ƐƚƌŽŶŐůǇ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞƐ͘���͚ŚŝŐŚ͛�ůĞǀĞů�
ŽĨ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ŚĂƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐ�ǇĞĂƌ͛Ɛ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ͘� 

4. RESULTS - POLICIES 
>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ϭ͗� 
WĞŶƐŝŽŶĞƌƐ͕�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�ĐůĂƐƐĞĚ�ĂƐ�ƐĞǀĞƌĞůǇ�ĚŝƐĂďůĞĚ͕�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĚŝƐĂďůĞĚ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�
ƌĞĐĞŝǀŝŶŐ�Ă�tĂƌ�WĞŶƐŝŽŶ�Žƌ��ƌŵĞĚ�&ŽƌĐĞƐ��ŽŵƉĞŶƐĂƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚ�ĂƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŽŶůǇ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�
ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƵƉ�ƚŽ�ϭϬϬй�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞŝƌ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ďŝůů͘��ůů�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĂŐĞ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�ƉĂǇ�ƐŽŵĞƚŚŝŶŐ�
ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ�ƚŚĞŝƌ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ďŝůů�ĂŶĚ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĂůŝŐŶĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ŽĨ�,ŽƵƐŝŶŐ�
�ĞŶĞĮƚ͘� 
dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�Ă�͚ŚŝŐŚ͛�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ϭ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ϴϰй�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ĨĞĞůŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƚ�ǁĂƐ�
͚ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ͛͘�,ĂůĨ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶ�;ϱϬйͿ�ĨĞůƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƚ�ǁĂƐ�͚ǀĞƌǇ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ͛͘�dƌĞŶĚ�ĚĂƚĂ�ƌĞŇĞĐƚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�
ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�Ă�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶƚůǇ�͚ŚŝŐŚ͛�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƟŵĞ͘� 

,ŝŐŚ͗�ϳϱй�-�ϭϬϬй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ ^ŽŵĞ͗�Ϯϱй�-�ϰϵй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ 
DŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͗�ϱϬй�-�ϳϰй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ >Žǁ͗�Ϭй�-�Ϯϰй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ 

* tŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�͚ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ͛�ŝƐ�ƋƵŽƚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͕�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ĚĞĮŶĞĚ�ĂƐ͗ 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϯ͘ϭ͗�sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŬĞǇ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞƐ�;йͿ �ĂƐĞ͗�ϵϮ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ� 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϰ͘ϭ͗�sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ϭ�;йͿ �ĂƐĞ͗�ϵϮ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ� 

Page 50



�ϵ 

 

>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�Ϯ͗� 
�ůů�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĂŐĞ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚĞĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�Ϯϱй�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞŝƌ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ďŝůů͘�dŽ�
ŵŝƟŐĂƚĞ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ŐƌĂŶƚ�ƌĞĚƵĐƟŽŶƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ĂƐŬ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĂŐĞ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ϯϬй�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞŝƌ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ďŝůů͘�dŚŝƐ�ŵĞĂŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĂŐĞ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�ǁŚŽ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚĞĚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŐĞƚ�ůĞƐƐ�ŚĞůƉ�
ƚŚĂŶ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĚŽ�ŶŽǁ͘�  
dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�Ă�͚ŵŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͛�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�ϲϭй�ĨĞĞůŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƚ�ǁĂƐ�͚ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ͛�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�
ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĂŐĞ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�ǁŚŽ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�Ϯϱй�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞŝƌ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ďŝůů͘�dƌĞŶĚ�ĚĂƚĂ�
ƌĞŇĞĐƚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŚĂƐ�ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐůǇ�ďĞĞŶ�Ă�͚ŚŝŐŚ͛�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ͘� 

>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ϯ͗� 
�ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ůŝŵŝƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ŐŝǀĞŶ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ƐŵĂůůĞƌ�ŚŽƵƐĞ͘�tĞ�ůŝŵŝƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂǆŝŵƵŵ�
ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ŽīĞƌĞĚ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ϳϱй�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ďŝůů�ĨŽƌ�Ă��ĂŶĚ���ƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ͕�ĞǀĞŶ�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚ�ůŝǀĞƐ�ŝŶ�
Ă�ƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ďĂŶĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂŶ��͘�dŚŝƐ�ŵĞĂŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂŶǇ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚ�ǁŚŽ�ůŝǀĞƐ�ŝŶ�Ă�ƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�
ďĂŶĚŝŶŐ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ���ŚĂƐ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ĐĂůĐƵůĂƚĞĚ�ĂƐ�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞǇ�ůŝǀĞĚ�ŝŶ�Ă��ĂŶĚ���ƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ͘� 

dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�Ă�͚ŵŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͛�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�ϲϬй�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ĨĞĞůŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƚ�ǁĂƐ�
͚ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ͛͘�tŚŝůƐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ĂŐƌĞĞŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ŚĂƐ�ŇƵĐƚƵĂƚĞĚ�ƐŽŵĞǁŚĂƚ�ŝŶ�
ƌĞĐĞŶƚ�ǇĞĂƌƐ͕�ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƐƟůů�ƌĞŇĞĐƚĞĚ�Ă�͚ŵŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͛�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ͘�� 

,ŝŐŚ͗�ϳϱй�-�ϭϬϬй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ ^ŽŵĞ͗�Ϯϱй�-�ϰϵй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ 
DŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͗�ϱϬй�-�ϳϰй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ >Žǁ͗�Ϭй�-�Ϯϰй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ 

* tŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�͚ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ͛�ŝƐ�ƋƵŽƚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͕�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ĚĞĮŶĞĚ�ĂƐ͗ 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϰ͘Ϯ͗�sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�Ϯ�;йͿ 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϰ͘ϯ͗�sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ϯ�;йͿ 

�ĂƐĞ͗�ϵϮ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ� 

�ĂƐĞ͗�ϵϮ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ� 

Page 51



�ϭϬ 

 

 

>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ϰ͗� 
�ĞĨŽƌĞ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϯ͕�ƐŽŵĞ�ĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ĞŶƟƚůĞĚ�ƚŽ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ��ĞŶĞĮƚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŽǁŶ�ƌŝŐŚƚ�
ďĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŽǁŶ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ�ǁĂƐ�ƚŽŽ�ŚŝŐŚ�Žƌ�ƚŚĞǇ�ŚĂĚ�ƚŽŽ�ŵƵĐŚ�ŝŶ�ƐĂǀŝŶŐƐ͘�,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕�ƚŚĞǇ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ĐůĂŝŵ�Ă�
^ĞĐŽŶĚ��ĚƵůƚ�ZĞďĂƚĞ͕�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ƌĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƵƉ�ƚŽ�Ϯϱй�Žī�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ďŝůů͕�ďĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ƚŚĞǇ�ŚĂĚ�ĂŶŽƚŚĞƌ�ĂĚƵůƚ�ůŝǀŝŶŐ�
ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞŵ�ǁŚŽ�ǁĂƐ�ŽŶ�Ă�ůŽǁ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ͘� 
 
&ƌŽŵ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϯ͕�^ĞĐŽŶĚ��ĚƵůƚ�ZĞďĂƚĞ�ǁĂƐ�ƌĞŵŽǀĞĚ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�>ŽĐĂů�^ĐŚĞŵĞ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŵĞĂŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�Ăůů�
ƚŚŽƐĞ�ŽĨ�tŽƌŬŝŶŐ��ŐĞ�ǁŚŽ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐůǇ�ĞŶƟƚůĞĚ�ƚŽ�Ă�^ĞĐŽŶĚ��ĚƵůƚ�ZĞďĂƚĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�ϭϬϬй�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞŝƌ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ďŝůů�;^ĞĐŽŶĚ��ĚƵůƚ�ZĞďĂƚĞ�ĐĂŶ�ƐƟůů�ďĞ�ĐůĂŝŵĞĚ�ďǇ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶĞƌƐ�ĂƐ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĂƟŽŶĂů�
ƌƵůĞƐͿ͘ 

dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�Ă�͚ŵŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͛�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ϳϮй�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ĨĞĞůŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƚ�ǁĂƐ�
͚ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ͛͘�/Ŷ�ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�Ă�͚ŵŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͛�ƚŽ�͚ŚŝŐŚ͛�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ͘�� 

>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ϱ͗� 
�ŚŝůĚ�ĐĂƌĞ�ĐŽƐƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂůůŽǁĞĚ�ĂƐ�ĂŶ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞ�ǁŚĞŶ�ĐĂůĐƵůĂƟŶŐ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ͘�dŚŝƐ�ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚĞ�ƚŽ�ĂŶǇ�ƌĞĚƵĐƟŽŶƐ�ďƵƚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�ĂŶ�ŝŶĐĞŶƟǀĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƉĂƌĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƐƚĂǇ�ŝŶ�ǁŽƌŬ�Žƌ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ƚŽ�ǁŽƌŬ͘ 

dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�Ă�͛ŚŝŐŚ͛�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�;ϴϮйͿ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶ�ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶƐ�Ă�͚ŵŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͛�ƚŽ�
͚ŚŝŐŚ͛�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ŚĂƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ĂůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ĐŚŝůĚ�ĐĂƌĞ�ĐŽƐƚƐ�ĂƐ�ĂŶ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞ͘� 

,ŝŐŚ͗�ϳϱй�-�ϭϬϬй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ ^ŽŵĞ͗�Ϯϱй�-�ϰϵй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ 
DŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͗�ϱϬй�-�ϳϰй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ >Žǁ͗�Ϭй�-�Ϯϰй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ 

* tŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�͚ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ͛�ŝƐ�ƋƵŽƚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͕�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ĚĞĮŶĞĚ�ĂƐ͗ 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϰ͘ϰ͗�sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ϰ�;йͿ 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϰ͘ϱ͗�sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ϱ�;йͿ 

�ĂƐĞ͗�ϵϮ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ� 

�ĂƐĞ͗�ϵϮ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ� 

Page 52



�ϭϭ 

 

>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ϲ͗� 
�ůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƐĂǀŝŶŐƐ�ŽĨ�ƵƉ�ƚŽ�άϭϲ͕ϬϬϬ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƟůů�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ�ƚŚĞŝƌ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�
�ŝůů͘ 
dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�Ă�͛ŵŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͛�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽǀĞƌ�ŚĂůĨ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ĂŐƌĞĞŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƚ�ǁĂƐ�
͚ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ͛�ƚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƐĂǀŝŶŐƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƟůů�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ�ƚŚĞŝƌ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ��ŝůů͘�/Ŷ�ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�
ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�͚ƐŽŵĞ͛�Žƌ�Ă�͚ŵŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͛�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ͘� 

>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ϳ͗� 
�ŚŝůĚ��ĞŶĞĮƚ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ĂƐ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ�ǁŚĞŶ�ĐĂůĐƵůĂƟŶŐ�Ă�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚΖƐ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ĞŶƟƚůĞŵĞŶƚ͘ 

,ŝŐŚ͗�ϳϱй�-�ϭϬϬй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ ^ŽŵĞ͗�Ϯϱй�-�ϰϵй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ 
DŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͗�ϱϬй�-�ϳϰй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ >Žǁ͗�Ϭй�-�Ϯϰй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ 

* tŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�͚ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ͛�ŝƐ�ƋƵŽƚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͕�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ĚĞĮŶĞĚ�ĂƐ͗ 

dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�Ă�͚ŵŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͛�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ŶĞĂƌůǇ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌƐ�;ϳϰйͿ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�
ĂŐƌĞĞŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ��ŚŝůĚ��ĞŶĞĮƚ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ĂƐ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ�ǁŚĞŶ�ĐĂůĐƵůĂƟŶŐ�Ă�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚ͛Ɛ�ĞŶƟƚůĞŵĞŶƚ͘�
/Ŷ�ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŚĂƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ďĞĞŶ�Ă�͚ŵŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͛�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ͘� 
&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϰ͘ϳ͗�sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ϳ�;йͿ �ĂƐĞ͗�ϵϮ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ� 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϰ͘ϲ͗�sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ϲ�;йͿ �ĂƐĞ͗�ϵϮ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ� 

Page 53



�ϭϮ 

 

>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ϴ͗� 
tĞ�ĚŝƐƌĞŐĂƌĚ�ŵĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂƐ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ�ǁŚĞŶ�ĐĂůĐƵůĂƟŶŐ�Ă�tŽƌŬŝŶŐ��ŐĞ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚΖƐ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�
ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ĞŶƟƚůĞŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ĂŶ�ŝŶĐĞŶƟǀĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƉĂƌĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƐƚĂǇ�ŝŶ�ǁŽƌŬ�Žƌ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ƚŽ�ǁŽƌŬ͘ 

dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�Ă�͛ŵŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͛�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�ϱϳй�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ĨĞĞůŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƚ�ǁĂƐ�ĨĂŝƌ�ƚŽ�
ĚŝƐƌĞŐĂƌĚ�ŵĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂƐ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ�ǁŚĞŶ�ĐĂůĐƵůĂƟŶŐ�Ă�tŽƌŬŝŶŐ��ŐĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�
ĞŶƟƚůĞŵĞŶƚ͘�&ƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĂďůĞ�ƚƌĞŶĚ�ĚĂƚĂ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŝƐ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞϯ͕�Ă�͚ŵŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͛�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ŚĂƐ�ĂůƐŽ�
ďĞĞŶ�ĞǀŝĚĞŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ͘� 

ϯ��ŽŵƉĂƌĂďůĞ�ĚĂƚĂ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϮϬϭϲ�ŽŶůǇ�ŝƐ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ͘��ĞĨŽƌĞ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĚĂƚĞ͕�ŵĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ǁŚĞŶ�ĐĂůĐƵůĂƟŶŐ�
Ă�tŽƌŬŝŶŐ��ŐĞ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ĞŶƟƚůĞŵĞŶƚ͘� 

>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ϵ͗� 
/Ĩ�Ă�tŽƌŬŝŶŐ��ŐĞ�ƉĞƌƐŽŶ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞƐ��ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�>ŝǀŝŶŐ��ůůŽǁĂŶĐĞ͕�Ă��ĂƌĞ��ŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ�ŵĂǇ�ďĞ�ĂĚĚĞĚ�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞǇ�
ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞ�ŚĞůƉ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĚĂǇ�ƚŽ�ĚĂǇ�ƚĂƐŬƐ�Žƌ�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞǇ�ŶĞĞĚ�ĨƌĞƋƵĞŶƚ�ƉĞƌƐŽŶĂů�ĐĂƌĞ͘���ůŽǁĞƌ͕�ŵŝĚĚůĞ�Žƌ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ƌĂƚĞ�ŝƐ�
ƉĂŝĚ�ĚĞƉĞŶĚŝŶŐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐĂƌĞ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚ͘���^ĞǀĞƌĞ��ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�WƌĞŵŝƵŵ�ŝƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ƉĂǇĂďůĞ�ŝĨ�Ă�tŽƌŬŝŶŐ�
�ŐĞ�ƉĞƌƐŽŶ�;ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌ�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞǇ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŽŶĞͿ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞƐ�Ă�WĞƌƐŽŶĂů�/ŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶĐĞ�WĂǇŵĞŶƚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�
�ŶŚĂŶĐĞĚ��ĂŝůǇ�>ŝǀŝŶŐ�ƌĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŶŽ�ŽŶĞ�ůŝǀĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞŵ�ĂŶĚ�ŶŽ�ŽŶĞ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞƐ�Ă��ĂƌĞƌƐ��ůůŽǁĂŶĐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ůŽŽŬŝŶŐ�
ĂŌĞƌ�ƚŚĞŵ͘��ůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�ǁŚŽ�ĂƌĞ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ƚŽ�^ĞǀĞƌĞ��ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�WƌĞŵŝƵŵ�ĐĂŶ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ�Ă�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƵƉ�ƚŽ�ϭϬϬй�
ŽĨ�ƚŚĞŝƌ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ďŝůů͘ 

dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�Ă�͚ŚŝŐŚ͛�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�ϳϳй�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ƐĂǇŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŝŶ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�
ǁŝƚŚ�ŝƚ͘�/Ŷ�ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐ�ǇĞĂƌƐ͕�Ă�͚ŚŝŐŚ͛�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ŚĂƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ďĞĞŶ�ĞǀŝĚĞŶƚ͘��� 
&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϰ͘ϵ͗�sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ϵ�;йͿ 

,ŝŐŚ͗�ϳϱй�-�ϭϬϬй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ ^ŽŵĞ͗�Ϯϱй�-�ϰϵй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ 
DŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͗�ϱϬй�-�ϳϰй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ >Žǁ͗�Ϭй�-�Ϯϰй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ 

* tŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�͚ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ͛�ŝƐ�ƋƵŽƚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͕�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ĚĞĮŶĞĚ�ĂƐ͗ 

�ĂƐĞ͗�ϵϮ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ� 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϰ͘ϴ͗�sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ϴ�;йͿ �ĂƐĞ͗�ϵϮ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ� 

Page 54



�ϭϯ 

 

>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ϭϬ͗ 
�ŶǇ�ŶŽŶ-ĚĞƉĞŶĚĂŶƚƐ�ůŝǀŝŶŐ�ŝŶ�Ă�tŽƌŬŝŶŐ��ŐĞ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚΖƐ�ŚŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚ�ĂƌĞ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚĞ�ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ�
ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ďŝůů͘�/Ĩ�ƚŚĞ�ŶŽŶ-ĚĞƉĞŶĚĂŶƚ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�άϱ�ƉĞƌ�ǁĞĞŬ͘�
/Ĩ�ƚŚĞ�ŶŽŶ-ĚĞƉĞŶĚĂŶƚ�ŝƐ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�Ă�άϭϬ�ƉĞƌ�ǁĞĞŬ͘� 

dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�Ă�͚ŚŝŐŚ͛�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�ϴϭй�ĂŐƌĞĞŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƚ�ǁĂƐ�͚ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ͛�ĨŽƌ�ŶŽŶ-
ĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ůŝǀŝŶŐ�ŝŶ�Ă�tŽƌŬŝŶŐ��ŐĞ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�ŚŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚĞ�ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ƚĂǆ�ďŝůů͘�/Ŷ�
ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐ�ǇĞĂƌƐ͕�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�Ă�͚ŵŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͛�ƚŽ�͚ŚŝŐŚ͛�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ͘� 
&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϰ͘ϭϬ͗�sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ϭϬ�;йͿ� 

>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ϭϭ͗ 
&ƌŽŵ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϲ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ǁĂƐ�ĂŵĞŶĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂůůŽǁ�Ă�ĐůĂŝŵ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ďĂĐŬĚĂƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƵƉ�ƚŽ�ŽŶĞ�ŵŽŶƚŚ�ŽŶůǇ͘ 

dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�Ă�͚ŵŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�ϱϴй�ĂŐƌĞĞŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƚ�ǁĂƐ�͚ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ͛�ƚŽ�ĂůůŽǁ�
ĐůĂŝŵƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ďĂĐŬĚĂƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƵƉ�ƚŽ�ŽŶĞ�ŵŽŶƚŚ�ŽŶůǇ͘�dƌĞŶĚ�ĚĂƚĂ�ĨŽƌ�ϮϬϭϲ�ŝƐ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ĂŶĚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƟŵĞ͕�Ă�
͚ŚŝŐŚ͛�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ǁĂƐ�ĂƩƌŝďƵƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ͘� 
&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϰ͘ϭϭ͗�sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ϭϭ�;йͿ 

,ŝŐŚ͗�ϳϱй�-�ϭϬϬй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ ^ŽŵĞ͗�Ϯϱй�-�ϰϵй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ 
DŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͗�ϱϬй�-�ϳϰй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ >Žǁ͗�Ϭй�-�Ϯϰй�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ 

* tŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�͚ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ͛�ŝƐ�ƋƵŽƚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͕�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ĚĞĮŶĞĚ�ĂƐ͗ 

�ĂƐĞ͗�ϵϮ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ� 

�ĂƐĞ͗�ϵϮ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ� 

Page 55



�ϭϰ 

 

 

>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ϭϮ͗ 
&ƌŽŵ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϳ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ǁĂƐ�ĂŵĞŶĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂůůŽǁ�Ă�ĐůĂŝŵ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƉĂŝĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƵƉ�ƚŽ�ϰ�ǁĞĞŬƐ�ŽĨ�ƚĞŵƉŽƌĂƌǇ�
ĂďƐĞŶĐĞ�ŽŶůǇ�ǁŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚ�;ĂŶĚ�ĂŶǇ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌͿ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŐŽŶĞ�ĂďƌŽĂĚ͘ 

dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�͛ƐŽŵĞ͛�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƚƌĞŶĚ�ĚĂƚĂ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϮϬϭϲ͕�ƌĞŇĞĐƚĞĚ�Ă�͚ŵŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͛�
ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ͘� 

ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŽīĞƌĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ƐŵĂůů�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶ�;ϭϯ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ�ĐŚŽƐĞ�ƚŽ�ĚŽ�ƐŽ͘�dŚĞ�ĚŝǀĞƌƐŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ŽƉŝŶŝŽŶƐ�ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ŝůůƵƐƚƌĂƚĞĚ�ďĞůŽǁ͘� 
͞/Ĩ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ĂīŽƌĚ�ƚŽ�ŐŽ�ŽŶ�ŚŽůŝĚĂǇ�ĂďƌŽĂĚ�ƚŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ĂůƐŽ�ĂīŽƌĚ�ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�Ăůů�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŽǁŶ�ďŝůůƐ͕�
ƚĂǆĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚƵĞƐ͘͟�dŚĞƐĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ĨĞůƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�͞ƚŚĞ�ƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂůƌĞĂĚǇ�ƚŽŽ�ŐĞŶĞƌŽƵƐ͘͟� 
dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�ƐŽŵĞ�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƟŽŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�͞ŝĨ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚƐ�ŚĂĚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ĂŶǇ�ŽǀĞƌƐĞĂƐ�ǀŝƐŝƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐŚŽƌƚ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƟŵĞ͕�
ƚŚŝƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƉƌŽďĂďůǇ�ŵĂŬĞ�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚĞƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ĨĂƌ�ƚŽŽ�ĐŽŵƉůĞǆ�ĂŶĚ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐŝǀĞ͘͟�KƚŚĞƌ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�
ǁŚŽ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƟǀĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ͕�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂƉƉƌĞĐŝĂƟǀĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂĐƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƚ�͞ĂůůŽǁĞĚ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƚŽ�ǀŝƐŝƚ�
ĨĂŵŝůŝĞƐ�ĂďƌŽĂĚ͟�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�͞ƚƌĂǀĞů�ĂďƌŽĂĚ�ĨŽƌ�ŵĞĚŝĐĂů�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞƐ͘͟�dŚĞƐĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�
ůŽŶŐĞƌ�ĐŽŶĐĞƐƐŝŽŶƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ�ǁŚŽ�ŵĂǇ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�͞ŝŶ�ŚŽƐƉŝƚĂů�ůŽŶŐ�ƚĞƌŵ͟�
ĂďƌŽĂĚ͘� 

�ĞƌĞĂǀĞŵĞŶƚ�^ƵƉƉŽƌƚ�WĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů 
/ƚ�ŝƐ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϴ�ƚŽ�ĚŝƐƌĞŐĂƌĚ�ŝŶ�ĨƵůů��ĞƌĞĂǀĞŵĞŶƚ�^ƵƉƉŽƌƚ�WĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ͘� 
dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�Ă�͚ŵŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ͛�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ǁŝƚŚ�ϲϲй�ĂŐƌĞĞŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǁĂƐ�͚ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ͛͘�
ϭϳй�ĨĞůƚ�ŝƚ�ǁĂƐ�͚ŶĞŝƚŚĞƌ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ�ŶŽƌ�ƵŶƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ͛�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŵĂůůĞƐƚ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�;ϭϲйͿ�
ďĞůŝĞǀŝŶŐ�ŝƚ�ǁĂƐ�͚ƵŶƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ͛͘�� 
&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϰ͘ϭϯ͗�sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ��ĞƌĞĂǀĞŵĞŶƚ�^ƵƉƉŽƌƚ�WĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�;йͿ �ĂƐĞ͗�ϵϮ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ� 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϰ͘ϭϮ͗�sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ϭϮ�;йͿ �ĂƐĞ͗�ϵϭ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ� 

Page 56



�ϭϱ 

 

 5. IMPACT OF THE CHANGES 
ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂƐŬĞĚ�Ă�ƐĞƌŝĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƋƵĞƐƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ĂƐĐĞƌƚĂŝŶ�ŚŽǁ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĨĞůƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�
�Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϯ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚĞĚ�ŽŶ�ďŽƚŚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů�ĐŝƌĐƵŵƐƚĂŶĐĞƐ�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ƐŽŵĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŬĞǇ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ͘�dŚŝƐ�
ƐĞĐƟŽŶ�ĚŝƐƉůĂǇƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƋƵĞƐƟŽŶƐ͘ 

26% 74% 
�ŽĞƐ�ǇŽƵƌ�ŚŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ͍ 
&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϱ͘ϭ͗�й�ŽĨ�ŚŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚƐ�ŝŶ�ƌĞĐĞŝƉƚ�ŽĨ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�;йͿ 

�ŽŶƐĞƋƵĞŶƚůǇ͕�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌĂƉŚ�ďĞůŽǁ�ƐŚŽǁƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ĨĞůƚ�ŽŶ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƐŝƚƵĂƟŽŶƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�
͚ůŽǁ͛�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƌŐĞƐƚ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ͘�ϭϳй�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ĨĞůƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŚĂĚ�ŚĂĚ�Ă�͚ǀĞƌǇ�ŚŝŐŚ͛�
Žƌ�͚ŚŝŐŚ͛�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ƵƉŽŶ�ƚŚĞŵ͘� 
&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϱ͘Ϯ͗�й�ŝŵƉĂĐƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϯ͗� 

ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĞŶĐŽƵƌĂŐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƐŚĂƌĞ�ĂŶǇ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŚĞǇ�ŚĂĚ͘�ZĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ƐŚĂƌĞĚ�ǁĞƌĞ�ǀĂƌŝĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�
ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ǀŝĞǁƐͬƉĞƌƐŽŶĂů�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽŶ�ďŽƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�
ĂŶĚ�ŽŶ�ŚŽǁ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ƚĂǆ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƐƉĞŶƚ�ŵŽƌĞ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ͘� 
ZĞŇĞĐƟŽŶƐ�ŽŶ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�͞ĂƐ�Ă�ŚŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚǁŽ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĂĚƵůƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚǁŽ�
ƵŶĚĞƌ�ϭϴ͛Ɛ�ŝŶ�ĨƵůů�ƟŵĞ�ĞĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ�ǁĞ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ�ŶŽ�ƐƚĂƚĞ�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ�ďƵƚ�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ƐĂĨĞƚǇ�ŶĞƚ�ĨŽƌ�
ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŚŽ�ĐĂŶŶŽƚ�ǁŽƌŬ͘͟��ŶŽƚŚĞƌ�ǁŚŽ�ŚĂĚ�ƵŶĚĞƌŐŽŶĞ�Ă�͞ŐƌĞĂƚ�ŵĂŶǇ�ƉĞƌƐŽŶĂů�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƐƚ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�
ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŚĂĚ�ĨŽƵŶĚ�dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚ��ŽƌŽƵŐŚ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ǀĞƌǇ�ŚĞůƉĨƵů͘͟���ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ǁŚŽ�ǁĂƐ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƟǀĞ�
ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ĨĞůƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƚƌŝĐŬ�ǁĂƐ�͞ƚŽ�ŚĞůƉ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŚŽ�ĂĐƚƵĂůůǇ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŚĞůƉ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĞĞĚ�ŽƵƚ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŚŽ�
ƐŝŵƉůǇ�ƉůĂǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͘͟� 
KƚŚĞƌƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƐƚƌƵŐŐůŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ�ĞŶĚƐ�ŵĞĞƚ͕�ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�Žƌ�ĚŝĚ�ŶŽƚ�ŬŶŽǁ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ͘�&Žƌ�
ĞǆĂŵƉůĞ͗ 
͞/�Ăŵ�Ă�ϳϮ�ǇĞĂƌ�ŽůĚ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ďĞĐĂƵƐĞ�/�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ�άϭϴ�Ă�ǁĞĞŬ�ĐŽŵƉĂŶǇ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ŵǇ�ƐƚĂƚĞ�
ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ͘�/�ĐĂŶŶŽƚ�ĐůĂŝŵ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ƚĂǆ�ƌĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ŶŽƌ�ĐĂŶ�/�ĐůĂŝŵ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚ͘�/�ĮŶĚ�ŝƚ�Ă�ƐƚƌƵŐŐůĞ�ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�ďŝůůƐ�͟�
ĂŶĚ�͞�ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ŝƐ�ĨĂƌ�ƚŽŽ�ŚŝŐŚ�ĂŶĚ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐŝǀĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ďŝůůƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽǁ�Ă�ƐƚƌƵŐŐůĞ�ĂƐ�ŵǇ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�
ŽƵƚ�ŽĨ�ǁŽƌŬ�ĂŶĚ�/�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ŽŶ�ŵĂƚĞƌŶŝƚǇ�ďƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŚĞůƉ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ŝƐ�ƐŚŽĐŬŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�/�ĚŝĚŶΖƚ�ĞǀĞŶ�
ŬŶŽǁ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ƌĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ͕�/ΖǀĞ�ŶĞǀĞƌ�ďĞĞŶ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĞĚ͘͟ 
��ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ƌĞŇĞĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŝĚĞƌ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ŽŶĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ĨĞĞůŝŶŐ�ĂŐŐƌŝĞǀĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ƉĂǇ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�
ƚĂǆ�ďƵƚ�ĨĞĞů�ƚŚĂƚ�ĐůĞĂŶůŝŶĞƐƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƟĚŝŶĞƐƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ůŽĐĂů�ĂƌĞĂ�ŝƐ�ĂŶ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐŝŶŐůǇ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶ�ŝƐƐƵĞ͘� 

�Ɛ�ĮŐƵƌĞ�ϱ͘ϭ�ĚŝƐƉůĂǇƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂũŽƌŝƚǇ�
ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ͕�ϳϰй�;Žƌ�ϲϳ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ�ĚŝĚ�ŶŽƚ�ůŝǀĞ�ŝŶ�Ă�
ŚŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞƐ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�
dĂǆ�ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ͘� 

�ĂƐĞ͗�ϵϭ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ� 

�ĂƐĞ͗�ϴϵ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ� 

Page 57



�ϭϲ 

 

tŚĂƚ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŚĂĚ�ŽŶ�ǇŽƵ�ĂŶĚ�ǇŽƵƌ�ŚŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚ͍� 
dŚĞ�ŐƌĂƉŚ�ďĞůŽǁ�ŝůůƵƐƚƌĂƚĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�Ă�ƐŝǌĞĂďůĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ĨĞůƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽŶ�Ă�
ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƉĞƌƐŽŶ�ƚǇƉĞƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�͚ůŽŶĞ�ƉĂƌĞŶƚƐ͕͛�͚ĚŝƐĂďůĞĚ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ͕͛�͚ĐĂƌĞƌƐ͛�ĂŶĚ�͚ƉĂƌƚ�ƟŵĞ�ǁŽƌŬĞƌƐ͛͘�/ƚ�ĂůƐŽ�
ƌĞŇĞĐƚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŽŶĞ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ�Žƌ�ŵŽƌĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƵŶĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞ�ŽŶ�ĞĂĐŚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞƌƐŽŶ�
ƚǇƉĞƐ͘� 
&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϱ͘ϯ͗�/ŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ďǇ�ƉĞƌƐŽŶ�ƚǇƉĞ�;йͿ 

tŚĞŶ�ĂƐŬĞĚ�ǁŚĞƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĨĞůƚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂŶǇ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ĂīĞĐƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�
ĂŶƐǁĞƌƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŐŝǀĞŶ͗ 
dŚĞ�ůŽŶŐ�ƚĞƌŵ�ƵŶĞŵƉůŽǇĞĚ͗�͞dŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ƚƌǇŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ůŝǀĞ�ŽŶ�ĞǀĞƌ�ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐŝŶŐ�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ�ǁŚŝůƐƚ�ŝŶŇĂƟŽŶ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞƐ�
ƚŽ�ƌŝƐĞ͘�dŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ŵĂĚĞ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ�ĞǀĞƌǇ�ĞīŽƌƚ�ƚŽ�ĮŶĚ�ǁŽƌŬ�ďƵƚ�ƐŽŵĞ�ĂƌĞ�ũƵƐƚ�ƵŶĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ĚŽ�ƐŽ͘�dŚĞ�Ϯϱй�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ƚŽŽ�ŚŝŐŚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂůƚŚŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�Ă�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ďǇ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĂŐĞ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ͕�ŝƚ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
ĚƌĂƐƟĐĂůůǇ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ͘�dŚŝƐ�ĐĂŶ�ůĞĂĚ�ƚŽ�ďĂŝůŝī�ĐŚĂƌŐĞƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĂĚĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�Ϯϱй�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ͕�Ă�ƌŝĚŝĐƵůŽƵƐ�
ƐŝƚƵĂƟŽŶ�ǁŚĞŶ�ĨŽŽĚ�ďĂŶŬƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƐŽ�ďƵƐǇ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĚĂǇƐ͘�/Ĩ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ĐĂŶΖƚ�ƉĂǇ�ĨŽƌ�ĨŽŽĚ͕�ŚŽǁ�ĐĂŶ�ƚŚĞǇ�ƉĂǇ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�
ƚĂǆĞƐ͍�dŚĞ�ŵŽŶĞǇ�ũƵƐƚ�ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�ĞǆŝƐƚ͘͟ 
,ŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƚŚĂŶ�ŽŶĞ�WĞƌƐŽŶĂů�/ŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶĐĞ�WĂǇŵĞŶƚ�Žƌ��ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�>ŝǀŝŶŐ��ůůŽǁĂŶĐĞ�
ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚ͗�͞WĞŽƉůĞ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŚĞůƉĞĚ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƚǁŽ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŚŽŵĞ�ďŽƚŚ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀŝŶŐ�W/W^�Žƌ��>�͘͟ 
WĞŶƐŝŽŶĞƌƐ͗�͞WĞŶƐŝŽŶĞƌƐ�ŽŶ�^ƚĂƚĞ�WĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŵĂůů��ĞĮŶĞĚ�KĐĐƵƉĂƟŽŶĂů�WĞŶƐŝŽŶƐ�ŵĂǇ�ǁĞůů�ďĞ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�
ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ŬŶŽǁŝŶŐ�ŝƚ͘͟ 
&ĂŵŝůŝĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĂŐĞ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ͗�͞&ĂŵŝůŝĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĂŐĞ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ǁŚŽ�ĐĂŶΖƚ�ďĞ�ďŽƚŚĞƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ǁŽƌŬ�-�
ŽďǀŝŽƵƐ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĚŽ�ĞǆŝƐƚ͊͟ 
 
 Page 58



�ϭϳ 

 
 5. APPENDIX 1: ABOUT YOU, RESPONDENT PROFILE  
�ƌĞ�ǇŽƵ�Ă�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚ? 
�ĂƐĞ͗�ϵϭ ^ƵƌǀĞǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ 
 EŽ͛Ɛ й 
zĞƐ ϴϵ ϵϴй 
EŽ Ϯ Ϯй 
�ƌĞ�ǇŽƵ�ƐƵďŵŝƫŶŐ�ǇŽƵƌ�ǀŝĞǁƐ�ĂƐ͙͘ 
�ĂƐĞ͗�ϵϮ ^ƵƌǀĞǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ 

 EŽ͛Ɛ й 
sŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶ ϭ ϭй 
�ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ŐƌŽƵƉ Ϭ Ϭй 
,ŽƵƐŝŶŐ��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ Ϭ Ϭй 
WƌŝǀĂƚĞ�ůĂŶĚůŽƌĚ ϭ ϭй 
��ƌĞůĂƟǀĞ�ŽĨ�Ă��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�
ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚ 

ϲ ϳй 

��ĨƌŝĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�Ă��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ���
ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ĐůĂŝŵĂŶƚ 

ϰ ϰй 

 EŽ͛Ɛ й 
EĂƟŽŶĂůůǇͬůŽĐĂůůǇ�ĞůĞĐƚĞĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌͬDW� Ϭ Ϭй 
WĂƌƚŶĞƌ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶ Ϭ Ϭй 
ZĞƐŝĚĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ ϲϴ ϳϰй 
ZĞƐŝĚĞŶƚ�ŽƵƚƐŝĚĞ�ŽĨ�dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚ Ϭ Ϭй 
EŽŶĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ ϵ ϭϬй 

KƚŚĞƌ Ϭ Ϭй 

�ŽĞƐ�ǇŽƵƌ�ŶĂŵĞ�ĂƉƉĞĂƌ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ďŝůů�������������
ĨŽƌ�ǇŽƵƌ�ŚŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚ͍ 
�ĂƐĞ͗�ϴϵ ^ƵƌǀĞǇ��ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ 
 EŽ͛Ɛ й 
zĞƐ ϴϲ ϵϳй 
EŽ Ϯ Ϯй 

 EŽ͛Ɛ й 
�ŽŶ͛ƚ�ŬŶŽǁ ϭ ϭй 

   

�ŽĞƐ�ǇŽƵƌ�ŚŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ�ĂŶǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ͍ 
Base: 32  Survey responses 

 No’s % 
�ƩĞŶĚĂŶĐĞ��ůůŽǁĂŶĐĞ ϭ ϯй 
�ĂƌĞƌƐ��ůůŽǁĂŶĐĞ ϱ ϭϲй 
�ŚŝůĚ��ĞŶĞĮƚ ϭϮ ϯϴй 
�ŚŝůĚ�dĂǆ��ƌĞĚŝƚ ϲ ϭϵй 
�>�ͬW/W ϭϳ ϱϯй 
,ŽƵƐŝŶŐ��ĞŶĞĮƚ ϭϭ ϯϰй 
/ŶĐŽŵĞ�^ƵƉƉŽƌƚ ϭ ϯй 
:Žď�^ĞĞŬĞƌƐ��ůůŽǁĂŶĐĞ ϭ ϯй 
�ŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�^ƵƉƉŽƌƚ��ůůŽǁĂŶĐĞ ϵ Ϯϴй 

Base: 92 Survey responses 
 No’s % 
��ĨĂŵŝůǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽŶĞ�Žƌ�ƚǁŽ������
ĚĞƉĞŶĚĂŶƚ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ 

ϭϬ ϭϭй 

��ĨĂŵŝůǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�Žƌ�ŵŽƌĞ�
ĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ 

ϰ ϰй 

��ůŽŶĞ�ƉĂƌĞŶƚ�ŚŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚ Ϯ Ϯй 
��ŚŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĨƵůů�ĂŶĚͬŽƌ�
ƉĂƌƚ-ƟŵĞ�ǁŽƌŬĞƌƐ 

Ϯϵ ϯϮй 

��ŚŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�
ƐŽŵĞŽŶĞ�ǁŚŽ�ŝƐ�ĚŝƐĂďůĞĚ 

ϭϰ ϭϱй 

��ƐŝŶŐůĞ�ƉĞƌƐŽŶ�ŚŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚ�Žƌ�
Ă�ĐŽƵƉůĞ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ 

ϮϬ ϮϮй 

EŽŶĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ Ϯϭ Ϯϯй 

�Ž�ĂŶǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ĚĞƐĐƌŝďĞ�ǇŽƵƌ�ŚŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚ͍ 

�ĂƐĞ͗�ϴϳ dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚ�ϮϬϭϭ��ĞŶƐƵƐ�
ĐŽŵƉĂƌŝƐŽŶ 

 EŽ͛Ɛ й й 
zĞƐ Ϯϴ ϯϮй ϭϭй 
EŽ ϱϵ ϲϴй ϴϵй 

^ƵƌǀĞǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ� 
�Ž�ǇŽƵ�ƌĞŐƵůĂƌůǇ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ƵŶƉĂŝĚ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĐĂƌŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐŽŵĞŽŶĞ͍ 

Page 59



�ϭϴ 

 
�ƌĞ�ǇŽƵ�ŵĂůĞ�Žƌ�ĨĞŵĂůĞ͍�;ϭϴн�ƉŽƉƵůĂƟŽŶ) 
�ĂƐĞ͗�ϵϬ ^ƵƌǀĞǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚ�

Dz��ϮϬϭϲ 
 EŽ͛Ɛ й й 
&ĞŵĂůĞ ϰϭ ϰϲй ϱϮй 
DĂůĞ ϰϳ ϱϮй ϰϴй 
WƌĞĨĞƌ�ŶŽƚ�ƚŽ�ƐĂǇ Ϯ Ϯй Eͬ� 

�ĂƐĞ͗�ϵϬ ^ƵƌǀĞǇ� dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚ�
Dz��ϮϬϭϲ 

 EŽ͛Ɛ й й 
ϭϴ-Ϯϰ Ϯ Ϯй ϭϬй 
Ϯϱ-ϯϰ ϲ ϳй ϭϳй 
ϯϱ-ϰϰ ϱ ϲй ϭϲй 
ϰϱ-ϱϰ ϭϴ ϮϬй ϭϵй 
ϱϱ-ϲϰ Ϯϵ ϯϮй ϭϲй 
ϲϱ-ϳϰ Ϯϳ ϯϬй ϭϰй 
ϳϱн ϭ ϭй ϵй 
WƌĞĨĞƌ�ŶŽƚ�ƚŽ�ƐĂǇ Ϯ Ϯй Eͬ� 

tŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ǇŽƵƌ�ĂŐĞ͍ 

�ĂƐĞ͗�ϴϵ ^ƵƌǀĞǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚ�
ϮϬϭϭ��ĞŶƐƵƐ��������������
ĐŽŵƉĂƌŝƐŽŶ 

 EŽ͛Ɛ й й 
�ƐŝĂŶͬ�ƐŝĂŶ��ƌŝƟƐŚ Ϭ Ϭй ϭй 
�ůĂĐŬͬ�ůĂĐŬ��ƌŝƟƐŚ� Ϯ Ϯй ϭй 
DŝǆĞĚ�,ĞƌŝƚĂŐĞ� Ϭ Ϭй ϭй 
tŚŝƚĞ�-��ƌŝƟƐŚ ϳϳ ϴϳй ϵϱй 
tŚŝƚĞ�-�KƚŚĞƌ� ϯ ϯй Ϯй 
WƌĞĨĞƌ�ŶŽƚ�ƚŽ�ƐĂǇ� ϰ ϱй Eͬ� 
KƚŚĞƌ ϯ ϯй Ϭ͘ϭй 

tŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ǇŽƵƌ�ĞƚŚŶŝĐŝƚǇ͍� 

�Ž�ǇŽƵ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌ�ǇŽƵƌƐĞůĨ�ƚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͍ 
�ĂƐĞ͗�ϴϴ ^ƵƌǀĞǇ��������

ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ 
dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚ�ϮϬϭϭ����

�ĞŶƐƵƐ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌŝƐŽŶ 
 EŽ͛Ɛ й й 
zĞƐ Ϯϴ ϯϮй ϭϴй 
EŽ ϱϰ ϲϭй ϴϮй 
WƌĞĨĞƌ�ŶŽƚ�ƚŽ�ƐĂǇ ϲ ϳй Eͬ� 

tŚĂƚ�ƚǇƉĞ�ŽĨ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ĚŽ�ǇŽƵ�ŚĂǀĞ͍ 
�ĂƐĞ͗�Ϯϴ 
 EŽ͛Ɛ й 
�ŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƟŽŶƐ Ϯ ϳй 
,ĞĂƌŝŶŐ ϰ ϭϰй 
>ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ Ϭ Ϭй 
DĞŶƚĂů�,ĞĂůƚŚ ϰ ϭϰй 
DŽďŝůŝƚǇ ϭϬ ϯϲй 
WŚǇƐŝĐĂů ϭϭ ϯϵй 
sŝƐƵĂů ϭ ϰй 
KƚŚĞƌ ϴ Ϯϵй 

^ƵƌǀĞǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ 

�ƌĞ�ǇŽƵ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀŝŶŐ�Ă�ZĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ�WĞŶƐŝŽŶ�Žƌ�����������
WĞŶƐŝŽŶ��ƌĞĚŝƚ͍ 
�ĂƐĞ͗�ϴϵ ^ƵƌǀĞǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ 
 EŽ͛Ɛ й 
zĞƐ ϯϰ ϯϴй 
EŽ ϱϬ ϱϲй 
WƌĞĨĞƌ�ŶŽƚ�ƚŽ�ƐĂǇ ϱ ϲй 

 6. APPENDIX 2: DEMOGRAPHIC MONITORING QUESTIONS  

tŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ǇŽƵƌ�ƌĞůĂƟŽŶƐŚŝƉ�ƐƚĂƚƵƐ͍ 
�ĂƐĞ͗�ϴϵ dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚ�ϮϬϭϭ�

�ĞŶƐƵƐ�����������
ĐŽŵƉĂƌŝƐŽŶΎ 

 EŽ͛Ɛ й й 
^ŝŶŐůĞ ϮϮ Ϯϱй ϯϮй 
DĂƌƌŝĞĚ ϱϯ ϲϬй ϰϵй 
>ŝǀŝŶŐ�ĂƐ�Ă�ĐŽƵƉůĞ ϴ ϵй Eͬ� 
�ŝǀŝů�WĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ ϭ ϭй Ϭ͘ϭй 
EŽŶĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ ϯ ϯй Eͬ� 
WƌĞĨĞƌ�ŶŽƚ�ƚŽ�ƐĂǇ Ϯ Ϯй Eͬ� 

^ƵƌǀĞǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ� 

Ύ�KƚŚĞƌ�ĐĞŶƐƵƐ�ĐĂƚĞŐŽƌŝĞƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞĚ͕�ĚŝǀŽƌĐĞĚ�Θ�ǁŝĚŽǁĞĚ 
Page 60



£2,192,551.83

£319,497.33

£1,000,246.03

£169,892.43

£3,379.42

£24,847.94

£231,028.35

£31,606.06

Group Description

Elderly

Working Age-Non-Passported-Disabled Child Premium

Working Age-Non-Passported-Other

Working Age-Non-Passported-Severe Disability

Working Age-Non-Passported-War Pensioners

Working Age-Passported-Disabled Child Premium

Working Age-Passported-Other

Working Age-Passported-Severe Disability

CTS Expenditure as of 2017-2018

20.11.2017 08:47:17 hbr0004a1 of 1

CTS Expenditure Summary Tamworth Borough 

Council

P
age 61



T
his page is intentionally left blank



20.11.2017 08:49:43 hbr0003a1 of 1

CTS Caseload Summary Tamworth Borough 
Council

P
age 63



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Protecting Pensioners and severely disabled working age claimants- Council Tax Reduction          1 

APPENDIX 4 

Equality Impact Assessment Template – Protecting Pensioner Cases 
and Severely Disabled Working Age Claimants 

 

 
Name of policy/ procedure/ 
practice to be assessed 

Introduction of Localised Council Tax 
Support (Council Tax Reduction  

Date of Assessment October 2016 

Is this a new or existing 
policy/ procedure/ 
practice? 

New Officer 
responsible for 
the Assessment 
 

Karen Taylor 
Head of Benefits 

Department  Benefit Services 

1. Briefly describe the aims, objectives and 
purpose of the policy/ procedure/ 
practice? 
 

The national Council Tax Benefit (CTB) scheme came to an end on 1st April 2013 was 
replaced by a locally determined system of Council Tax Reduction (CTR). The funding 
available for the new scheme will be cash limited. The aim of the new support scheme is to 
provide financial assistance to council taxpayers who have low incomes.  
 
Persons who are of state pension age are protected under the scheme in that the 
calculation of the reduction they receive has been set by Central Government. 
 
For working age applicants however the help they receive is to be determined by the local 
authority.  
 
This equality impact assessment looks at the ongoing potential for not only protecting 
pensioners (as required under the legislation) but also providing full support to all 
working age claimants who are considered severely disabled within the current Council 
Tax Benefit scheme. The definition of severely disabled is where the claimant or partner is 
in receipt of a severe disability premium, within either their Council Tax Reduction, 
Housing Benefit or other means tested benefit;  
 
The objective in continuing to adopt this policy would be to protect a specific section of 
the existing claimant group deemed to be highly vulnerable and independently verified as 
being he most seriously sick and not likely to be able to obtain work.  
 
The main issue for the Council is that the funding for support has been reduced 

P
age 65



 

Protecting Pensioners and severely disabled working age claimants- Council Tax Reduction          2 

significantly. However exempting this one additional group (bearing in mind that 
pensioners are already protected under the scheme by Central Government) would 
increase the shortfall in funding to be borne by working age claimants who are not 
deemed severely disabled. 
 
Central Government has not been prescriptive in how an authority should protect 
vulnerable groups but points to the Council’s existing responsibilities including the Child 
Poverty Act 2010, the Disabled Person Act 1986 and the Housing Act 1996 as well as the 
public sector equality duty in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010.  No definition has been 
given as to the level of disability which would lead to protection being given, although it is 
acknowledged that where a person is in the longer term able to undertake work, that they 
should be incentivised to do so. This would not apply to those who are deemed severely 
disabled. 
 
The current level of assistance provided to pension age claimants and to working age 
severely disabled claimants is given at the end of this assessment.  
 

2.  Are there any associated policy/ 
procedure/ practice which should be 
considered whilst carrying out this equality 
impact assessment? 

The authority is required to continue maintaining a full Housing Benefit scheme and also 
to continue to process claims for benefit alongside the introduction of the new scheme for 
Council Tax Reduction.  

3.  Who is intended to benefit from this 
policy/ procedure/ practice and in what 
way? 

All persons within the Borough who have a low income may apply for support and 
assistance with their Council Tax.  
 
By making an application, providing evidence of their income and household 
circumstances, their potential entitlement for support will be calculated in line with 
Central Government prescribed requirements for the Council Tax Reduction scheme. 
 
In the case of all claimants, it will be essential for the authority to correctly process claims 
for support based on the regulatory requirements and to ensure that all existing benefit 
claimants continue to receive support through the transition and onwards. 
 

P
age 66



 

Protecting Pensioners and severely disabled working age claimants- Council Tax Reduction          3 

4.  What are the desired outcomes from this 
policy/ procedure/ practice? 

 The desired outcomes are as follows; 
 
Pension Age Claimants 

 That existing pensioner claimants for Council Tax Benefit (up until 31st March 
2013) were successfully transferred to the new Council Tax Reduction scheme; 

 That all pensioners receive the level of support required by regulations set by 
Central Government (Council Tax Reduction Scheme (Prescribed Requirements) 
Regulations 2012);  

 That all new pensioner claimants or existing working age claimants who rise to 
pension age are able to receive Council Tax Reduction in line with the regulations; 
and 

 That all pensioner claimants continue to receive the correct level of support at all 
times. 

 
Severely Disabled Working Age Claimants 

 That existing severely disabled working age claimants who attract a Severe 
Disability Premium for Council Tax Benefit (up until 31st March 2013) were 
successfully transferred to the new Council Tax Reduction scheme; 

 That all working age severely disabled claimants who attract a Severe Disability 
Premium continue to receive the level of support previously provided under the 
Council Tax Benefit scheme 

 That all new working age severely disabled claimants who attract a Severe 
Disability Premium or existing working age claimants who become severely 
disabled and attract a Severe Disability Premium are able to receive Council Tax 
Reduction in line with the previous Council Tax Benefit scheme; and  

 That all working age severely disabled claimants who attract a Severe Disability 
Premium continue to receive the correct level of support at all times. 

 
5.  What factors/ forces could contribute/ 
detract from the outcomes? 

There are a number of factors which contribute to the outcomes of the new process 
namely; 

 That the new Council Tax Reduction scheme broadly replicates the previous 
Council Tax Benefit scheme for pension age claimants; 

 That management and staff are experienced in delivering means tested support / 
benefit schemes; and 

 That there is on going consultation where required, which ensures that delivery of 

P
age 67



 

Protecting Pensioners and severely disabled working age claimants- Council Tax Reduction          4 

the scheme is in line with legislative requirements. 
 
The factors / forces that could detract from these outcomes are as follows; 

 The failure of Central Government to approve the necessary legislation on time; 
 The failure of the Council’s software suppliers to deliver the necessary changes to 

existing software systems to enable the continued processing of the new support; 
and 

 The failure to deliver the significant means tested scheme on time. 
 
 

6. Who are the main 
stakeholders in relation to 
the policy/ procedure/ 
practice? 

In respect of the pension age and working age severely disabled claimants who attract a Severe Disability 
Premium for Council Tax Reduction, the main stakeholders are as follows; 
 
External Stakeholders; 

 Major Precepting authorities – County Council, Police Authority and Fire and Rescue Authority; 
 Parish Councils (local precepting authorities); 
 Pension Age claimants; 
 Working age severely disabled claimants 
 Potential pension age claimants; 
 Potential working age severely disabled claimants 
 Interested Groups such as Citizens Advice Bureau, Age Concern and Age UK, Disabled Persons 

Groups, RNIB, Action on hearing loss etc. 
 Council Taxpayers generally 

 
Internal Stakeholders; 

 Staff 
 

 

7.  Which individuals/ groups have been/ will be 
consulted with on this policy/ procedure/ practice? 

All major precepting authorities were consulted on the implementation of the 
new Council Tax Support scheme in 2012.   
 
A further full consultation with the public was undertaken August-October 2016 
as required by the legislation (Local Government Finance Act 2012). Whilst 
pension age claimants are protected, the authority still, as part of the 
consultation process, looked to pension age claimants and pensioners generally 

P
age 68



 

Protecting Pensioners and severely disabled working age claimants- Council Tax Reduction          5 

to respond to the consultation itself. 
 
In respect of working age severely disabled claimants who attract a Severe 
Disability Premium, it was essential to consult with the group as, being of 
working age, they will be directly affected by any changes decided by the 
Council. 
 
For working age claimants who are not classified as severely disabled within 
this policy, it was essential that extensive consultation is undertaken to obtain 
their views given that the level of support they receive will be reduced 
significantly in relation to the continued alignment of applicable amounts with 
those of Housing Benefit.  This means it is proposed to remove the family 
premium from any new claims for Council Tax Reduction for new, means tested 
claimants, from a date to be advised by Central Government (legislation not yet 
laid). 
 
The consultation process was comprehensive and encouraged a full response to 
the new support scheme itself (notwithstanding the fact that the authority is 
obliged to implement the scheme determined by Central Government for 
pension age claimants). 
 
Groups representing the disabled or chronically sick were directly consulted as 
part of the process. 
 
Public consultation took place during the period August 2016 until October 
2016. 
 
 

8. Are there concerns that the policy/ procedure/ 
practice could have a differential impact on racial 
groups? 
 
 

 
Y 

 
N 

✔ 

 
This proposed change to Council Tax Reduction should not affect the 
overall level of support to pension age claimants or working age 
severely disabled claimants who attract a Severe Disability Premium 
any differently to all other client groups and there would be no 
differential impact due to race 

P
age 69



 

Protecting Pensioners and severely disabled working age claimants- Council Tax Reduction          6 

9. Are there concerns that the policy/ procedure/ 
practice could have a differential impact due to 
gender? 
 
 

 
Y 

 
N 

✔ 

 
This proposed change to Council Tax Reduction should not affect the 
overall level of support to pension age claimants or working age 
severely disabled claimants who attract a Severe Disability Premium 
any differently to all other client groups and there would be no 
differential impact due to gender 

10. Are there concerns that the policy/ procedure/ 
practice could have a differential impact due to them 
being transgender or transsexual? 

 
Y 

 
N 

✔ 

 
This proposed change to Council Tax Reduction should not affect the 
overall level of support to pension age claimants or working age 
severely disabled claimants who attract a Severe Disability Premium 
any differently to all other client groups and there would be no 
differential impact due to a person being transgender or transsexual 

11. Are there concerns that the policy/ procedure/ 
practice could have a differential impact due to 
disability? 
 
 

 
Y 

✔ 

 
N 
 

 
This proposed change to Council Tax Reduction should not affect the 
overall level of support to pension age claimants any differently to any 
other client groups and - where there is a Severe Disability Premium, 
this would maintain the level of support given to working age claimants 
due to the following; 

 The award of additional premiums for severe disablement; 
 Disregarding higher levels of income where a claimant is in 

remunerative work and is severely disabled; and 
 There is no requirement to have non dependant deductions 

where a claimant is severely disabled 
 
Likewise any working age claimants who do not attract a Severe 
Disability Premium would not benefit from the policy any differently to 
all other client groups and would receive a reduction in support. 
 
 

12. Are there concerns that the policy/ procedure/ 
practice could have a differential impact due to sexual 
orientation? 
 
 

 
Y 

 
N 

✔ 

 
This proposed change to Council Tax Reduction should not affect the 
overall level of support to pension age or working age severely disabled 
claimants who attract a Severe Disability Premium any differently to all 
other client groups and there would be no differential impact due to 
sexual orientation 

P
age 70



 

Protecting Pensioners and severely disabled working age claimants- Council Tax Reduction          7 

13. Are there concerns that the policy/ procedure/ 
practice could have a differential impact due to age? 
 

 
Y 

✔ 

 
N 
 

 
This proposed change to Council Tax Reduction should not affect the 
overall level of support to pension age claimants or working age 
severely disabled claimants who attract a Severe Disability Premium 
any differently to all other client groups – however there is a 
differential impact due to age;  
 
For working age applicants the reduction they receive is to be 
determined by the local authority. 
 
To provide financial assistance for the scheme, Central Government is 
to provide funding to each billing authority in England, However the 
level of funding provided is to be less than the amount currently 
provided to support the existing Council Tax Benefit scheme.  
 
If working age severely disabled claimants who attract a Severe 
Disability Premium are to be protected in full, along with pension age 
claimants (as required by Central Government) there would be a 
decrease in the level of support available to all other working age 
claimants although this would be a large group over which the 
reduction could be spread. 
 
In the case of Tamworth Borough Council, the shortfall to be borne by 
working age claimants not deemed to be severely disabled who attract a 
Severe Disability Premium would amount to 25% per annum 
 

14. Are there concerns that the policy/ procedure/ 
practice could have a differential impact due to 
religious belief? 
 

 
Y 

 
N 

✔ 

 
This proposed change to Council Tax Reduction should not affect the 
overall level of support to pension age claimants or working age 
severely disabled claimants who attract a Severe Disability Premium 
any differently to all other client groups and there would be no 
differential impact due to religious belief 
 

P
age 71



 

Protecting Pensioners and severely disabled working age claimants- Council Tax Reduction          8 

15. Are there concerns that the policy/ procedure/ 
practice could have a differential impact on Gypsies/ 
Travellers? 
 

 
Y  

 
N 

✔ 

 
This proposed change to Council Tax Reduction should not affect the 
overall level of support to pension age claimants or working age 
severely disabled claimants who attract a Severe Disability Premium 
any differently to all other client groups and there would be no 
differential impact to gypsies or travellers 

16. Are there concerns that the policy/ procedure/ 
practice could have a differential impact due to 
dependant/caring responsibilities? 

 
Y 

✔ 

 
N 
 

 
This proposed change to Council Tax Reduction should not affect the 
overall level of support to pension age claimants or working age 
severely disabled claimants who attract a Severe Disability Premium 
any differently to all other client groups 

17. Are there concerns that the policy/ procedure/ 
practice could have a differential impact due to them 
having an offending past? 

 
Y 

 
N 

✔ 

 
This change to Council Tax Reduction should not affect the overall level 
of support to pension age claimants or working age severely disabled 
claimants who attract a Severe Disability Premium any differently to all 
other client groups and there would be no differential impact due 
having an offending past 
 

18.  Are there concerns that the policy/ procedure/ 
practice could have an impact on children or 
vulnerable adults? 
 
 

 
Y  

 
N 

✔ 

 
This proposed change to Council Tax Reduction should not affect the 
overall level of support to pension age claimants or working age 
severely disabled claimants who attract a Severe Disability Premium 
any differently to all other client groups and there would be no 
differential impact due to children or vulnerable adults being in the 
household  

 
19.   Does any of the differential impact identified cut 

across the equality strands (e.g. elder BME 
groups)? 

 
 

 
Y 

 
N 

✔ 

 
This proposed change to Council Tax Reduction should not affect the 
overall level of support to pension age claimants or working age 
severely disabled claimants who attract a Severe Disability Premium 
any differently to all other client groups and there would be no 
differential impact identified that cut across equality strands 

P
age 72



 

Protecting Pensioners and severely disabled working age claimants- Council Tax Reduction          9 

20. Could the differential impact identified in 8 – 19 
amount to there being the potential for adverse 
impact in this policy/ procedure/ practice? 
 
 

 
Y 

 
N 

✔ 

 
The adoption of this policy would, for pension age groups and working 
age severely disabled claimants who attract a Severe Disability 
Premium have no adverse impacts any differently to all other client 
groups. However the Council will continue to encourage pensioners and 
working age disabled persons to make claims for assistance. 

21.  Can this adverse impact be justified:   
 on the grounds of promoting equality of 

opportunity for one group?  
 For any other reason? 

 
 

Y 

✔ 

N 
 

 
The inclusion of just working age severely disabled claimants who 
attract a Severe Disability Premium, as a protected group would 
provide significant additional protection without overburdening the 
remaining working age claimant base 

22.  As a result of carrying out the equality impact 
assessment is there a requirement for further 
consultation? 

 

Y N 

✔ 

 
There will be no requirement to undertake further consultation 

23. As a result of this EIA should this policy/ 
procedure/ practice be recommended for 
implementation in it’s current state?   

 
 
 
 

Y 

✔ 

N 
 

 
It is the Council’s opinion that this policy to protect both pension 
age and all working age severely disabled claimants who attract a 
Severe Disability Premium, whilst them being subject to a 
maximum of 4 weeks’ Council Tax Reduction where the 
claimant(s) are abroad would be equitable and would ensure 
continued protection in all other aspects of the scheme to the most 
vulnerable within the Borough.  

 

P
age 73



 

Protecting Pensioners and severely disabled working age claimants- Council Tax Reduction          10 

Equality Impact Assessment Action Plan 
 
Complete the action plan demonstrating the changes required in order to meet TBC’s commitment to equality and diversity.  The 
action plan must contain monitoring arrangements, the publishing of results and the review period required for this policy. 
 

ACTION/ ACTIVITY  RESPONSIBILITY TARGET  PROGRESS  

Introduction of the Council Tax Reduction 
scheme for pensioners as prescribed by the 
Local Government Finance Act 2012 and 
defined within the Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme (Prescribed Requirements) 
Regulations 2012 
 

Karen Taylor 01/04/17 Ongoing 

Monitoring arrangements: 
 

 Data collected quarterly   

Full monitoring of scheme implementation 
on a monthly basis in line with the accepted 
project plan 

Karen Taylor Monthly and quarterly 
collection of data to be 
undertaken by the 
Benefits Service 

Ongoing 

Publication: 
 

   

The revised Council Tax Reduction scheme 
is to be published by the Council by April 
2016, after consideration at Cabinet and 
then full Council in December 2016. 
 

Karen Taylor  Ongoing 

Review Period: 
 

 Reviewed 12 monthly 
unless otherwise stated 

 

The scheme will be reviewed annually by 
both Central Government and the Borough 
Council 

Karen Taylor  Ongoing 

  
 

P
age 74



 

Protecting Pensioners and severely disabled working age claimants- Council Tax Reduction          11 

  

P
age 75



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
COUNCIL 

 
 

TUESDAY, 12 DECEMBER 2017 
 

 
 

REPORT OF THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR ASSETS AND FINANCE 

 
 
 

REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000, ADOPTION OF POLICY AND 
PROCEDURE   

 
 

EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 
None 
 
PURPOSE  
 
This report advises Members of the proposed amendments to the Corporate Policy 
governing the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 in light of the recent 
inspection by the Office of Surveillance Commissioner and seeks their consideration 
and recommendations in relation thereto. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Council 
 

1. considers the changes to the  RIPA policy on Directed  Surveillance, 
Covert Human Intelligence Sources (CHIS) and Acquisition of 
Communications Data, 

2. satisfies itself  that the changes meet the requirements imposed on the  
Council, and 

3.  ratifies the Policy. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The Council has a number of statutory functions that involve officers investigating the 
conduct of others with a view to bringing legal action against them. The Council has 
also been given powers under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 
(RIPA) which enable it to carry out Directed Surveillance in certain strict 
circumstances. RIPA provides a legal framework for the control and regulation of 
surveillance and information gathering techniques which public bodies such as 
Tamworth Borough Council have to comply with. These powers have been amended 
and changed in accordance with various pieces of legislation. The last change 
resulted in a revised RIPA Policy being approved by the Council on 16 May 2017. 
 
The Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 now requires that local authority authorisations 
under RIPA for Directed Surveillance or CHIS can only become effective on the 
granting of an order approving the authorisation by a Justice of the Peace. Further a 
local authority can now only have an authorisation under RIPA for the use of Directed 
Surveillance where the local authority is investigating criminal offences which attract 

Page 77

Agenda Item 9



 
 
 
 
a maximum custodial sentence of six months or more or criminal offences relating to 
the underage sale of alcohol or tobacco under the Licensing Act 2003 of the Children 
and Families Act 2014.  
 

Since 2011 No Directed Surveillance has been carried out by the Council since 2011 and it is not 
envisaged that there will be any appreciable change in the foreseeable future.  By 
adhering to this proposed Policy  the Council will ensure that the acquisition and 
disclosure of data is lawful, necessary and proportionate so that the Council is  not 
held to be in breach of Article 8 (the right to respect for private family life, home and 
correspondence ) of the European Convention on Human Rights.  
 
In July 2017 the Office of the Surveillance Commissioner (OSC) conducted an 
inspection into the RIPA policy, procedures, documentation and training   utilised at 
the Council. Arising from the inspection it has been recommended that guidance 
regarding use of internet and social networking sites (SNS) for research of persons 
and how this might meet the requirement as directed surveillance or CHIS should be 
drawn up, inserted into our policy and procedures  and actively disseminated to staff.  
 
 
The attached draft policy and protocol will ensure that the acquisition and disclosure 
of data is lawful, necessary and proportionate, so that the Council is not held to be in 
breach of any citizen’s human rights and that data obtained under such measures 
would be used to assist in the successful prosecution of relevant criminal offences. 
The draft policy and protocol was considered by Audit and Governance Committee 
on 26 October 2017, the committee considered the changes to the RIPA policy on 
Directed Surveillance, Covert Human Intelligence Sources (CHIS) and Acquisition of 
Communications Data, were satisfied that the changes met the requirements 
imposed on the Council in terms of the legislation and Codes of Practice and the 
recommendations of the Surveillance Commissioner. 
 
 
OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
The Policy is to a large extent defined by the requirements of RIPA and the most 
recent Home Office Codes of Practice. The recommended policy is consistent with 
the new policies and guidance, it now reflects the recommendations of the 
Surveillance Commissioner too; there is little scope if any to do otherwise. 
 
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no direct resource implications arising from the adoption of the policy and 
procedure. Any applications and training costs will be met from existing budgets.  
 
 
LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS  
 
Failure to follow the policy and procedure could result in the Council being open to 
challenge, unnecessary legal risk and ultimately responsible in damages for any 
breach of the Codes of Practice and Human Rights legislation. The Office of 
Surveillance Commissioners would also severely criticise such failure and the 

Page 78



 
 
 
adverse publicity arising therefrom could damage the Council’s reputation and not 
serve in its best interests. 
 
The policy and procedure will provide guidance to staff on the processing and 
procedure to obtain a RIPA authorisation, reducing the risk of legal challenge to the 
procedure itself and the evidence obtained.  
 
Risk has been identified in the following areas: training of Officers, Collateral 
Intrusion and changes to legislation and procedures surrounding RIPA. However this 
has been addressed, training was provided for staff and members in October, the 
Netconsent function and email is used to disseminate the policy and inform training 
events. The inclusion of guidance in relation to social networking sites addresses 
issues in relation to collateral intrusion. The Solicitor to the Council reviews the policy 
regularly to ensure legislative and Home Office compliance. Quarterly reports are 
made to Audit & Governance Committee and an annual report to full Council. Finally 
provision exists in the policy itself to mitigate any other associated risks.  
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
Under current arrangements the Policy and training requirements are currently 
sustainable and remain so for the foreseeable future.  
 
REPORT AUTHOR 
 
Jane Marie Hackett, Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer  tel 01827 709258 
 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 
Regulation of Investigatory Powers (Directed Surveillance and Covert Human 
Intelligence Sources) (Amendment) Order 2012 
The Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 
Home Office – Covert Surveillance and Property Interference Code of Practice 
Home Office – Covert Human Intelligence Sources Code of Practice 
Office of Surveillance Commissioner Inspection Report – August 2017 
 
APPENDIX 1  
 
 Proposed RIPA Policy and Procedure 
 
 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000 (RIPA) 
POLICY STATEMENT, STRATEGY & GUIDANCE NOTES 

 

 
 

Document Status: Final 

 

 

 
Originator: J M Hackett 

 
Updated: J M Hackett 

 
Owner: Solicitor to the Council – Corporate Services 

 
Version: 01.01.03 

 
Date: 17/01/2017 

 

 

 

 
Approved by Audit & Governance Committee  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 81



 

2 

Document Location 
 

This document is held by Tamworth Borough Council, and the document owner is 
Jane Marie Hackett, Solicitor to the Council – Corporate Services. 
 
Printed documents may be obsolete. An electronic copy will be available on 
Tamworth Borough Councils Intranet. Please check for current version before using.   
  
 

 
Revision History 
Revision Date Version Control Summary of changes 

 1.01.01 Scheduled review  

December 2008 1.01.02 Scheduled review 

September 2010 1.01.03 Scheduled review 

September 2011 1.01.04 Scheduled review 

December 2012 1.01.05 Scheduled review 

November 2014 1.01.06 Scheduled review 

April 2015 1.01.07 Scheduled review 

February 2016 1.01.08 Scheduled review 

January 2017 1.01.09 Scheduled review 

October 2017 1.01.09 OSC recommendation 

 
 
 

Approvals 
Name Title Approved 

Audit & Governance 
Committee 

Committee Approval Yes 

Council Council Approval Yes 

CMT  Group Approval Yes 

John Wheatley Executive Director – Corporate 
Services 

Yes 

Jane Marie Hackett Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring 
Officer 

Yes 

 
 

Document Review Plans 
 
This document is subject to a scheduled annual review. Updates shall be made in 
accordance with business requirements and changes and will be with agreement with 
the document owner. 
 
 

Distribution 
 
The document will be available on the Intranet and the website. 
 

Page 82



 

3 

 

TAMWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

POLICY & PROCEDURE 
 
 
 

REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY 
POWERS ACT 2000 

(RIPA) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Jane Marie Hackett 
Solicitor to the Council 
Tamworth Borough Council 

Page 83



 

4 

Policy date: Review:  Revised: October 2017 

 CONTENTS  
  Page No. 

 
Section A Introduction 

 
5 - 6 

 
Section B Effective Date of Operation and Authorising Officer Responsibilities 

 
7 - 8 

 
Section C General Information on RIPA 

 

9 
 

Section D What RIPA Does and Does Not Do 
 

10 
 

Section E Types of Surveillance 
 

11 - 13 
 

Section F Conduct and Use of a Covert Human Intelligence Source 
(CHIS) 
 

14 - 18 
 

Section G Social Networking Sites 
 

19 - 20 

Section H 
 

The Role of the RIPA Co-ordinator 21 - 22 

Section I Authorisation Procedures 
 

23 - 31 

Section J Working with other Agencies 
 

32 - 33 

Section K Record Management 
 

34 - 35 

Section L Acquisition of Communications Data 
 

36 - 39 

Section M Conclusion 
 
 
 

40 

Appendix 1 A Forms – Directed Surveillance 
 

41 

Appendix 2 B Forms – Conduct of a Covert Human Intelligence Source 
 

42 

Appendix 3 C Forms – CHIS 

 
 
 

43 

Annex A 
 

Local Authority Procedure 44 

Annex B 
 

JP Procedure 45 

Annex C Application for Judicial Approval and Order Form 
 

46 - 48 

           
 
     
 
 

Page 84



 

5 

 
 
Section A 
 
Introduction 

1.  OBJECTIVE: SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES; SAFER AND STRONGER 
COMMUNITIES 

Tamworth Borough Council is committed to improving the quality of life for the 
communities of Tamworth which includes benefiting from an attractive place to 
live, meeting the needs of local people and employers with opportunities for all 
to engage in community life.   It also wishes to maintain its position as a low 
crime borough and a safe place to live, work and learn. Although most of the 
community comply with the law, it is necessary for Tamworth to carry out 
enforcement functions to take full action against those who flout the law.  
Tamworth Borough Council will carry out enforcement action in a fair, practical 
and consistent manner to help promote a thriving local economy. 
 

2. HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998 – ARTICLE 8 – RIGHT TO RESPECT FOR 
PRIVATE & FAMILY LIFE, HOME AND CORRESPONDENCE 
 
The Human Rights Act 1998 brought into UK domestic law much of the 
European Convention on Human Rights and Fundamental Freedoms 1950.  
Article 8 of the European Convention requires the Council to respect the private 
and family life of its citizens, their homes and their correspondence.  Article 8 
does, however, recognise that there may be circumstances in a democratic 
society where it is necessary for the state to interfere with this right. 
 

3. USE OF COVERT SURVEILLANCE TECHNIQUES AND HUMAN 
INTELLIGENCE SOURCES 
 
The Council has various functions which involve observing or investigating the 
conduct of others, for example, investigating anti-social behaviour, fly tipping, 
noise nuisance control, planning (contraventions),fraud, licensing and food 
safety legislation.  In most cases, Council officers carry out these functions 
openly and in a way which does not interfere with a person’s right to a private 
life. However, there are cases where it is necessary for officers to use covert 
surveillance techniques to undertake a specific investigation. The use of covert 
surveillance techniques is regulated by the Regulation of Investigatory Powers 
Act 2000 (RIPA), which seeks to ensure that the public interest and human 
rights of individuals are appropriately balanced.  This document sets out the 
Council’s policy and procedures on the use of covert surveillance techniques 
and the conduct and use of a Covert Human Intelligence Source. You should 
also refer to the two Codes of Practice published by the Government. These 
Codes are on the Home Office website and supplement the procedures in this 
document. The Codes are admissible as evidence in Criminal and Civil 
Proceedings. If a provision of these Codes appear relevant to any court or 
tribunal, it must be taken into account. 

 

Page 85



 

6 

 
The Codes of Practice for both Covert Surveillance and Covert Human 
Intelligence Sources can be obtained by following the link below: 
 
 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covert-surveillance-and-covert-
human-intelligence-sources-codes-of-practice 
 
 
There are also two other guidance documents relating the procedural changes 
regarding the authorisation process requiring Justice of the Peace approval from 
the 1st November 2012.  These have been issued by the Home Office to both 
Local Authorities and Magistrates. 
 
http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/publications/counter-terrorism/ripa-forms/local-
authority-ripa-guidance/ 
 

4. ACQUISITION OF COMMUNICATIONS DATA 
 

RIPA also regulates the acquisition of communications data.  Communications 
data is data held by telecommunications companies and internet service 
providers. Examples of communications data which may be acquired with 
authorisation include names, addresses, telephone numbers, internet provider 
addresses. Communications data surveillance does not monitor the content of 
telephone calls or emails.  This document sets out the procedures for the 
acquisition of communications data. You should also refer to the Code of 
Practice which is available on the Home Office website. 
 
Acquisition and Disclosure of Communications Data Revised Draft Code of 
Practice: 
 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/4
26248/Acquisition_and_Disclosure_of_Communications_Data_Code_of_Practic
e_March_2015 
 
 
 

Page 86

http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/publications/counter-terrorism/ripa-forms/local-authority-ripa-guidance/
http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/publications/counter-terrorism/ripa-forms/local-authority-ripa-guidance/
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/426248/Acquisition_and_Disclosure_of_Communications_Data_Code_of_Practice_March_2015
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/426248/Acquisition_and_Disclosure_of_Communications_Data_Code_of_Practice_March_2015
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/426248/Acquisition_and_Disclosure_of_Communications_Data_Code_of_Practice_March_2015


 

7 

Section B 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF OPERATION AND AUTHORISING OFFICER 
RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

1. The Policy and Procedures in this document have been amended to reflect the 
latest Codes of Practice which are in force and the legislative amendments 
which require Justice of the Peace (JP) approval for all Local Authority RIPA 
applications and renewals, which came in effect on 1 November 2012, changes 
in website addresses and application forms, as well as to reflect 
recommendations arising out of inspection by the Office of Surveillance 
Commissioners and their guidance documents. It is essential, therefore, that 
Authorising Officers, take personal responsibility for the effective and efficient 
observance of this document and the Office of Surveillance Commissioners 
(OSC) guidance documents.  

 

2. It will be the responsibility of Authorising Officers to ensure that their relevant 
members of staff are suitably trained as ‘Applicants’. 

 

3. Authorising Officers will also ensure that staff who report to them follow this 
Policy and Procedures Document and do not undertake or carry out surveillance 
activity that meets the criteria as set out by RIPA without first obtaining the 
relevant authorisations in compliance with this document. 

 

4. Authorising Officers must also pay particular attention to health and safety 
issues that may be raised by any proposed surveillance activity. Under no 
circumstances, should an Authorising Officer approve any RIPA form unless, 
and until they are satisfied that 

 

 the health and safety of Council employees/agents are suitably addressed 

 risks minimised so far as is possible, and 

 risks are proportionate to the surveillance being proposed. 
 

If an Authorising Officer is in any doubt, prior guidance should be obtained from 
the Solicitor to the Council.  

 

5. Authorising Officers must also ensure that, when sending copies of any Forms 
to the Solicitor to the Council (or any other relevant authority), that they are sent 
in sealed envelopes and marked ‘Strictly Private & Confidential’. 

 

6. In Accordance with the Codes of Practice, the Senior Responsible Officer  
   (SRO) who is the Solicitor to the Council is responsible for   

 

 the integrity of the process in place within the public authority to 
authorise directed and intrusive surveillance  

 compliance with Part II of the 2000 Act, and with this code; 

 engagement with the Commissioners and inspectors when they 
conduct their inspections, and 

 where necessary, overseeing the implementation of any post inspection 
      action plans recommended or approved by a Commissioner. 

 

Page 87



 

8 

    
   The Solicitor to the Council is also the RIPA Co-ordinator. The key  
    responsibilities of the RIPA Co-ordinator are set out in Section G of this   
    document.  

 
7. The Chief Operating Officer in consultation with Corporate Management Team 

has power to appoint Authorising Officers for the purposes of RIPA. Authorising 
Officers will only be appointed on the Chief Operating Officer being satisfied that 
suitable training on RIPA has been undertaken.   

 
8. The Solicitor to the Council will review the policy every six months and annual 

reports on performance of the policy will be presented to Council. 
 

9. Quarterly reports on the use of RIPA will be considered by the Audit and 
Governance Committee. 

Page 88



 

9 

Section C 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION ON RIPA 
 
1. The Human Rights Act 1998 requires the Council, and organisations working on 

its behalf, pursuant to Article 8 of the European Convention, to respect the 
private and family life of citizens, their homes and their correspondence. 

 
2. The European Convention did not, however, make this an absolute right, but a 

qualified right. Accordingly, in certain circumstances, the Council may interfere 
in the citizen’s right mentioned above, if such interference is:- 
 
(a)  in accordance with the Law; 
 
(b)  necessary in the circumstances of the particular case; and 
 
(c)  proportionate to what it seeks to achieve. 
 

3. The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (‘RIPA’) provides a statutory 
mechanism (ie. ‘in accordance with the law’) for authorising covert surveillance 
and the use of a ‘covert human intelligence source’ (‘CHIS’) – eg. 
undercover agents. It seeks to ensure that any interference with an individual’s 
right under Article 8 of the European Convention is necessary and 
proportionate. In doing so, RIPA and this Policy and Procedure document seeks 
to ensure both the public interest and the human rights of individuals are 
suitably balanced. 

 
4. Directly employed Council staff and external agencies working for the Council 

are covered by the Act for the time they are working for the Council. All external 
agencies must, therefore, comply with RIPA and the work carried out by 
agencies on the Council’s behalf, must be properly authorised by one of the 
Council’s designated Authorising Officers. They may also be inspected by the 
OSC in respect of that particular operation.  This should be pointed out during 
the instruction and contract stage.  It is also important that the Authorising 
Officer is aware of the abilities of the operatives to ensure they are capable of 
undertaking the surveillance. Please refer to Section H and to the paragraph on 
“Authorising Officers.” 

 
5. If the correct procedures are not followed, evidence may be disallowed by the 

courts, a complaint of maladministration could be made to the Ombudsman 
and/or the Council could be ordered to pay compensation. 

 
 
 

Page 89



 

10 

Section D 
 
WHAT RIPA DOES AND DOES NOT DO 
 
1. RIPA: 

 requires prior authorisation of directed surveillance. 

 prohibits the Council from carrying out intrusive surveillance. 

 requires authorisation of the conduct and use of a CHIS. 

 requires safeguards for the conduct and use of a CHIS. 
 

2. RIPA does not: 

 make lawful conduct which is otherwise unlawful. 

 prejudice or affect any existing powers available to the Council to obtain 
information by any means not involving conduct that may be authorised 
under this Act. For example, the Council’s current powers to obtain 
information from the DVLA or from the Land Registry as to the ownership 
of a property. 

 
3. If the Authorising Officer or any Applicant is in any doubt, s/he should ask the 

Solicitor to the Council BEFORE any directed surveillance and/or CHIS is 
authorised, renewed, cancelled or rejected. 

 

Page 90



 

11 

Section E 
  
TYPES OF SURVEILLANCE 
 
‘Surveillance’ includes: 
 

 monitoring, observing and listening to persons, watching or following their 
movements, listening to their conversations and other such activities or 
communications. It may be conducted with or without the assistance of a 
surveillance device. 
 

 recording anything mentioned above in the course of authorised surveillance. 
 

 
Surveillance can be overt or covert. 
 
Overt Surveillance 
 
Most of the surveillance carried out by the Council will be done overtly – there will be 
nothing secretive, clandestine or hidden about it. They will be going about Council 
business openly. Similarly, surveillance will be overt if the subject has been told it will 
happen (e.g. where a noisemaker is warned (preferably in writing) that noise will be 
recorded. 
 
Covert Surveillance 
 
Covert Surveillance is carried out in a manner calculated to ensure that the person 
subject to the surveillance is unaware of it taking place. (Section 26(9)(a) of RIPA).  
 
RIPA regulates two types of covert surveillance, (Directed Surveillance and Intrusive 
Surveillance) and the use of Covert Human Intelligence Sources (CHIS). 
 
 
Directed Surveillance 
 
Directed Surveillance is surveillance which:- 
 is covert; and 

 is not intrusive surveillance (see definition below – the Council cannot carry out 
any intrusive surveillance). 

 is not carried out as in an immediate response to events which would otherwise 
make seeking authorisation under the Act reasonable, eg. spotting something 
suspicious and continuing to observe it; and 

 it is undertaken for the purpose of a specific investigation or operation in a 
manner likely to obtain private information about an individual (whether or not 
that person is specifically targeted for purposes of an investigation). (Section 
26(10) RIPA). 

 
 
Private Information in relation to a person includes any information relating to his 
private and family life, his home or his correspondence. The fact that covert 

Page 91



 

12 

surveillance occurs in a public place or on business premises does not mean that it 
cannot result in the obtaining of private information about a person. Prolonged 
surveillance targeted on a single person will undoubtedly result in the obtaining of 
private information about him/her and others with whom s/he comes into contact. 
Private information may include personal data such as names, addresses or 
telephone numbers. Where such information is acquired by means of covert 
surveillance of a person having a reasonable expectation of privacy, a directed 
surveillance authorisation is appropriate. 
 
Similarly, although overt town centre CCTV cameras do not normally require 
authorisation, if the camera is tasked for a specific purpose, which involves 
prolonged surveillance on a particular person, authorisation will be required. The way 
a person runs his/her business may also reveal information about his or her private 
life and the private lives of others.  Privacy considerations are likely to arise if several 
records are examined together to establish a pattern of behaviour. 
 
For the avoidance of doubt, only those Officers appointed as ‘Authorising 
Officers’ for the purpose of RIPA can authorise ‘Directed Surveillance’ IF, AND 
ONLY IF, the RIPA authorisation procedures detailed in this Document, are 
followed. 
 
Intrusive Surveillance 
 
This is when it:- 

 is covert; 

 relates to residential premises and private vehicles, even if used on a 
temporary basis and 

 involves the presence of a person in the premises or in the vehicle or is 
carried out by a surveillance device in the premises/vehicle.  Surveillance 
equipment mounted outside the premises will not be intrusive, unless the 
device consistently provides information of the same quality and detail as 
might be expected if they were in the premises/vehicle. 

 
This form of surveillance can be carried out only by police and other law 
enforcement agencies. Intrusive surveillance relates to the location of the 
surveillance, and not any consideration of the information that is likely to be 
obtained.  Council officers cannot carry out intrusive surveillance. 
 
 
“Proportionality” 
 
This term contains three concepts:- 

 the surveillance should not be excessive in relation to the gravity of the matter 
being investigated; 

 the least intrusive method of surveillance should be chosen; and 

 collateral intrusion involving invasion of third parties’ privacy and should, so far 
as possible, be minimised. 

 

Proportionality involves balancing the intrusiveness of the activity on the subject 
and others who might be affected by it against the need for the activity in operational 

Page 92



 

13 

terms. The activity will not be proportionate if it is excessive in the circumstances of 
the case, or if the information which is sought could reasonably be obtained by other 
less intrusive means. All such activity should be carefully managed to meet the 
objective in question and must not be arbitrary or unfair. The interference with the 
person’s right should be no greater than that which is required to meet the aim and 
objectives. 

The onus is on the Authorising Officer to ensure that the surveillance meets the tests 
of necessity and proportionality. 
 
The codes provide guidance relating to proportionality which should be considered by 
both applicants and Authorising Officers : 
 

 balancing the size and scope of the proposed activity against the gravity and 
extent of the perceived crime or offence; 

 

 explaining how and why the methods to be adopted will cause the least possible 
intrusion on the subject and others;  

 

 considering whether the activity is an appropriate use of the legislation and a 
reasonable way, having considered all reasonable alternatives, of obtaining the 
necessary result; 

 

 evidencing, as far as reasonably practicable, what other methods had been 
considered and why they were not implemented. 

 
When considering the intrusion, it is important that the Authorising Officer is fully 
aware of the technical capabilities of any proposed equipment to be used, and that 
any images are managed in line with the Data Protection Act and Home Office 
Guidance.  These issues have a direct bearing on determining proportionality.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 93



 

14 

 
Section F 

Covert Human Intelligence Source (CHIS) 

 

Staff will need to know when someone providing information may become a CHIS, 
and in these circumstances the Council is required to have procedures in place 
should this be necessary.  However, if it appears that use of a CHIS may be required, 
Authorising Officers must seek legal advice from the Solicitor to the Council. 

 
A CHIS could be an informant or an undercover officer carrying out covert enquiries 
on behalf of the council.  However, the provisions of the 2000 Act are not intended to 
apply in circumstances where members of the public volunteer information to the 
Council as part of their normal civic duties, or to contact numbers set up to receive 
information such as the  Fraud Hot Line.  Members of the public acting in this way 
would not generally be regarded as sources. 
 
Under section 26(8) of the 2000 Act a person is a source if: 
 
a) he establishes or maintains a personal or other relationship with a person for 

the covert purpose of facilitating the doing of anything falling within paragraph 
(b) or (c); 

 
b) he covertly uses such a relationship to obtain information or to provide access 

to any information to another person; or 
 

c) he covertly discloses information obtained by the use of such a relationship or 
as a consequence of the existence of such a relationship. 

 
By virtue of section 26(9)(b) of the 2000 Act a purpose is covert, in relation to the 
establishment or maintenance of a personal or other relationship, if and only if, the 
relationship is conducted in a manner that is calculated to ensure that one of the 
parties to the relationship is unaware of the purpose. 
 
By virtue of section 26(9)(c) of the 2000 Act a relationship is used covertly, and 
information obtained  as above is disclosed covertly, if and only if it is used or, as the 
case may be, disclosed in a manner that is calculated to ensure that one of the 
parties to the relationship is unaware of the use or disclosure in question. 

Conduct and Use of a Source 

 
The use of a source involves inducing, asking or assisting a person to engage in the 
conduct of a source or to obtain information by means of the conduct of such a 
source. 
 
The conduct of a source is any conduct falling within a), b), or c), mentioned above, 
or which is incidental to anything falling within those sections.  
 

Page 94



 

15 

The use of a source is what the Authority does in connection with the source and 
the conduct is what a source does to fulfill whatever tasks are given to them or 
which is incidental to it.  The Use and Conduct require separate consideration 
before authorisation. 
 
When completing applications for the use of a CHIS, the applicant must state who 
the CHIS is, what they can do and for which purpose. 
 
When determining whether a CHIS authorisation is required, consideration should be 
given to the covert relationship between the parties and the purposes mentioned in a, 
b, and c above. 

Management of Sources 

 
Within the provisions there has to be; 
 
(a) a person who has the day to day responsibility for dealing with the source and 
 for the source’s security and welfare (Handler) 
 
(b) at all times there will be another person who will have general oversight of the 
 use made of the source (Controller) 
 
(c) at all times there will be a person who will have responsibility for maintaining a 
 record of the use made of the source 
 
The Handler will have day to day responsibility for: 
 

 dealing with the source on behalf of the authority concerned;  
 

 directing the day to day activities of the source; 
 

 recording the information supplied by the source; and 
 

 monitoring the source’s security and welfare;  
 
The Controller will be responsible for the general oversight of the use of the source. 
 

Tasking 

 
Tasking is the assignment given to the source by the Handler or Controller by asking 
him to obtain information, to provide access to information, or to otherwise act, 
incidentally, for the benefit of the relevant public authority.  Authorisation for the use 
or conduct of a source is required prior to any tasking where such tasking requires 
the source to establish or maintain a personal or other relationship for a covert 
purpose. 
 
In some instances, the tasking given to a person will not require the source to 
establish a personal or other relationship for a covert purpose.  For example, a 
source may be tasked with finding out purely factual information about the layout of 

Page 95



 

16 

commercial premises.  Alternatively, a Council Officer may be involved in the test 
purchase of items which have been labelled misleadingly or are unfit for 
consumption.  In such cases, it is for the Council to determine where, and in what 
circumstances, such activity may require authorisation.    
 
Should a CHIS authority be required, all of the staff involved in the process 
should make themselves fully aware of all of the aspects relating to tasking 
contained within the CHIS codes of Practice 
 

Management Responsibility 

 
The Council will ensure that arrangements are in place for the proper oversight and 
management of sources including appointing a Handler and Controller for each 
source prior to a CHIS authorisation.   
 
The Handler of the source will usually be of a rank or position below that of the 
Authorising Officer. 
 
It is envisaged that the use of a CHIS will be infrequent.  Should a CHIS application 
be necessary, the CHIS Codes of Practice should be consulted to ensure that the 
Council can meet its management responsibilities. 
 

Security and Welfare 

 
The Council has a responsibility for the safety and welfare of the source and for the 
consequences to others of any tasks given to the source.  Before authorising the use 
or conduct of a source, the Authorising Officer should ensure that a risk assessment 
is carried out to determine the risk to the source of any tasking and the likely 
consequences should the role of the source become known.  The ongoing security 
and welfare of the source, after the cancellation of the authorisation, should also be 
considered at the outset. 
 

Record Management for CHIS 

 
Proper records must be kept of the authorisation and use of a source.  The 
particulars to be contained within the records are; 

 

a. the identity of the source; 

b. the identity, where known, used by the source; 

c. any relevant investigating authority other than the authority maintaining the 
records; 

d. the means by which the source is referred to within each relevant 
investigating authority; 

Page 96



 

17 

e. any other significant information connected with the security and welfare of 
the source; 

f. any confirmation made by a person granting or renewing an authorisation for 
the conduct or use of a source that the information in paragraph (d) has been 
considered and that any identified risks to the security and welfare of the 
source have where appropriate been properly explained to and understood by 
the source; 

g. the date when, and the circumstances in which the source was recruited; 

h. the identities of the persons who, in relation to the source, are discharging or 
have discharged the functions mentioned in section 29(5)(a) to (c) of the 2000 
Act or in any order made by the Secretary of State under section 29(2)(c); 

i. the periods during which those persons have discharged those 
responsibilities; 

j. the tasks given to the source and the demands made of him in relation to his 
activities as a source; 

k. all contacts or communications between the source and a person acting on 
behalf of any relevant investigating authority; 

l. the information obtained by each relevant investigating authority by the 
conduct or use of the source; 

m. any dissemination by that authority of information obtained in that way; and 

n. in the case of a source who is not an undercover operative, every payment, 
benefit or reward and every offer of a payment, benefit or reward that is made 
or provided by or on behalf of any relevant investigating authority in respect of 
the source's activities for the benefit of that or any other relevant investigating 
authority. 

 
Juvenile Sources 
 
Special safeguards apply to the use or conduct of juvenile sources (i.e. those under 
the age of 18). On no occasion can a child under 16 years of age be authorised to 
give information against his or her parents or any person with parental responsibility 
for him or her. Only the Chief Operating Officer, or in his absence, the Deputy Chief 
Operating Officer can authorise the use of a juvenile as a source. 
 
Vulnerable Individuals 
 
A Vulnerable Individual is a person who is or may be in need of community care 
services by reason of mental or other disability, age or illness and who is or may be 
unable to take care of himself or herself, or unable to protect himself or herself 
against significant harm or exploitation. 
 

Page 97



 

18 

A Vulnerable Individual will only be authorised to act as a source in the most 
exceptional of circumstances. Only the Chief Operating Officer, or in his absence, the 
Executive Director Corporate Services can authorise the use of a vulnerable 
individual as a source. 
 
Test Purchases 
 
Carrying out test purchases will not normally require the purchaser to establish a 
relationship with the supplier with the covert purpose of obtaining information and, 
therefore, the purchaser will not normally be a CHIS. For example, authorisation as a 
CHIS would not normally be required for test purchases carried out in the ordinary 
course of business (e.g. walking into a shop and purchasing a product over the 
counter). 
 
By contrast, developing a relationship with a person in the shop, to obtain information 
about the seller’s suppliers of an illegal product (e.g. illegally imported products) will 
require authorisation as a CHIS. Similarly, using mobile hidden recording devices or 
CCTV cameras to record what is going on in the shop will require authorisation as 
directed surveillance. A combined authorisation can be given for a CHIS and also 
directed surveillance. However it will be necessary to complete the relevant separate 
application forms. 
 
Authorising Officers should consider the likelihood that the test purchase will lead to 
a relationship being formed with a person in the shop. If the particular circumstances 
of a particular test purchase are likely to involve the development of a relationship 
Authorising Officers must seek legal advice from the Solicitor to the Council. 
 
If several shop premises are included on one application for Directed Surveillance, 
each premises will be required to be assessed by the Authorising Officer individually 
on their own merits. 
 
Anti-Social Behaviour Activities (e.g. Noise, Violence, Race etc.) 
 
As from 1 November 2012 there is no provision for a Local Authority to use RIPA to 
conduct covert activities for disorder such as anti-social behaviour, unless there are 
criminal offences involved which attract a maximum custodial sentence of six 
months.  Should it be necessary to conduct covert surveillance for disorder which 
does not meet the serious crime criteria of a custodial sentence of a maximum of six 
months, this surveillance would be classed as surveillance outside of RIPA, and 
would still have to meet the Human Rights Act provisions of Necessity and 
Proportionality 
 
Persons who complain about anti-social behaviour, and are asked to keep a diary, 
will not normally be a CHIS, as they are not required to establish or maintain a 
relationship for a covert purpose. Recording the level of noise (eg. the decibel level) 
will not normally capture private information and, therefore, does not require 
authorisation. 
 
 
  

Page 98



 

19 

Section G 
 
Social Networking Sites 
 
Social networking sites can provide useful information as part of an investigation.  
However, Council Officers must consider if a RIPA authorisation is required if they 
are accessing social networking sites for this purpose before undertaking any 
monitoring of a site. 
 
Whilst initial research of social networking sites to establish a fact or collaborate an 
intelligence picture is unlikely to require an authorisation for directed surveillance 
repeat viewing of ‘open source’ sites may constitute directed surveillance on a case 
by case basis and this should be borne in mind eg., if someone is being monitoring 
through, for example, their Facebook profile for a period of time and a record of the 
information is kept for later analysis, this is likely to require a RIPA authorisation for 
directed surveillance.  The key consideration is whether there is a repeated and 
systematic collection of personal information. 
 
In addition council officers must be aware that the fact that digital investigation is 
routine or easy to conduct does not reduce the need for authorisation.  Care must be 
taken to understand how the social networking site being used works.  Authorising 
Officers must not assume that one service provider is the same as another or that the 
services provided by a single provider are the same.  Whilst it is the responsibility of 
an individual to set privacy settings to protect unsolicited access to private 
information and even though data may be deemed published and no longer under 
the control of the author, it is unwise to regard it as ‘open source’ or publicly 
available. 
 
The author has a reasonable expectation of privacy if access controls are applied.  In 
some cases, data may be deemed private communication still in transmission 
(instant messages for example).  Where privacy settings are available but not applied 
the data may be considered ‘open source’ and an authorisation is not usually 
required. 
 
However, repeat viewing of ‘open source’ sites may constitute directed surveillance 
on a case by case basis and this should be borne in mind eg., if someone is being 
monitored through, for example, their Facebook profile for a period of time and a 
record of the information is kept for later analysis, this is likely to require a RIPA 
authorisation for directed surveillance. 
 
It is necessary and proportionate for the Council to covertly breach access controls, 
an authorisation for directed surveillance is required.  An authorisation for the use 
and conduct of a CHIS is necessary if a relationship is established or maintained by a 
Council Officer or by a person acting on the Council’s behalf (ie., the activity is more 
than mere reading of the site’s content).  It is not unlawful for a Council Officer to set 
up a false identity, but this must not be done for a covert purpose without 
authorisation.  Using photographs of other persons without their permission to 
support the false identify infringes other laws and such photographs must not be 
used. 
 

Page 99



 

20 

To avoid the potential for inadvertent or inappropriate use of social network sites in 
investigative and enforcement roles, Council Officers should be mindful of the 
following: 
 

 Do not create a false identity in order to ‘befriend’ individuals on social networks 
without authorisation under RIPA; 

 When viewing an individual’s public profile on a social network, do so only to the 
minimum degree necessary and proportionate in order to obtain evidence to 
support or refute an investigation; 

 Repeated viewing of open profiles on social networks to gather evidence or to 
monitor an individual’s status must only take place under a RIPA authorisation; 

 Be aware that it may not be possible to verify the accuracy of information on 
social networks and if such information is to be used as evidence, take 
reasonable steps to ensure its validity. 

 
For the avoidance of doubt, only those Officers designated and certified to be 
Authorising Officers for the purpose of RIPA can authorise directed 
surveillance IF, AND ONLY IF, the RIPA authorisation procedures detailed in 
this document are followed.  Authorisation for directed surveillance can only 
be granted if it is for the purpose of preventing or detecting crime and the 
criminal offence is punishable by at least 6 months’ imprisonment or it is an 
offence under sections 146, 147, 147A of the Licensing Act 2003 or Section 7 of 
the Children and Young Persons Act 1933 (sale of alcohol and tobacco to 
underage children). 
 
If you are in doubt as to whether or not you can use directed surveillance for the 
crime you are investigating, you should contact Legal Services for advice. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 100



 

21 

Section H 
 
THE ROLE OF THE RIPA CO-ORDINATOR   
 
Key Responsibilities of the RIPA Co-ordinator 
 
In this document the RIPA Co-ordinator is the Solicitor to the Council.  The key 
responsibilities of the RIPA Co-ordinator are to: 
 

 Retain all applications for authorisation (including those that have been refused), 
renewals and cancellations for a period of at least three years together with any 
supplementary documentation; 

 

 Provide a unique reference number and maintain the central register of all 
applications for authorisations whether finally granted or refused (see section 
below); 

 

 Create and maintain a spread sheet for the purpose of identifying and monitoring 
expiry dates and renewal dates although the responsibility for this is primarily that 
of the officer in charge and the Authorising Officer; 

 

 Retain  an oversight of the authorisation process  
 

 Monitor types of activities being authorised to ensure consistency and quality 
throughout the Council; 

 

 Ensure sections identify and fulfil training needs; 
 

 Periodically review Council procedures to ensure that they are up to date; 
 

 Assist Council employees to keep abreast of RIPA developments by organising 
training and raising RIPA awareness throughout the Council; 

 

 Provide a link to the Surveillance Commissioner and disseminate information on 
changes on the law, good practice etc.  Officers becoming aware of such 
information should, conversely, send it to the RIPA Co-ordinator for this purpose; 

 

 Check that Authorising Officers carry out reviews and cancellations on a timely 
basis. 

 
Central Record of Authorisations 
 
A centrally retrievable record of all authorisations will be held by the RIPA Co-
ordinator (Solicitor to the Council) which must be up-dated whenever an authorisation 
is granted, renewed or cancelled.  These records will be retained for a period of 
three years from the ending of the authorisation and will contain the following 
information: 
 

 The type of authorisation; 

 The date the authorisation was given; 

Page 101



 

22 

 The date approved by the Magistrate 

 The name and title of the Authorising Officer; 

 The unique reference number of the investigation (URN); 

 The title of the investigation or operation, including a brief description and the 
names of the subjects, if known; 

 Whether the investigation will obtain confidential information; 

 Whether the authorisation was granted by an individual directly involved in the 
investigation; 

 The dates the authorisation is reviewed and the name and title of the Authorising 
Officer; 

 If the authorisation is renewed, when it was renewed and the name and title of the 
Authorising Officer; 

 The date the authorisation was cancelled. 

 Joint surveillance activity where Council staff have been authorised on another 
agencies authorisation will also be recorded. 

 
Access to the data will be restricted to the RIPA Co-ordinator and Authorising 
Officers to maintain the confidentiality of the information. 

Page 102



 

23 

Section I 
 
AUTHORISATION PROCEDURES 
 
1. Directed surveillance and the use of a CHIS can only be lawfully carried out if 
properly authorised, and in strict accordance with the terms of the authorisation. 
 
Authorising Officers 
 
Forms can only be signed by Authorising Officers. The Authorising Officers are: 
 

Chief Operating Officer Andrew Barratt 

Executive Director Corporate Services John Wheatley 

 
Appointment of the aforesaid officers is subject to the training requirements set out in 
the paragraph below. 
 
Authorisations under RIPA are separate from delegated authority to act under the 
Council’s Scheme of Delegation and any internal departmental Schemes of 
Management. 
 
RIPA authorisations are for specific investigations only, and must be renewed or 
cancelled at the earliest opportunity once the specific surveillance is complete. The 
authorisations do not lapse with time. 
 
Authorising officers should not normally be responsible for authorising operations in 
which they are directly involved, although it is recognised that this may sometimes be 
unavoidable, especially in the case of small organisations, or where it is necessary to 
act urgently or for security reasons.  Where an authorising officer authorises such an 
investigation or operation the centrally retrievable record of authorisations should 
highlight this and the attention of a Commissioner or Inspector should be invited to it 
during the next inspection.  
 
Training 
  
Authorising Officers will only be appointed if the Chief Operating Officer is satisfied 
that they have undertaken suitable training on RIPA.  Evidence of suitable training is 
to be supplied in the form of a certificate/confirmation from the trainer to the effect 
that the Authorising Officer has completed a suitable course of instruction. 
 
The Solicitor to the Council will maintain a Register of Authorising Officers and details 
of training undertaken by them. 
 
If the Chief Operating Officer is of the view that an Authorising Officer has not 
complied fully with the requirements of this document, or the training requirements 
then that Officer’s authorisation can be withdrawn until they have undertaken further 
approved training or has attended a one-to-one meeting with the Chief Operating 
Officer. 
 
 

Page 103



 

24 

Grounds for Authorisation 
 
On 1 November 2012 two significant changes came into force that effects how local 
authorities use RIPA. 
 

 Approval of Local Authority Authorisations under RIPA by a Justice of the 
Peace: The amendments in the Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 mean that local 
authority authorisations under RIPA for the use of Directed Surveillance or use of 
Covert Human Intelligence sources (CHIS) can only be given effect once an order 
approving the authorisation has been granted by a Justice of the Peace (JP).  
This applies to applications and renewals only, not reviews and 
cancellations. 

 

 Directed surveillance crime threshold: The Regulation of Investigatory Powers 
(Directed Surveillance and Covert Human Intelligence Sources) (Amendment) 
Order 2012 (“the 2012 Order”) states that a local authority can now only grant an 
authorisation under RIPA for the use of Directed Surveillance where the local 
authority is investigating (1) criminal offences which attract a maximum custodial 
sentence of six months or more or (2) criminal offences under sections 146, 147 
or 147A of the Licensing Act 2003 or section 7 of the Children and Young 
Persons Act 1933 relating to the sale of alcohol or tobacco products to children.  

 
The crime threshold, as mentioned is only for Directed Surveillance. 
 
Therefore the only lawful reason is prevention and detection of crime in respect of 
its Core Functions.  As from 1 November 2012 there is no provision for a Local 
Authority to use RIPA to conduct covert activities for disorder such as anti-social 
behaviour unless there are criminal offences involved which attract a maximum 
custodial sentence of six months. 

APPLICATION PROCESS  
 
No covert activity covered by RIPA or the use of a CHIS should be undertaken at any 
time unless it meets the legal criteria (see above)  and has been authorised by an 
Authorising Officer and approved by a JP/Magistrate as mentioned above.  The 
activity conducted must be in strict accordance with the terms of the authorisation.  
 
The effect of the above legislation means that all applications and renewals for covert 
RIPA activity will have to have a JP’s approval.   It does not apply to Reviews and 
Cancellations which will still be carried out internally. 
 
The procedure is as follows; 
 
All applications and renewals for Directed Surveillance and use of a CHIS will be 
required to have a JP’s approval. 
 
The applicant will complete the relevant application form ensuring compliance with 
the statutory provisions shown above.   The application form will be submitted to an 
Authorising Officer for consideration.  If authorised, the applicant will also complete 
the required section of the judicial application/order form.  Although this form requires 

Page 104



 

25 

the applicant to provide a brief summary of the circumstances of the case on the 
judicial application form, this is supplementary to and does not replace the need to 
supply the original RIPA authorisation as well. 
 
It will then be necessary within Office hours to arrange with Her Majesty’s Courts & 
Tribunals Service (HMCTS) administration at the magistrates’ court to arrange a 
hearing.   The hearing will be in private and heard by a single JP. 
 
The Authorising Officer will be expected to attend the hearing along with the 
applicant officer. Officers who may present the application at these proceedings will 
need to be formally designated by the Council under section 223 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 to appear, be sworn in and present evidence or provide 
information as required by the JP.  If in doubt as to whether you are able to present 
the application seek advice from the Solicitor to the Council. 
 

Upon attending the hearing, the officer must present to the JP the partially completed 
judicial application/order form, a copy of the RIPA application/authorisation form, 
together with any supporting documents setting out the case, and the original 
application/authorisation form.  
 
The original RIPA application/authorisation should be shown to the JP but will be 
retained by the local authority so that it is available for inspection by the 
Commissioners’ offices and in the event of any legal challenge or investigations by 
the Investigatory Powers Tribunal (IPT).  
 
The JP will read and consider the RIPA application/ authorisation and the judicial 
application/order form. They may have questions to clarify points or require additional 
reassurance on particular matters. These questions are supplementary to the content 
of the application form.  However the forms and supporting papers must by 
themselves make the case. It is not sufficient for the local authority to provide 
oral evidence where this is not reflected or supported in the papers provided.  
 
The JP will consider whether he or she is satisfied that at the time the authorisation 
was granted or renewed, there were reasonable grounds for believing that the 
authorisation was necessary and proportionate. They will also consider whether there 
continues to be reasonable grounds. In addition they must be satisfied that the 
person who granted the authorisation or gave the notice was an appropriate 
designated person within the local authority and the authorisation was made in 
accordance with any applicable legal restrictions, for example that the crime 
threshold for directed surveillance has been met. 
 

The JP may decide to: 
 
Approve the Grant or renewal of an authorisation  
The grant or renewal of the RIPA authorisation will then take effect and the local 
authority may proceed to use the technique in that particular case. The duration of 
the authorisation commences with the magistrate’s approval.  
 
 
 

Page 105



 

26 

Refuse to approve the grant or renewal of an authorisation 
  
The RIPA authorisation will not take effect and the local authority may not use the 
technique in that case.  
 
Where an application has been refused the applicant may wish to consider the 
reasons for that refusal. If more information was required by the JP to determine 
whether the application/authorisation has met the tests, and this is the reason for 
refusal the officer should consider whether they can reapply, for example, if there 
was information to support the application which was available to the local authority, 
but not included in the papers provided at the hearing. 
 

For, a technical error, the form may be remedied without going through the internal 
authorisation process again. The officer may then wish to reapply for judicial approval 
once those steps have been taken.    
 
Refuse to approve the grant or renewal and quash the authorisation or notice  
 
This applies where the JP refuses to approve the application/authorisation or renew 
the application/authorisation and decides to quash the original authorisation or 
notice.  However the court must not exercise its power to quash the 
application/authorisation unless the applicant has had at least 2 business days from 
the date of the refusal in which to make representations. If this is the case the officer 
will inform the Legal section who will consider whether to make any representations.   
 
Whatever the decision the JP will record their decision on the order section of the 
judicial application/order form. The court administration will retain a copy of the local 
authority RIPA application and authorisation form and the judicial application/order 
form.  The officer will retain the original application/authorisation and a copy of the 
judicial application/order form. 
 
If approved by the JP, the date of the approval becomes the commencement date 
and the three months duration will commence on this date, The officers are now 
allowed to undertake the activity. 
 
The original application and the copy of the judicial application/order form should be 
forwarded to the Central Register and a copy retained by the applicant and if 
necessary by the Authorising Officer. 
  
A local authority may only appeal a JP decision on a point of law by judicial review. If 
such a concern arises, the Legal team will decide what action if any should be taken. 
 
If it is intended to undertake both directed surveillance and the use of a CHIS on the 
same surveillance subject, the respective applications forms and procedures should 
be followed and both activities should be considered separately on their own merits. 
An application for an authorisation must include an assessment of the risk of any 
collateral intrusion or interference. The Authorising Officer will take this into account, 
particularly when considering the proportionality of the directed surveillance or the 
use of a CHIS. 

  

Page 106



 

27 

Application, Review, Renewal and Cancellation Forms  

Applications 

 
All the relevant sections on an application form must be completed with sufficient 
information for the Authorising Officer to consider Necessity, Proportionality and the 
Collateral Intrusion issues.  Risk assessments should take place prior to the 
completion of the application form. Each application should be completed on its own 
merits of the case.  Cutting and pasting or using template entries should not 
take place as this would leave the process open to challenge.  
 
All applications will be submitted to the Authorising Officer via the Line Manager of 
the appropriate enforcement team in order that they are aware of the activities being 
undertaken by the staff.  Applications whether authorised or refused will be issued 
with a unique number by the Authorising Officer, taken from the next available 
number in the Central Record of Authorisations.   
 

If authorised the applicant will then complete the relevant section of the judicial 
application/order form and follow the procedure above by arranging and attending the 
Magistrates Court to seek a JP’s approval. The duration of the authorisation 
commences with the magistrate’s approval.  (see procedure above RIPA application 
and authorisation process) 
 

Duration of Applications 

 
Directed Surveillance    3 Months 
Renewal      3 Months 

 
Covert Human Intelligence Source  12 Months 
Juvenile Sources     1 Month 
 
 
 Renewal       12 months   
 
All Authorisations must be cancelled by completing a cancellation form.  They 
must not be left to simply expire. (See cancellations page 16) 
 
 

Reviews 

The reviews are dealt with internally by submitting the review form to the authorising 
officer.  In such circumstances seek advice from the RIPA Co-ordinator. There is no 
requirement for a review form to be submitted to a JP. However if a different 
surveillance techniques is required it is likely a new application will have to be 
completed and approved by a JP. 
 
Regular reviews of authorisations should be undertaken to assess the need for the 
surveillance to continue. The results of a review should be recorded on the central 
record of authorisations.  Particular attention is drawn to the need to review 

Page 107



 

28 

authorisations frequently where the surveillance provides access to confidential 
information or involves collateral intrusion.  

In each case the Authorising Officer should determine how often a review should 
take place. This should be as frequently as is considered necessary and practicable 
and they will record when they are to take place on the application form. This 
decision will be based on the circumstances of each application.  However reviews 
will be conducted on a monthly or less basis to ensure that the activity is managed. It 
will be important for the Authorising Officer to be aware of when reviews are required 
following an authorisation to ensure that the applicants submit the review form on 
time. 

Applicants should submit a review form by the review date set by the Authorising 
Officer.  They should also use a review form for changes in circumstances to the 
original application so that the need to continue the activity can be reassessed.  
However if the circumstances or the objectives have changed considerably, or the 
techniques to be used are now different a new application form should be submitted 
and will be required to follow the process again and be approved by a JP.  The 
applicant does not have to wait until the review date if it is being submitted for a 
change in circumstances. 
 
Managers or Team Leaders of applicants should also make themselves aware of 
when the reviews are required to ensure that the relevant forms are completed on 
time.   

Renewal 

 

Should it be necessary to renew a Directed Surveillance or CHIS 
application/authorisation, this must be approved by a JP.   
 
Applications for renewals should not be made until shortly before the original 
authorisation period is due to expire but the applicant must take account of factors 
which may delay the renewal process (e.g. intervening weekends or the availability of 
the relevant authorising officer and a JP to consider the application). 
 
The applicant should complete all the sections within the renewal form and submit 
the form to the authorising officer.   
 
Authorising Officers should examine the circumstances with regard to Necessity, 
Proportionality and the Collateral Intrusion issues before making a decision to renew 
the activity. A CHIS application should not be renewed unless a thorough review has 
been carried out covering the use made of the source, the tasks given to them and 
information obtained.  The Authorising Officer must consider the results of the review 
when deciding whether to renew or not.  The review and the consideration must be 
documented. 
 
If the authorising officer refuses to renew the application the cancellation process 
should be completed.  If the AO authorises the renewal of the activity the same 
process is to be followed as mentioned earlier for the initial application.    
 

Page 108



 

29 

A renewal takes effect on the day on which the authorisation would have ceased  and 
lasts for a further period of three months.  
 

Cancellation 

Cancellation should take place at the earliest opportunity. 
 
The cancellation form is to be submitted by the applicant or another investigator in 
their absence. The Authorising Officer who granted or last renewed the authorisation 
must cancel it if they are satisfied that the directed surveillance no longer meets the 
criteria upon which it was authorised. Where the Authorising Officer is no longer 
available, this duty will fall on the person who has taken over the role of Authorising 
Officer or the person who is acting as Authorising Officer. 

As soon as the decision is taken that directed surveillance should be discontinued, 
the applicant or other investigating officer involved in the investigation should inform 
the Authorising Officer.  The Authorising Officer will formally instruct the investigating 
officer to cease the surveillance, noting the time and date of their decision.  This will 
be required for the cancellation form. The date and time when such an instruction 
was given should also be recorded in the central record of authorisations (see 
paragraph 5.18 in the Codes of Practice). It will also be necessary to detail the 
amount of time spent on the surveillance as this is required to be retained by 
the Senior Responsible Officer. 

 
The officer submitting the cancellation should complete in detail the relevant sections 
of the form and include the period of surveillance and what if any images were 
obtained and any images containing third parties.  The Authorising Officer should 
then take this into account and issues instructions regarding the management and 
disposal of the images etc. 
 
The cancellation process should also be used to evaluate whether the objectives 
have been achieved and whether the applicant carried out what they stated was 
necessary in the application form.  This check will form part of the oversight function.  
Where issues are identified they will be brought to the attention of the line manager 
and the Senior Responsible Officer (SRO).   This will assist with future audits and 
oversight. 
 
 Before an Authorising Officer signs a Form, they must:- 
 
   (a) Be mindful of this Policy & Procedures Document and the training undertaken 
   (b) Be satisfied that the RIPA authorisation is:- 
 

(i) in accordance with the law;  
(ii) necessary in the circumstances of the particular case on the ground 

mentioned 
and  
 
(iii) proportionate to what it seeks to achieve.  (see section on 

proportionality) 
 

Page 109



 

30 

  (c) In assessing whether or not the proposed surveillance is proportionate, 
consider other appropriate means of gathering the information. 

 
 The authorisation will not be proportionate if it is excessive in the overall 
 circumstances of the case.  Each action authorised should bring an expected 
 benefit to the investigation or operation and should not be disproportionate or 
 arbitrary.  The fact that a suspected offence may be serious will not alone 
 render intrusive actions proportionate.  Similarly, an offence may be so minor 
 that any deployment of covert techniques would be disproportionate.  No 
 activity should be considered proportionate if the information which is sought 
 could reasonably be obtained by other less intrusive means. 
 
 The following elements of proportionality should therefore be considered: 
 

 balance the size and scope of the proposed activity against the gravity and 
extent of the perceived crime or offence; 

 explain how and why the methods to be adopted will cause the least 
possible intrusion on the subject and others; 

 consider whether the activity is an appropriate use of the legislation and a 
reasonable way, having considered all reasonable alternatives, of 
obtaining the necessary result; 

 evidence, what other methods have been considered and why they were 
not implemented. 

 
 The least intrusive method will be considered proportionate by the 

courts. 
 
(d) Take into account the risk of intrusion into the privacy of persons other than 

the specified subject of the surveillance (collateral intrusion).  Measures 
must be taken wherever practicable to avoid or minimise (so far as is possible) 
collateral intrusion. This matter may be an aspect of determining 
proportionality; 

 
(e) Set a date for review of the authorisation and review on only that date; 

 
(f) Obtain a Unique Reference Number (URN) for the application from the 

Solicitor to the Council on 01827 709258 
 
(g) Ensure that a copy of the RIPA Forms (and any review/cancellation of the 

same) is forwarded to the Solicitor to the Council, Central Register, within 5 
working days of the relevant authorisation, review, renewal, cancellation 
or rejection. 

 
Additional Safeguards when Authorising a CHIS 
 
When authorising the conduct or use of a CHIS, the Authorising Officer must also:- 
 
(a) be satisfied that the conduct and/or use of the CHIS is proportionate to what 

is sought to be achieved. 
 

Page 110



 

31 

(b) Be satisfied that appropriate arrangements are in place for the management 
and oversight of the CHIS and this must address health and safety issues 
through a risk assessment; 

 
(c) Consider the likely degree of intrusion of all those potentially affected; 
 
(d) Consider any adverse impact on community confidence that may result from 

the use or conduct or the information obtained;  
 
(e) Ensure records contain particulars and are not available except on a need to 

know basis. 
 
(f) Ensure that if the CHIS is under the age of 18 or is a vulnerable adult the 

Authorising Officer is the Chief Operating Officer or in his absence, the Deputy 
Chief Operating Officer. 

 
 
The Authorising Officer must attend to the requirement of section 29(5) RIPA and of 
the Regulation of Investigatory Powers (Source Records) Regulations 2000. It is 
strongly recommended that legal advice is obtained in relation to the authorisation of 
a CHIS. 
 
Any person granting or applying for an authorisation will also need to be aware of 
particular sensitivities in the local community where the surveillance is taking place 
and of any similar activities being undertaken by other public authorities which could 
impact on the deployment of surveillance. It is therefore recommended that where an 
authorising officer from a public authority considers that conflicts might arise they 
should consult a senior officer within the police force area in which the investigation 
or operation is to take place. 
 
Urgent Authorisations 
 

As from 1 November 2012 there is now no provision under RIPA for urgent oral 
authorisations. 

 
 
 

 

Page 111



 

32 

Section J 
  
WORKING WITH / THROUGH OTHER AGENCIES 
 
When some other agency has been instructed on behalf of the Council to undertake 
any action under RIPA, this document and the forms in it must be used (as per 
normal procedure) and the agency advised or kept informed, as necessary, of the 
various requirements. The agency must be made aware explicitly what they are 
authorised to do.  The agency will be provided with a copy of the application form 
(redacted if necessary) or at the least the authorisation page containing the unique 
number. 
 
Equally, if Council staff are authorised on another agencies RIPA authorisation, the 
staff will obtain a copy of the application form (redacted if necessary), or at the least 
the authorisation page containing the unique number, a copy of which should be 
forwarded for filing within the central register.  They must ensure that they do not 
conduct activity outside of that authorisation.   
 

Provisions should also be made regarding any disclosure implications under the 
Criminal Procedures Act (CPIA) and the management, storage and dissemination of 
any product obtained. 

 
When another agency (e.g. Police, Customs & Excise, Inland Revenue etc):- 
 
(a) wishes to use the Council’s resources (e.g. CCTV surveillance systems), that 

agency must use its own RIPA procedures and, before any Officer agrees to 
allow the Council’s resources to be used for the other agency’s purposes, the 
Officer must obtain a copy of that agency’s RIPA form (redacted if necessary) or 
at the least the authorisation page containing the unique number for the record 
(a copy of which must be passed to the Solicitor to the Council for the Central 
Register)   Should this be an urgent oral authorisation they should obtain a copy 
of the contemporaneous notes of what has been authorised by the Authorising 
Officer in line with current guidance.  A copy of these notes will be forwarded for 
filing in the central register. 

  
(b) wish to use the Council’s premises for their own RIPA action, the Chief Officer 

or Head of Service should, normally, cooperate with the same, unless there are 
security or other good operational or managerial reasons as to why the 
Council’s premises should not be used for the agency’s activities.  Suitable 
insurance or other appropriate indemnities may be sought, if necessary, from 
the other agency for the Council’s cooperation in the agent’s RIPA operation. In 
such cases, however, the Council’s own RIPA forms should not be used as the 
Council is only ‘assisting’ not being ‘involved’ in the RIPA activity of the external 
agency. 

 
If the Police or any other Agency wish to use Council resources for general 
surveillance, as opposed to specific RIPA operations, an appropriate letter requesting 
the proposed use, extent of remit, duration, who will be undertaking the general 
surveillance and the purpose of it must be obtained from the police or other Agency 
before any Council resources are made available for the proposed use. 

Page 112



 

33 

 
 
 If in doubt, please consult with the Solicitor to the Council at the earliest 
opportunity. 
 
 
 
  

Page 113



 

34 

Section K 
 
RECORD MANAGEMENT 
 
The Council must keep detailed records of all authorisations, renewals, 
cancellations and rejections in Departments and a Central Register of all 
Authorisation Forms will be maintained and monitored by the Solicitor to the 
Council. 
 
 
Records Maintained in the Department 
 
The following documents must be retained by the Department authorising the 
surveillance: 
 

 a copy of the Forms together with any supplementary documentation and 
notification of the approval given by the Authorising Officer; 

 

 a record of the period over which the surveillance has taken place; 
 

 the frequency of reviews prescribed by the Authorising Officer; 
 

 a record of the result of each review of the authorisation; 
 

 a copy of any renewal of an authorisation, together with the supporting 
documentation submitted when the renewal was requested; 

 

 the date and time when any instruction was given by the Authorising Officer; 
 

 the Unique Reference Number for the authorisation (URN). 
 
Central Register maintained by the Solicitor to the Council 
 
Authorising Officers must forward a copy of the form to the Solicitor to the Council for 
the Central Register, within 5 working days of the authorisation, review, renewal, 
cancellation or rejection. The Solicitor to the Council will monitor the same and give 
appropriate guidance to Authorising Officers from time to time, or amend this 
document in the light of changes of legislation or developments through case law. 
 
Retention and Destruction of Material 
 
The retention of the material obtained during a RIPA operation is governed by the 
Criminal Procedures Investigations Act (CPIA) 1996 and the Data Protection Act 
1998.   
 
Arrangements are in place for the secure handling, storage and destruction of 
material obtained through the use of directed surveillance or CHIS. Authorising 
Officers, through their relevant Data Controller, must ensure compliance with the 
appropriate data protection requirements under the Data Protection Act 1998 and 

Page 114



 

35 

any relevant codes of practice produced by individual authorised relating to the 
handling and storage of material. 
 
The Council will retain records for a period of at least five years from the ending of 
the authorisation. The Office of the Surveillance Commissioners (OSC) can 
audit/review the Council’s policies and procedures, and individual authorisations.  
The Office of the Surveillance Commissioners will also write to the Council from time 
to time, requesting information as to the numbers of authorisations made in a specific 
period. It will be the responsibility of the Solicitor to the Council to respond to such 
communications. 

 
Errors 
 

There is a requirement as set out in the OSC procedures and Guidance 2011 to 
report all covert activity that was not properly authorised to the OSC in writing as 
soon as the error  is recognised.  This would be known as an error. This includes 
activity which should have been authorised but wasn’t or which was conducted 
beyond the directions provided by the authorising officer.   It is therefore important 
that when an error has been identified it is brought to the attention of the SRO in 
order to comply with this guidance.  The Council has a responsibility to report to the 
Inspector at the commencement of an inspection all activity which should have been 
authorised but wasn’t.  This is to confirm that any direction provided by the Chief 
Surveillance Commissioner has been followed.  This will also assist with the 
oversight provisions of the Councils’ RIPA activity. 
 
This does not apply to covert activity which is deliberately not authorised because an 
authorising officer considers that it does not meet the legislative criteria, but allows it 
to continue.  This would be surveillance outside of RIPA. (See oversight section 
below) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 115



 

36 

Section L 
 
ACQUISITION OF COMMUNICATIONS DATA 
 
What is Communications Data? 
 
Communication data means any traffic or any information that is or has been sent by 
or over a telecommunications system or postal system, together with information 
about the use of the system made by any person. 
 
Powers 
 
There are two powers granted by S22 RIPA in respect of the acquisition of 
Communications Data from telecommunications and postal companies 
(“Communications Companies”). 
 
S22 (3) provides that an authorised person can authorise another person within the 
same relevant public authority to collect the data. This allows the local authority to 
collect the communications data themselves, i.e. if a private telecommunications 
company is technically unable to collect the data, an authorisation under this section 
would permit the local authority to collect the communications data themselves. 
 
In order to compel a communications company to obtain and disclose, or just 
disclose communications data in their possession, a notice under S22 (4) RIPA must 
be issued. The sole grounds to permit the issuing of a S22 notice by a permitted 
Local Authority is for the purposes of “preventing or detecting crime or of preventing 
disorder”. The issuing of such a notice will be the more common of the two powers 
utilised, in that the Communications Company will most probably have means of 
collating and providing the communications data requested. 
 
Single Point of Contact 
 
In accordance with the Home Office Acquisition and Disclosure of Communications 
Data Code of Practice the Council is required to have a “the Council Single Point of 
Contact” is NAFN  The role of the SPoC is to enable and maintain effective co-
operation between a public authority and communications service providers in the 
lawful acquisition and disclosure of communications data. Before an officer can be a 
SPoC  specialist training recognised by the Home Office has to be undertaken. A 
SPoC must also register his or her details with the Home Office. The Solicitor of the 
Council is SPoC for Tamworth Borough Council. 

 
Details of the training undertaken is kept in the Central Register. 
 
The functions of the SPoC are to: 
 

 Assess, where appropriate, whether access to communications data is 
reasonably practical for the postal or telecommunications operator; 

Page 116



 

37 

 Advise Applicants and Authorising Officers on the practicalities of accessing 
different types of communications data from different postal or 
telecommunications operators 

 Advise Applicants and Authorising Officers on whether communications data falls 
under section 21(4)(a), (b) or (c) of RIPA 

 Provide safeguards for authentication 

 Assess any cost and resource implications to both the Council and postal or 
telecommunications operator. 

 
The Senior Responsible Officer 
 
In accordance with the Code of Practice each public authority must have a Senior 
Responsible Officer who is responsible for: 
 

 The integrity of the process in places within the public authority to acquire 
communications data; 

 Compliance with Chapter II of Part 1 of RIPA and with the Code; 

 Oversight of the reporting of errors to the Interception of Communications 
Commissioner’s Office (IOCCO) and the identification of both the cause of errors 
and the implementation of processes to minimise repetition of errors; 

 Engagement with the IOCCO inspectors when they conduct their inspections and; 

 Where necessary, oversee the implementation of post – inspection action plans 
approved by the Commissioner 

 
The Council’s Senior Responsible Officer is the Solicitor to the Council. 
 
Application Forms 
 
Only the approved Accessing Communications Data forms referred to in Appendix 4 
must be used. The forms have to be downloaded and completed in the Applicants 
handwriting 
 
Procedure 
 
All applications to obtain communications data must be channelled through the 
SPoC. If an investigating officer is considering making an application to obtain 
communications data they should contact the SPoC for advice and to obtain the 
appropriate forms. 
 
In completing the forms the investigating officer must address the issues of 
necessity, proportionality and collateral intrusion. The following is guidance on the 
principles of necessity, proportionality and collateral intrusion. 
 
“Necessity” should be a short explanation of the crime (together with details of the 
relevant legislation), the suspect, victim or witness and the telephone or 
communications address and how all these three link together. It may be helpful to 
outline the brief details of the investigation and the circumstances leading to the 
application as this will assist with justifying necessity. The source of the telephone 
number or communications address should also be outlined. E.g. if the number was 

Page 117



 

38 

obtained from itemised billing or a business flyer there should be specific identifiers 
such as the telephone number or exhibit number. 
 
As regards “proportionality” there should be an outline of what the investigating 
officer expects to achieve from obtaining the data and explain how the level of 
intrusion is justified when taking into consideration the benefit the data will give to the 
investigation. The investigating officer should give an explanation as to why specific 
date/time periods of data have been requested. An explanation of what is going to be 
done with the communications data once it is acquired and how that action will 
benefit the investigation will assist with the justification of proportionality. The 
investigating officer should outline what other checks or methods have been tried e.g. 
visiting other known addresses, ringing the number etc. or why such methods are not 
deemed feasible. 
 
“Collateral intrusion” should also be addressed on the suspect or individual in 
question to demonstrate that the intrusion is not arbitrary or unfair. There will only be 
minimal collateral intrusion in relation to subscriber checks or none will be identified 
at the time of making the application. In some case it will be clear that the suspect 
has been contacted on the actual telephone number by the complainant or the 
investigating officer and therefore this reduces the potential for collateral intrusion. 
Investigating officers should also mention whether it is known that the telephone 
number (or other type of data) has been used to advertise the business, either in the 
press/internet or on business cards/flyers as this would also be evidence to show that 
the suspect is actually using the telephone number and further reduce the potential 
for collateral intrusion.  Collateral intrusion becomes more relevant when applying for 
service use data and investigating officers should outline specifically what collateral 
intrusion may occur, how the time periods requested impact on collateral intrusion 
and whether they are likely to obtain data which is outside the realm of their 
investigation. 
 
Once the investigating officer has completed the application form it should be passed 
to the SPoC together with a draft Notice to the Communications Service Provider. If 
the SPoC is satisfied that the application should proceed, the Application and the 
draft Notice to the Communications Service Provider will be considered by an 
Authorising Officer1. If the SPoC decides that the application is not justified it will be 
rejected. If the SPoC requires further information in order to consider the application 
this will be requested from the investigating officer and recorded on the SPoC Log 
Sheet. 
 
 
The Authorising Officer must consider: 
 
(a) whether the case justifies the accessing of communications data for the 

purposes of preventing or detecting crime or of preventing disorder and 
why obtaining the data is necessary in order to achieve the aims of the 
investigation and on the grounds permitted to the Council; 

  
 and 
 

Page 118



 

39 

(b) whether obtaining access to the data by the conduct authorised, or required of 
the postal or telecommunications operator in the case of a notice, is 
proportionate to what is sought to be achieved. 

 
The Authorising Officer will complete the Application Form as appropriate. 
 
If the Authorising Officer becomes directly involved in the operation, such 
involvement and their justification for undertaking the role of Authorising Officer must 
be explicit in the written considerations on the Application Form or alternatively the 
application should be passed to another Authorising Officer for consideration. 
 
If the accessing of communications data is authorised the Authorising Officer will sign 
the Notice to the Communication Service Provider, complete the date/time of issue 
and return all forms to the SPoC 
 
The SPoC will then issue the Notice to the Communications Service Provider 
 
 
1.  NOTE: The Code of Practice referred to in paragraph 5 above refers to “Designated Persons” as those whose authority is 

obtained with regard to the application. However, for the purposes of this policy and procedure the term “Authorising 
Officer” will be used for that of “Designated Person”. 

 

Duration 
 
Authorisations and notices are only valid for one month. A shorter period should be 
specified if this is satisfied by the request. An authorisation or notice may be renewed 
during the month by following the same procedure as obtaining a fresh authorisation 
or notice. 
 
An Authorising Officer shall cancel an authorisation or notice as soon as it is no 
longer necessary or the conduct is no longer proportionate to what is sought to be 
achieved. The duty to cancel a notice falls on the Authorising Officer who issued it. 
 
Record Management 
 
Applications, authorisations and notices for communications data must be retained 
by the SPoC until audited by the IOCCO. All such documentation must be kept in 
locked storage. 
 
Errors 
 
Where any errors have occurred in the granting of authorisations or the giving of 
notices, a record shall be kept and a report and explanation sent to the IOCCO as 
soon as reasonably practicable. 
 
Oversight 
 
The IOCCO will write to the Council from time to time requesting information as to the 
numbers of applications for communications data and confirmation as to whether 
there have been any errors which have occurred when obtaining data 
communications. It will be the responsibility of the Solicitor to the Council to respond 
to such communications. 

Page 119



 

40 

Section M 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Obtaining an authorisation under RIPA and following the guidance and procedures in 
this document will assist in ensuring that the use of covert surveillance or a CHIS is 
carried out in accordance with the law and subject to safeguards against infringing an 
individual’s human rights. Complying with the provisions of RIPA protects the Council 
against challenges for breaches of Article 8 of the European Convention on Human 
Rights. 
 
Authorising Officers will be suitably trained and they must exercise their minds every 
time they are asked to sign a Form. They must never sign or rubber stamp Form(s) 
without thinking about their personal and the Council’s responsibilities. 
 
Any boxes not needed on the Form(s) must be clearly marked as being ‘NOT 
APPLICABLE’, ‘N/A’ or a line put through the same. Great care must also be taken to 
ensure accurate information is used and is inserted in the correct boxes. Reasons for 
any refusal of an application must also be kept on the form and the form retained for 
future audits. 
 
For further advice and assistance on RIPA, please contact the Solicitor to the Council 
(who is also the Monitoring Officer). 

Page 120



 

41 

 APPENDIX 1 
 

A FORMS 
 

DIRECTED SURVEILLANCE 
 

All forms can be obtained from: 
 
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/ripa-forms--2 
 
The form has to be downloaded and completed in the applicant’s handwriting. The 
Authorising Officer must also complete the relevant section of the form in 
handwriting.  The original form has to be passed to the Solicitor to the Council. 
 
Application for Authorisation Directed Surveillance 
 
Application for Review of a Directed Surveillance Authorisation 
 
Application for Renewal of a Directed Surveillance Authorisation 
 
Application for Cancellation of a Directed Surveillance Authorisation 
 

Page 121

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/ripa-forms--2


 

42 

APPENDIX 2 
 

B FORMS 
 

CONDUCT OF A COVERT HUMAN INTELLIGENCE SOURCE 
 

All forms can be obtained from: 
 
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/ripa-forms--2 
 
The form has to be downloaded and completed in the applicant’s handwriting.  The 
Authorising Officer must also complete the relevant section of the form in 
handwriting.  The original form has to be passed to the Solicitor to the Council. 
 
Application for Authorisation of the conduct or use of a Covert Human Intelligence 
Source (CHIS). 
 
Application for Review of a Covert Human Intelligence Source (CHIS) Authorisation. 
 
Application for renewal of a Covert Human Intelligence Source (CHIS) Authorisation. 
 
Application for Cancellation of an authorisation for the use or Conduct of a Covert 
Human Intelligence Source. 
 

Page 122

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/ripa-forms--2


 

43 

APPENDIX 3 
 

C FORMS 
 

ACQUISITION OF COMMUNICATIONS DATA 
 

All forms can be obtained from the Home Office: RIPA Codes of Conduct website: 
 
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/ripa-forms--2 
 
The form has to be downloaded and completed in the applicant’s handwriting. The 
Authorising Officer must also complete the relevant section of the form in 
handwriting.  The original form has to be passed to the Solicitor to the Council. 
 

  

Part I Chapter II request schedule for subscriber information  

Specimen Part I Chapter II authorisation  

Specimen Part I Chapter II Notice  

Chapter II application for communications data  

Guidance notes regarding chapter II application form  

RIPA Section 22 notice to obtain communications data from communications service 
providers  

Reporting an error by a CSP to the IOCCO  

Reporting an error by a public authority to the IOCCO 
 
 

Page 123

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/ripa-forms--2
http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/publications/counter-terrorism/ripa-forms/RIPAschedule-for-subscriber-info
http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/publications/counter-terrorism/ripa-forms/specimen-part-I-ch-II1
http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/publications/counter-terrorism/ripa-forms/specimen-part-I-ch-II-notice
http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/publications/counter-terrorism/ripa-forms/communications-data1.doc
http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/publications/counter-terrorism/ripa-forms/application-guidance1
http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/publications/counter-terrorism/ripa-forms/ripa-section-22-notice-update
http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/publications/counter-terrorism/ripa-forms/ripa-section-22-notice-update
http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/publications/counter-terrorism/ripa-forms/reporting-csp-error
http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/publications/counter-terrorism/ripa-forms/reporting-public-authority-error


 

44 

 Annex A  Local Authority Procedure 
 

 

 

Page 124



 

45 

Annex B  JP Procedure 
 

 

Page 125



 

46 

Annex C  Application for Judicial Approval  and Order Form 
 
Application for judicial approval for authorisation to obtain or disclose 
communications data, to use a covert human intelligence source or to conduct 
directed surveillance. Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 sections 23A, 
23B, 32A, 32B. 

Local 
Authority:..................................................................................................................................... 

Local authority 
department:................................................................................................................................. 

Offence under 
investigation:............................................................................................................................... 

Address of premises or identity of 
subject:................................................................................................................ 

.................................................................................................................................................... 

.................................................................................................................................................... 

 
Covert technique requested: (tick one and specify details) 

Communications Data  

Covert Human Intelligence Source 

Directed Surveillance 

 

Summary of details  

.................................................................................................................................................... 

.................................................................................................................................................... 

.................................................................................................................................................... 

.................................................................................................................................................... 

.................................................................................................................................................... 

.................................................................................................................................................... 

Note: this application should be read in conjunction with the attached RIPA 
authorisation/RIPA application or notice. 

 
Investigating 
Officer:........................................................................................................................ 

Authorising Officer/Designated 
Person:................................................................................................................... 

Officer(s) appearing before 
JP:..................................................................................................................................... 

Address of applicant 
department:................................................................................................................................ 

.................................................................................................................................................... 

Contact telephone 
number:....................................................................................................................................... 

Page 126



 

47 

Contact email address 
(optional):................................................................................................................................. 

Local authority 
reference:.................................................................................................................................... 

Number of 
pages:......................................................................................................................................... 
  

Page 127



 

48 

Order made on an application for judicial approval for authorisation to obtain or 
disclose communications data, to use a covert human intelligence source or to 
conduct directed surveillance. Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 
sections 23A, 23B, 32A, 32B. 

 

Magistrates’ 
court:........................................................................................................................................... 

 
Having considered the application, I (tick one): 

am satisfied that there are reasonable grounds for believing that the requirements of 
the Act were satisfied and remain satisfied, and that the relevant conditions are 
satisfied and I therefore approve the grant or renewal of the authorisation/notice. 

refuse to approve the grant or renewal of the authorisation/notice. 

refuse to approve the grant or renewal and quash the authorisation/notice. 

 

Notes 

.................................................................................................................................................... 

.................................................................................................................................................... 

.................................................................................................................................................... 

.................................................................................................................................................... 

.................................................................................................................................................... 

Reasons 

.................................................................................................................................................... 

.................................................................................................................................................... 

.................................................................................................................................................... 

.................................................................................................................................................... 

.................................................................................................................................................... 

.................................................................................................................................................... 

 
Signed: 

Date: 

Time: 

Full name: 

Address of magistrates’ court: 

 
 

Page 128



 
 
 

COUNCIL 
 
 

12 DECEMBER 2017 
 
 

REPORT OF THE LEADER AND SOLICITOR TO THE COUNCIL & MONITORING 
OFFICER 

 

 
REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION AND SCHEME OF DELEGATION  

 
 

 

EXEMPT INFORMATION 
None 
 
 

PURPOSE  
To obtain Council comments, endorsement and approval of the reviewed Constitution and 
Scheme of Delegation as provided in the link at Appendix 1 to the Report. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Council: 
 

1) Endorse  the changes to the reviewed Constitution and Scheme of Delegation 
AND 

2) Adopt and approve the changes as presented in Appendix 1. 
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Constitution and Scheme of Delegation as reviewed are adopted by Council at the first 
business meeting each year to ensure probity and legal compliance. It is normally an annual 
occurrence but on occasion the Constitution has been amended within the municipal year. 
Provision exists within the Constitution to allow a motion for amendment after a period of six 
months has elapsed. This municipal year has seen an alteration in Chief Officer 
appointments and as a result there have been substantive entries in the Constitution to 
address the duties of the officers concerned. Members are now required by law to be 
registered with the Information Commissioners Office as they handle personal data in their 
role as a Councillor when representing constituents Data. Each member has to pay an 
annual subscription fee to the Data Protection Commissioner.  Changes to the code of 
conduct and job descriptions for members have been made to the constitution as well as the 
allowance structure which takes account of the annual fee. (Members have been appraised 
of this obligation in the Members Information Bulletin and training is being provided). There 
are also a few other changes in Part 3 relating to Council Functions and to Members 
subsistence in Part 6.  
 
 
Articles 13 and 15 of the Constitution require the Solicitor to the Council to maintain, monitor 
and review the operation of the Constitution to ensure that the aims and principles of the 
Constitution are given full effect.  It also requires formal approval and adoption by the Council 
at the beginning of each municipal year  
 
 
 

Page 129

Agenda Item 10



The Scheme of Delegation forms part 3 of the Constitution and also requires approval and 
adoption by the Council at the beginning of each municipal year in relation to those functions 
arising from the Local Government Act 1972 and subsequent legislation as well as those 
functions approved by the Leader in accordance with Section 14 of the Local Government 
Act 2000.  
 
 

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
No external advice was required for the review.  
 
 

LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND 
Without a Constitution and Scheme of Delegation the Council could not operate effectively. 
The Council would run the risk of failure to comply with statutory requirements which in turn 
would expose the organisation to further vulnerability in relation to legal challenge and ultra 
vires operation.  Such challenges could lead to serious financial and reputational damage. 
 
 

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
It is essential that the Constitution and Scheme of Delegation are lawful, fit for purpose and 
utilised with a pragmatic approach to improve and enhance the democratic process of the 
Council and operation of its associated services.  In addition there is no provision to cover 
the cost of legal challenge within any envisaged contingency 
 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION   
The Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) provides inter alia for a Constitution and 
Scheme of Delegation. 
 
The Constitution sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are made and the 
procedures which are followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent and 
accountable to local people. Some of these processes are required by the law, while others 
are a matter for the Council to choose. Accordingly the Constitution governs the Council’s 
business. 
 
The Scheme of Delegation is a document whereby the Council delegates to certain officers 
powers to undertake functions and duties on behalf of the Authority.  Tamworth Borough 
Council has operated a Scheme of Delegation for officers for several years. The proposed 
Scheme of Delegation does not purport to grant officers any additional authority to which is 
already provided, it merely seeks to formulate arrangements into a workable document. 
 
 

REPORT AUTHOR 
 
If members would like any further information or clarification prior to the meeting please contact Jane M Hackett, 
Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer , Ext 258 

 
 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
The Local Government Act 1972 
The Local Authorities ( Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 
The Localism Act 2011 
 
 

APPENDICES 
Link to Constitution and Scheme of 
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD382&ID=382&RPID=19572
91 
 
 

Page 130

http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD382&ID=382&RPID=1957291
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD382&ID=382&RPID=1957291

	Agenda
	2 To receive the Minutes of the previous meeting
	3 To receive the Minutes of the Extraordinary Council held on 12th September 2017
	7 Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy Mid-year Review Report 2017/18
	8 Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2018/19 onwards
	Appendix 1 Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme Consultation Results
	Appendix 2 Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme Working Age Expenditure
	Appendix 3 Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme Working Age Caseload
	Appendix 4 Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2018/19 onwards

	9 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000, Adoption of Policy and Procedure (2016/17)
	Appendix 1 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000, Adoption of Policy and Procedure (2016/17)

	10 Constitution Review and Update

